
TOWN OF FLORENCE 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 
Mayor Tara Walter 
Vice-Mayor Vallarie Woolridge 
Councilmember Bill Hawkins 
Councilmember Becki Guilin 
Councilmember John Anderson 
Councilmember Karen Wall 
Councilmember Kristen Larsen 
 
 
Tuesday, February 21, 2017 
 

Florence Town Hall
775 N. Main Street

Florence, AZ 85132
(520) 868-7500

www.florenceaz.gov
Meet 1st and 3rd Mondays

6:00 PM

____________________________________________________________________________ 
Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the Town of Florence Council and to 
the general public that a Regular Meeting of the Florence Town Council will be held on Tuesday, 
February 21, 2017, at 6:00 p.m., in the Florence Town Council Chambers, located at  775 N. 
Main Street, Florence, Arizona.  The agenda for this meeting is as follows:    
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. ROLL CALL:     Walter __, Woolridge__, Hawkins__,   Guilin__, Anderson__,  

Wall____,  Larsen___. 
 
3. MOMENT OF SILENCE 

 
4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
5. CALL TO THE PUBLIC  

Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the Town Council.  
Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual Councilmembers may 
respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask staff to review a matter raised or 
may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  However, members of the Council shall 
not discuss or take action on any matter during an open call to the public unless the matters 
are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 
 

6. PRESENTATION  
 

a. Recognition of the 32nd Annual Historic Home Tour Committee. (Bryan Hughes) 
 
b. Recognition of the San Tan Foothills High School Drama Club “Sabercat Playmakers” for 

their participation in the Pearl Hart Historical Skits during the 32nd Annual Historic Home 
Tour. (Bryan Hughes) 
 

c. Recognition of Pulte Homes as 150th Anniversary Sponsor. (Bryan Hughes) 
 
d. Presentation on the Town of Florence ISO Rating. (Dave Strayer) 

 

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



e. Presentation on and Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of the Town of Florence 2017 
General Plan Amendment application and hearing schedule. (Mark Eckhoff) 
 

f. Presentation of the 2016 Annual Report from the Greater Florence Chamber of 
Commerce.  (Jennifer Evans) 

 
7. CONSENT: All items on the consent agenda will be handled by a single vote as part of 

the consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public objects at the 
time the agenda item is called.  

 
a. Recommendation of approval to the Arizona Department of Liquor License and Control 

on the Kokopelli Moon Saloon’s application for a Temporary Extension of Premises Patio 
Permit for the Road to Country Thunder event on April 1, 2017. (Lisa Garcia) 
 

8

9

1

1
 

b. Recommendation of approval to the Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and Control 
on the Pinal County Historical Society, Inc. application for a Special Event Liquor License 
for the Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce Mixer, to be held on April 11, 2017 (Lisa 
Garcia) 
 

c. Approval of the January 3, January 13, and January 17, 2017 Town Council meeting 
minutes. 
 

d. Receive and file the following board and commission minutes: 
 

i. December 8, 2016 Arts and Culture Commission minutes. 
ii. October 26, 2016 Historic District Advisory Commission minutes. 
iii. October 27, 2016 Parks and Recreation Advisory Board minutes.  

 
. NEW BUSINESS 

 
a. Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of authorizing staff to commence Development 

Agreement negotiations with Artisan Acres, LLC and other associated parties seeking to 
enter into a Development Agreement with the Town of Florence, in order to facilitate the 
proposed expansion of the Windmill Winery project in Florence, Arizona. (Brent 
Billingsley) 
 

b. Discussion/Approval/Disapproval to enter into a contract with Holbrook Asphalt 
Company, to provide HA5 high density mineral bond pavement preservation treatment in 
various locations, in an amount not to exceed $207,713.28. (Chris Salas)  
 

c. Discussion/Approval/Disapproval to enter into a contract with Cactus Asphalt, through a 
Pinal County Cooperative Contract, to provide polymer modified asphalt paving, in an 
amount not to exceed $481,334.56. (Chris Salas) 
 

. LEGISLATIVE REPORT 

0. TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT 

1. CALL TO THE PUBLIC  

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



12. CALL TO THE COUNCIL – CURRENT EVENTS ONLY 
 

13. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Council may go into Executive Session at any time during the meeting for the purpose of 
obtaining legal advice from the Town’s Attorney(s) on any of the agenda items pursuant to 
A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3). 
 
POSTED ON FEBRUARY 17, 2017 BY LISA GARCIA, TOWN CLERK, AT 775 NORTH MAIN 
STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA, AND AT WWW.FLORENCEAZ.GOV. 
 
***PURSUANT TO TITLE II OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA), THE 
TOWN OF FLORENCE DOES NOT DISCRIMINATE ON THE BASIS OF DISABILITY 
REGARDING ADMISSION TO PUBLIC MEETINGS.  PERSONS WITH A DISABILITY MAY 
REQUEST REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS BY CONTACTING THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE ADA COORDINATOR, AT (520) 868-7574 OR (520) 868-7502 TDD. REQUESTS 
SHOULD BE MADE AS EARLY AS POSSIBLE TO ALLOW TIME TO ARRANGE THE 
ACCOMMODATION.***  
 
 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
6a. 

MEETING DATE: February 21, 2017 
 
DEPARTMENT: Parks and Recreation  
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Bryan Hughes, Parks and Recreation 
Director  
 

nd

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
Subject: Home Tour Committee Recognition  Meeting Date: February 21, 2017 
Page 1 of 2 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Recognition of the 32nd Annual Historic Home Tour Committee. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The 32nd Annual Florence Historic Home Tour was held on Saturday, February 11, 
2017.  This year’s theme was “Florence: Born of Adobe Brick and the Frontier 
Spirit”.  Homes and historic buildings were on display and open from 10:00 a.m. until 
4:00 p.m.  The tour began downtown at Jaques Square, 8th Street and Main.     
 
During the Home Tour, the Florence Arts and Culture Commission hosted its Second 
Quick Draw Art Event from 10:00 a.m. until 2:00 p.m. at the Suter House.  Various 
artists started with an empty canvas and had just two-and-a-half hours to finish their art 
work.  A silent auction was held and winning bids were announced later in the day.  The 
Sabercat Playmakers, a drama and theatre group from San Tan Foothills High School, 
performed two Pearl Hart re-enactments at the Second Pinal County Court 
House.  Members of the Buffalo Soldiers presented a camp re-enactment and 
presentation at the Pinal County Historical Museum at 2:00 p.m.  
 
All of these things would not have been possible without the staff and volunteers on the 
Home Tour Committee.  The Committee began meeting last year immediately following 
the completion of the 2016 Home Tour to recommend improvements, plan for this year, 
and work together to showcase Florence to residents and visitors attending the Home 
Tour. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
None 

SUBJECT: Recognition of the 32  Annual Historic Home 
Tour Committee 

 Other 



Subject: Home Tour Committee Recognition  Meeting Date: February 21, 2017 
Page 2 of 2 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
None 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
6b. 

MEETING DATE: February 21, 2017 
 
DEPARTMENT: Parks and Recreation  
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Bryan Hughes, Parks and Recreation 
Director 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   
st
Subject: San Tan Foothills Drama Club Recognition Meeting Date: February 21, 2017 
Page 1 of 2 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Recognition of the San Tan Foothills High School Drama Club “Sabercat Playmakers” 
for their participation in the Pearl Hart (female bandit) Historical Skits during the 32nd 
Annual Historic Home Tour. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The Home Tour Committee worked with Jared Carrell, San Tan Foothills High School 
drama teacher and his group of students, known as the “Sabercat Playmakers” to 
present two historical re-enactments based upon the trial of Pearl Hart during the 
Historic Home Tour.  Mr. Carrell attended many Home Tour committee meetings and 
contributed towards the overall planning of the Home Tour. 
 
Mr. Carrell also worked with members of the Pinal County Historical Museum to create 
ideas and a script for the re-enactments.  This is something that has never been done 
during the three years the Town of Florence has assumed responsibility for the tour.  
Everyone was very much looking forward to the students’ performances. 
 
The students presented two performances at Home Tour, which were held at 11:00 a.m. 
and 1:00 p.m. in the Second Pinal County Courthouse. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
None 
 
 

 
SUBJECT:  Recognition of the San Tan Foothills High School 
Drama Club “Sabercat Playmakers” for their participation in 
the 32nd Annual Historic Home Tour. 

 1  Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 



Subject: San Tan Foothills Drama Club Recognition Meeting Date: February 21, 2017 
Page 2 of 2 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
None 



 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
6c. 

MEETING DATE: February 21, 2017 
 
DEPARTMENT: Parks and Recreation  
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Bryan Hughes, Parks and Recreation 
Director 
 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  
Subject: 150th Anniversary Premier Sponsor Recognition                        Meeting Date: February 21, 2017 
Page 1 of 1 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Recognition of Pulte Homes as a 150th Anniversary Premier Sponsor. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The Town of Florence Parks and Recreation Department would like to recognize, and 
thank Pulte Homes for being the only premier sponsor of the Town of Florence’s 150th 
Anniversary events.  Pulte Homes is being recognized as the only Levi Ruggles 
Sponsor which was a $10,000 sponsorship.  The Town produced a number of 
successful events throughout 2016 that attracted thousands of people to the 
community.  Thank you Pulte Homes for your donation and partnership; it is greatly 
appreciated by the Town of Florence.  As a token of our appreciation, the Town of 
Florence would like to present a shadow box with memorabilia from the 150th 
Anniversary Celebration. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
None 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Sponsorship Package Sheet 

SUBJECT: Recognition of Pulte Homes as a 150th 
Anniversary Premier Sponsor 

 2nd Reading 
 Other 



TOWN OF FLORENCE 2016 150th ANNIVERSARY CELEBRATION 
SPONSORSHIP PACKAGES 

 

Sponsorship Deadline:  Friday, January 29, 2016 
Any sponsorship request received after this date will be recognized for any remaining or individual events 

 
Levi Ruggles - $10,000  
Sponsorship will include: 

 Business named as the top sponsor of the 2016 Florence Anniversary Celebration for ALL 
Town Sponsored events throughout the year. 

 Business will have the opportunity to participate in a meet and greet before a council 
meeting, and be recognized during the meeting. 

 Business will receive a shadow box being recognized as a top 2016 Florence Anniversary 
Sponsor with pictures from Council Meet and Greet. 

 Business logo will be printed on top in largest print of event t-shirts and worn by Town of 
Florence staff and available to the general public at all Town events throughout the year.  

 Business featured on the Town of Florence website with direct link and contact 
information. 

 Business featured on local Florence television channel. 
 Name or logo of business/organization listed in various advertisements and press releases. 
 Opportunity to place promotional tent or booth at all Town Sponsored events. 
 Opportunity to place promotional material at all Town Sponsored events. 
 Name listed on fliers distributed throughout community and at Florence area schools. 
 Acknowledgement of your business/organization throughout events. 
 Name or logo of business/organization printed on event banners or signage. 
 Social media recognition as top level sponsor of the 2016 Anniversary Celebration. 

 
Charles Poston - $8,000  
Sponsorship will include: 

 Business named as the 2
nd

 level sponsor of the 2016 Florence Anniversary Celebration for 
ALL Town Sponsored events throughout the year. 

 Business logo will be printed on event t-shirts below main sponsors and worn by Town of 
Florence staff and available to the general public at all Town Sponsored events throughout 
the year. 

 Business featured on the Town of Florence website with direct link and contact 
information. 

 Business featured on the Town of local Florence television channel. 
 Name or logo of business/organization listed in various advertisements and press releases. 
 Opportunity to place promotional tent or booth at the event. 
 Opportunity to place promotional material at event. 
 Name listed on fliers distributed throughout community and at Florence area schools. 
 Acknowledgement of your business/organization throughout the event. 
 Name or logo of business/organization printed on event banner or signage. 
 Social media recognition as 2

nd
 level sponsor of the 2016 Anniversary Celebration. 

 
Ernest McFarland - $6,000 
Sponsorship will include: 

 Business named as the 3
rd

 level sponsor of the 2016 Florence Anniversary Celebration for 
ALL Town Sponsored events throughout the year. 

 Business name will be printed on event t-shirts below 2
nd

 level sponsor and worn by Town 
of Florence staff and available to the general public at all Town Sponsored events 
throughout the year. 

 Opportunity to place promotional tent or booth at the event. 
 Opportunity to place promotional material at event. 
 Name and/or logo listed on fliers distributed throughout community and at Florence area schools. 
 Acknowledgement of your business/organization throughout the event. 
 Name or logo of business/organization printed on event banner or signage. 
 Social media recognition as 3

rd
 level sponsor of the 2016 Anniversary Celebration. 



  
William Clarke - $1,500 (individual events only as chosen by sponsor) 
Sponsorship will include: 

 Opportunity to place promotional material at event. 
 Name and/or logo listed on fliers distributed throughout community and at Florence area schools. 
 Acknowledgement of your business/organization throughout the event. 
 Name or logo of business/organization printed on event banner or signage. 
 Social media recognition as sponsor of the 2016 Anniversary Celebration 

 
Esteban Ramirez - $500 (individual events only as chosen by sponsor) 
Sponsorship will include: 

 Acknowledgement of your business/organization throughout events. 
 Name or logo of business/organization printed on event banner or signage. 
 Social media recognition of the 2016 Anniversary Celebration. 

 
Individual Donors - $150 to $499 
Sponsorship will include: 

 Recognition in the local newspaper periodically throughout the year. 

 
REMEMBER:  Sponsorship Deadline is Friday, January 29, 2016. 

 



 the structural fire 
 delivery system  

 PROTECTION 
SIFICATION 
VEY  2017
Analysis of
suppression

PUBLIC
CLAS
SUR



ISO is the leading supplier of data and
analytics for the property/casualty insurance
industry.

As a result of the October, 2016 ISO survey,
the Town of Florence will receive a
community classification improvement from
Class 4/9 to Class 03/3x effective May 1,
2017.

INSURANCE SERVICES OFFICE (ISO)
PUBLIC PROTECTION CLASSIFICATION



Most insurers use public protection classifications 
(PPC) for underwriting and calculating premiums for 
residential, commercial and industrial properties. 

 Each insurance company independently determines 
the premiums it charges its policyholders.

 Communities whose Public Protection Classification 
(PPC) improves may get lower insurance prices.

 PPC provides fire departments with a  valuable 
benchmark and is a valuable planning tool for fire 
protection improvements

BENEFITS OF AN IMPROVED ISO GRADE



THE COMMUNITY CLASSIFICATION:
IMPROVED FROM CLASS 4/9 TO CLASS 03/3X

 The first class (e.g. “3”) applies to properties within 5 road miles of  
recognized fire station and within 1,000 feet of a fire hydrant

 The second class (3x) applies to properties beyond 1,000 feet of a fire 
hydrant but within 5 road miles of a recognized fire station



SUMMARY REPORT
2005 

SUMMARY REPORT
2017 



CURRENT FIRE DEPARTMENT RANKINGS



QUESTIONS?



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
6e. 

MEETING DATE: February 21, 2017 
 
DEPARTMENT: Community Development  
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Mark Eckhoff, AICP 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   
 
Subject:  2017 General Plan Report, Amendment Application and Schedule            Meeting Date: February 21, 2017 
Page 1 of 3 
 

                                     Community Development Director 
 
SUBJECT: 2017 General Plan Report and 2017 General Plan 
Amendment Application and Hearing Schedule 

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve the Town of Florence 2017 General Plan Amendment application and 
hearing schedule. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
This report and action item is a procedural matter that is acted upon on an annual basis. 
The Town Code does not specifically address the application process for General Plan 
Amendments; however, the Town’s 2020 General Plan does define Minor and Major 
Amendments to the General Plan and thus an application process with hearing dates is 
required to process such applications.  An application has been created to define the 
process for General Plan Amendments and to set forth the 2017 schedule for such 
applications. 
 
Adoption of the General Plan Amendment application will set forth an official process for 
hearing 2017 General Plan Amendments.  Of particular importance is the process and 
schedule for Major General Plan Amendments, which can only be heard once a year.  
The Town Council will note that the Planning and Zoning Commission will have two 
meetings, each in a different location, to hear Major General Plan Amendments.  One of 
the Commission’s two hearings will be held at the Anthem at Merrill Ranch community. 
The State of Arizona requires an increased level of public participation for Major 
General Plan Amendments and holding a meeting within the Anthem at Merrill Ranch 
community provides the opportunity to have a public hearing outside of the Town core. 

Concurrent with this annual process of adopting our annual General Plan Amendment 
application and setting our dates for Major Amendments to the General Plan, staff 
would look to provide a brief report on the state of the Town of Florence 2020 General 
Plan. 



 
Subject:  2017 General Plan Report, Amendment Application and Schedule            Meeting Date: February 21, 2017 
Page 2 of 3 
 

Our current Town of Florence 2020 General Plan was adopted by the voters of Florence 
in 2010, thus the expectation that the Town will soon seek to commence an update to 
the General Plan so that an updated General Plan may be submitted to the voters of 
Florence for consideration in 2020 (the State requires most cities and towns to update 
their General Plans and obtain voter approval of their General Plans every ten years). 
Our current CIP proposes that the Town will commence the General Plan Update in the 
2018/2019 Fiscal Year and the project will carry over to the 2019/2020 Fiscal Year.  
This effort will be married with an update of the Town’s Parks, Trails and Open Space 
Master Plan and possibly other plans/studies.  The timing of this project is quite ideal as 
it follow the anticipated adoption of the Town’s Strategic Plan in 2017. 

Though the General Plan is a critical tool that helps to guide the Town’s growth over 
time, it is not a static document.  Thus, the General Plan can be amended by Minor or 
Major Amendments every year and substantially updated every ten years, as required 
by State statues.  The Town has cautiously and successfully amended the General 
Plan, namely the Future Land Use Map, on limited occasions since the 2010 voter 
adoption, namely in order to facilitate updates to transportation corridors or to 
encourage new development.   

The Town’s General Plan has been at the heart of many major discussions since 2010, 
most notably as the General Plan was attempted to be altered two years in a row for a 
proposed copper mining project.  The General Plan has also guided the Town on some 
critical long range transportation projects, namely the ADOT North South Corridor and 
Passenger Rail Corridor studies.  The General Plan has also guided many discussions 
and actions regarding the annexation of State or private lands.  Finally, the General 
Plan has supported our efforts surrounding the Territory Square development, 
Downtown Commercial (DC) Zoning District initiatives, as well as our Infill Incentive and 
Adaptive Reuse polices. Indeed, the General Plan has been consistently referenced 
and well utilized since 2010.  

During 2015, the Future Land Use Map component of the Town’s General Plan was 
amended to facilitate the Bonnybrooke Solar Project in Florence and to support the 
planned Johnson Ranch Estates (JRE) development on the south side of Florence.  In 
the latter case, the Master Planned Community (MPC) land use designation was 
applied over the JRE site to allow for the planned mixed use development, which helps 
a project of this magnitude react to necessary plan and zoning changes over the 
expected duration of their development.  No Minor or Major Plan Amendments were 
processed in 2016. 

The Town has been referring to the General Plan, as well as other guiding documents, 
during our strategic planning process.  The adopted Strategic Plan should provide 
critical direction for the comprehensive update to the General Plan in the coming years. 
We can expect there to be a great focus on, amongst other plan elements, parks, 
transportation and economic development.  With transportation issues being front and 
center, the Town may wish to pursue some additional transportation planning studies 
prior to the next General Plan update. Staff concurrently anticipates one or more Minor 



 
Subject:  2017 General Plan Report, Amendment Application and Schedule            Meeting Date: February 21, 2017 
Page 3 of 3 
 

Amendments to the General Plan in 2017 related to the ongoing progress on the ADOT 
North-South Corridor Phase One Environmental Impact Statement.   

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The Town pays a nominal fee, typically less than $400, to utilize meeting spaces within 
the Anthem at Merrill Ranch community, which is included in the Community 
Development budget. 
     
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Motion to approve the Town of Florence 2017 General Plan Amendment application and 
hearing schedule. 
 
ATTACHMENT: 
 
Town of Florence 2017 General Plan Amendment application and hearing schedule. 



2017 General Plan Amendment Application              Page 1 of 20 
 

 
 
 

 
TOWN OF FLORENCE 

 
 
 
 

GENERAL PLAN  
AMENDMENT PROCESS 

AND APPLICATION  
 
 
 

Community Development Department 
P.O. Box 2670 

224 West 20th Street 
Florence, Arizona 85132 

(520) 868-7575 
www.florenceaz.gov 

 
 
 
 
 
 



2017 General Plan Amendment Application              Page 2 of 20 
 

TYPICAL GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT PROCESS 
 

TRC Pre-Application Meeting 

Formal Submittal 

Staff Review of Submitted Information 

Neighborhood Meetings if Required 
 

Staff and Applicant Meeting; 
If Necessary, Applicant Resubmits 

Required Notices and Postings; meetings 

Staff Report prepared and presented for 
Planning Commission Recommendation 

Town Council Hearing 

Denial Approval 



2017 General Plan Amendment Application              Page 3 of 20 
 

GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT APPLICATION 
PROCEDURES 

 
The following information is provided to assist in the preparation and submittal of an 
application for a General Plan map or text amendment for property within the Town of 
Florence. 
 
It is important to note that since an amendment may affect the entire community, 
adjacent jurisdictions, schools and public utilities, the analysis of a General Plan 
Amendment request must be comprehensive in nature and address all potential 
impacts. 
 
1. Pre-Application Review Process – Prior to filing an application for a General 

Plan Amendment, the applicant must participate in a Pre-Application review 
meeting with the Community Development Department and Technical Review 
Committee (TRC). 

 
2. Application Filing – For an application to be accepted, the applicant must 

provide all of the required information described on the submittal checklist at the 
time of formal submittal. Ensuring the accuracy of the request is the responsibility 
of the applicant. Applications will not be accepted or processed without an 
adequate description of the "Request" being submitted. Incomplete applications 
will not be accepted. 

 
a. Major Amendments – Applications for Major Amendments to the General 

Plan will be considered once a year. The Florence 2020 General Plan 
defines what constitutes a Major Amendment.  Submittals are accepted 
based on the schedule provided in this application. 

 
b. Minor Amendments – Minor General Plan Amendments include any 

change to the 2020 General Plan not defined as a Major Amendment. 
Applications may be filed at any time during the year. 

 
3. Staff Review – Upon receiving a complete application, the submitted information 

will be routed to Town staff and applicable agencies for timely review and 
comment. After this review is completed, the comments are consolidated and 
returned to the applicant. The applicant is responsible for addressing staff 
comments and submitting revised plans.   

 
4. Neighborhood Meetings – Neighborhood meetings beyond the required 

minimum Town hearings may be required for certain General Plan Amendments, 
as deemed necessary by state statues and/or the Community Development 
Director. Applicants will be required to set up and conduct these meetings. 
Efforts shall be made to encourage public participation. The applicant and Town 
shall comply with minimum public notification requirements.  
 



2017 General Plan Amendment Application              Page 4 of 20 
 

5. Public Notice – Except for requests limited to text amendments, the applicant 
will prepare the public notice to mail to surrounding property owners and provide 
a copy to the Town. The notice requires Town review and approval prior to 
mailing. The notice for the first public hearing must be mailed by the applicant at 
least fifteen (15) calendar days prior to the date of the hearing to the following: 

 
a. All property owners of record within three hundred (300) feet of the site. 

 
b. To the owner, if the application is initiated by a person other than the 

owner; and 
 

c. Any person or group who has requested notice in writing. 
 

The Community Development Director may expand the notification area set forth 
in this section if it is determined that the potential impact of the project extends 
beyond the required notification boundary. The applicant must submit a signed 
affidavit of mailing prior to public hearing. Failure of the applicant to provide 
evidence of mailing will result in a postponement of the public hearing item. The 
applicant will be charged a fee for the postponement.  In the event that the Town 
handles the mailing, the applicant affidavit of mailing shall not be applicable. 
 
Minor or Major General Plan Amendments initiated by the Town for text changes 
or more extensive and sometimes, Town-wide, map changes may call for an 
adjustment of the individual notification process as approved by the Community 
Development Director. 
 
The Town will send public hearing notices to the local newspaper of general 
circulation in accordance with State and local requirements. 

 
6. Property Posting (Sign) – Notice of Public Hearing for a General Plan 

Amendment must be posted at least fifteen (15) calendar days prior to the date of 
each public hearing. The applicant is responsible for posting and maintaining the 
sign on the property, subject to the following specifications and requirements: 

 
a. Posting, maintenance, and removal of signs are the responsibility of the 

applicant; 
 
b. Signs should not be removed until after the case is acted upon by the 

Town Council or, in the case of an application that is withdrawn, not until 
the withdrawal is officially accepted by the Town; 

 
c. The applicant must remove all signs within ten (10) days after final action 

on the case. If the sign is not removed on time, the Town will remove the 
sign and charge the applicant a removal fee; 

 
d. The signs must comply with the attached sign criteria, except as may be 

modified by the Community Development Director; 
 



2017 General Plan Amendment Application              Page 5 of 20 
 

e. The applicant must submit a signed and dated affidavit of posting, and 
color photos of the posted signs prior to the public hearing; and 

 
f. Failure of the applicant to provide evidence of posting could result in a 

postponement of the public hearing.  
 
Minor or Major General Plan Amendments initiated by the Town for text changes 
or more extensive and sometimes, Town-wide, map changes may call for an 
adjustment of the sign posting requirements as approved by the Community 
Development Director. 

 
7. Public Participation Plan for Town-Initiated Application 

 
The Town may choose to develop a unique Public Participation Plan (PPP) for 
Town-initiated applications, particularly in the case of Major General Plan 
Amendments. Items in a PPP used by the Town could include a combination of 
public meetings, open houses, presentations, workshops, signs, display 
advertisements and other notification and participation methodologies/tools so 
long as minimum set State criteria is met. 

 
8. Staff Reports – After the staff comments have been addressed and the project 

has been scheduled for the public hearings, the Community Development 
Department will prepare reports describing and evaluating the proposed project 
and making recommendations to the Planning and Zoning Commission and 
Town Council. Copies of the staff reports will be made available to the public and 
sent to the applicant prior to each public hearing. 

 
9. Planning and Zoning Commission Hearing – The Planning and Zoning 

Commission will conduct at least one public hearing for a Minor General Plan 
Amendment and at least two public hearings for Major General Plan 
Amendments. The Planning Commission Major General Plan Amendment 
hearings schedule is included in this application. Regular meetings are held at 
Florence Town Hall, 775 North Main Street. The applicant or a project 
representative should be present at the hearing. Upon hearing the case, the 
Commission may forward a recommendation for approval, approval with 
modifications, or denial of a General Plan Amendment request to the Town 
Council. For General Plan Amendments, a tied vote shall be considered a 
recommendation for denial. The Commission may continue/table a Minor 
General Plan Amendment case as deemed necessary. 

 
10. Town Council Hearing – Regular Town Council hearings occur on the first and 

third Monday of each month at 6:00 p.m. and are held in the Council Chambers, 
775 North Main Street. The applicant or project representative must be present at 
the hearing. The Town Council will approve, approve with modifications and/or 
conditions, or deny the application. Approval of any Major General Plan 
amendment requires an affirmative vote by at least two-thirds of the members of 
the Council.  

 



2017 General Plan Amendment Application              Page 6 of 20 
 

 
11. Withdrawals – A General Plan Amendment application that has been acted 

upon by the Planning and Zoning Commission may not be unilaterally withdrawn 
by an applicant/property owner after such action has occurred. The Town Council 
shall vote on whether to accept or not accept a request to withdraw an 
application. If the request for withdraw is not accepted, the matter shall move 
forward through the Town Council’s General Plan Amendment Public Hearing 
process. 

 
12. Inactive Cases – All applications need to be actively pursued to a decision. If no 

activity has occurred on an application for 180 days, the application will be 
determined to be inactive, deemed to be withdrawn and the file will be closed. At 
least thirty (30) days prior to that date the staff will notify the applicant in writing. 
The applicant may submit a written request that the application remain active, 
with an explanation for the inactivity. The Community Development Director may 
grant an extension for up to 180 days for good cause if there is a reasonable 
belief that the application will be actively pursued during the extension period. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2017 General Plan Amendment Application              Page 7 of 20 
 

 
GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT 

TYPICAL MINIMUM CONTENT REQUIREMENTS 
 
1. Project Narrative 
 

 Description of proposed General Plan changes; 
 If a Text Amendment, a detailed explanation of the proposed text changes; 
 Explanation on how the proposed change is compatible with adjacent 

properties and other elements of the General Plan;  
 An analysis/assessment of how the proposed amendment will impact the 

overall balance and mixture of land uses within the Town’s Planning Area; 
and 

 Explanation on the availability of public utilities and services. 
 
2. Land Use or Circulation Exhibit 
 

 Vicinity Map; 
 Scale, north arrow, and dimensions; 
 Existing roadways; 
 Table indicating proposed roadway classifications. 
 Proposed land use classification boundaries; 
 Adjacent land use classifications within 300 feet; 
 Project Data Table: 

 Gross acres; 
 Current and proposed General Plan Classification(s); and 
 Percent of total acreage in each land use classification. 

 
3. Market Study (if applicable) 
 

The Town may require a market study to be performed to evaluate the economic 
and fiscal impact of the proposed amendment on the Town and other land uses. 
Market studies will be the financial responsibility of the applicant and contracted 
by the Town to ensure objectivity. 



2017 General Plan Amendment Application              Page 8 of 20 
 

NARRATIVE STATEMENT/PROJECT JUSTIFICATION 
 
A narrative is required for Town evaluation of all proposed General Plan Amendments. 
At a minimum, the narrative must address the following questions: 
 
1. Why is the current land use/circulation classification not suitable? 
 
2. Does the proposal conform with land use goals?  Will the proposed change in 

land use or circulation do the following: 
 

a. Support the goals and policies of the General Plan; 
b. Conform to the proposed range of land uses, densities, and intensity of 

uses, hierarchy of transportation systems; and 
c. Avoid creation of isolated uses that will cause incompatible community 

form and a burden on services and circulation systems? 
 
3. What unique physical characteristics of the site present opportunities or 

constraints for the development under the existing classification? 
 
4. What is the ability and capacity of the water and sewer system to accommodate 

development that may occur as a result of the General Plan Amendment without 
system extensions or improvements? 

 
5. What is the ability of existing police and fire department personnel to provide 

adequate emergency services according to acceptable response standards set 
by the community? 

 
6. What is the ability of the proposed public and private open space, recreation, 

schools, and library facilities to meet the projected demand of future development 
without reducing services below community standards? 

 
7. What is the proposed fiscal impact of future development based on evaluation of 

projected revenues and the additional cost of providing public facilities and 
services to accommodate projected increases or decreases in population and 
development that could occur as a result of the General Plan Amendment? 

 
8. How will the proposed amendment affect the ability of the community to sustain 

the physical and cultural resources, including air quality, water quality, energy, 
natural and human-made resources necessary to meet the demands of present 
and future residents? 

 
9. What changes, if any, in Federal or State laws or policies substantiate the 

proposed amendment? 



2017 General Plan Amendment Application              Page 9 of 20 
 

GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT CHECKLIST  
 

REQUIRED MATERIALS 
Applicant 
Checklist 

Staff 
Verification 

Application   
   
Fee  Please review the fee schedule for applicable 
fees (all fees are Non-Refundable). 

  

   
Project Narrative   
   
Owner’s Authorization Form   
   
4 copies – Traffic Impact Analysis (if required by 
Traffic Engineer) 

  

   
Market Study (if required by the Town)   
   
Legal Description (Metes and bounds description 
required for unplatted property) including total gross 
acreage, sealed and signed by a registered engineer 
or surveyor (8.5” x 11”) 

  

   
Pinal County Assessor Parcel Map (8.5” x 11”) 
(Highlight project area and provide parcel numbers)  

  

   
Documentation of the Neighborhood Meeting 
including (as applicable and requested): 

  

A typed listing of persons that attended the meeting 
Including their names, addresses, and telephone 
numbers. 

  

Minutes of the meeting addressing neighborhood 
concerns, topics discussed, and how the applicant 
addressed such concerns. 

  

Copy of the letter notifying property owners of the 
meeting. 

  

   
Land Use or Circulation Exhibit (N/A for text 
amendments; copy types and quantities subject to 
change): 

  

Initial 10 copies – Blueline, blackline or color prints 
(24” x 36”) folded to approximately (9” x 12”) 

  

Initial 10 copies – 11” x 17” versions of above noted 
exhibit   

  

1 copy – (8.5” x 11”) laser print or photo reduction  
(photocopy of color rendered plan not acceptable) 

  



2017 General Plan Amendment Application              Page 10 of 20 
 

1 copy – (8.5” x 11”) PMT (Photo Mechanical 
Transfer) must be submitted following an initial staff 
review, but prior to scheduling the item for a Planning 
Commission agenda. PowerPoint or alternative 
exhibits may be substituted. 

  

   
Neighborhood Notice (Where applicable; N/A for 
text amendments): 

  

A parcel map highlighting properties within 300 feet.   
Typed names and addresses of all property owners 
identified on highlighted parcel map. 

  

 
 

STAFF TRANSMITTAL (Potential list of application recipients) 
 
 Florence Administration 
 Florence Community Development 
 Florence Public Works  
 Florence Parks and Recreation  
 Florence Fire  
 Florence Police  
 Pinal County   
 Town of Queen Creek   
 Gila River Indian Community 
 Tohono O'odham Indian Nation 

 Florence Unified School District 
 Bureau of Land Management 
 City of Coolidge 
 City of Eloy   
 CAG 
 Arizona State Land Department 
 Arizona Department of Commerce 
 MAG 
 



2017 General Plan Amendment Application              Page 11 of 20 
 

APPLICATION FOR GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT 
 

PROJECT NAME:            
 
APPLICATION TYPE: Major  Minor  Text (Major) 
 
1. Property Owner:  Name:          

Address:          
              

Phone:      Fax:     
Email:          

 
2. Applicant/Developer:  Name:          

Address:          
              

Phone:      Fax:    
Email:          

 
3. Address or Location of Property:          
 
4. Legal Description of Property: If applicable, include Lot(s), Block(s), and Subdivision 
Name:  

           
           
            

 
Tax Parcel Numbers:         

 
Gross Acres:    

 
5. Current Land Use Classification(s):         
 
6. Proposed Land Use Classification(s):         
 
______________________________________________________________________
SIGNATURE OF PROPERTY OWNER or REPRESENTATIVE         DATE 
 
 
FOR STAFF USE ONLY: 
 
CASE NO.       APPLICATION DATE AND TIME   
 
PERMIT NO.      FEE $        
 
PZ HEARING DATES      
 
TC HEARING DATE     REVIEWED BY:     
 



2017 General Plan Amendment Application              Page 12 of 20 
 

OWNER’S AUTHORIZATION FORM 
 

This sheet must be completed if the applicant is not the owner of the property. 
 

I/we, the Undersigned, do hereby grant permission to: ___________________________ 
 

to act on my/our behalf for the purpose of obtaining one or more of the following: 
Annexation, General Plan Amendment, Planned Unit Development, Zone Change, 
Conditional Use Permit, Design Review, Preliminary/Final Plat and/or other below-noted 
application on the following described property: 
 
  

 
 
Owner(s)  
 
 

             Signature 
  

 
 
     
                     Print or Type Name 

 
 Address  

  
 
 
Telephone  

 
 

STATE OF ARIZONA ) 
) ss 

County of __________________ ) 
 

On this _______ day of _____________________, 20 ____, before me, the undersigned 
Notary Public, personally appeared ____________________________, known to me to 
be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and 
acknowledged that _____________________________ executed the same. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereto set my hand and official seal. 
 
My commission expires: 
____________________________ _______________________________________ 

Notary Public 

 



2017 General Plan Amendment Application              Page 13 of 20 
 

POSTING REQUIREMENTS 
 
Florence Code requires posting of a sign (or signs) announcing a Public Hearing 
regarding certain land-use actions a minimum of fifteen (15) days before the date of the 
Hearing.  These actions include General Plan Amendments, Conditional Use Permits, 
Special Use Permits, Rezoning and Variance Requests.  It shall be the responsibility of 
the applicant to erect and maintain the sign on the subject property as well as maintain 
the current public hearing information on the sign until formal decision of the case has 
been made by Town Council. It shall also be the responsibility of the applicant to 
remove the sign after final disposition of the case.  The attached Affidavit of Sign 
Posting must be provided to the Community Development Department within twenty-
four (24) hours of the posting. A general sign format to follow is provided below. 
 

 TOWN OF FLORENCE ]-  3” 
 (Planning & Zoning) or (Town Council) ]-  3” 
 Public Hearing Notice ]-  4” 
 (space)  

3”  -[  (Action Requested)  
 (space)  

2”  -[  (Project description and location) 
 

 (space)  
2”  -[ (Time of Hearing), More Information: ]-  2” 

  2”  -[ (Date of Hearing), Town of Florence ]-  2” 

2”  -[ 
775 North Main 

Street 
Community 

Development 
Department 

]-  2” 

2”  -[ Florence, Arizona 520-868-7575 ]-  2” 
 
 Contact the Community Development Department regarding number and placement 

of signs. 
 Body of sign to be brilliant yellow and lettering to be black. 
 Minimum Sign dimensions shall be 4’ X 8’ with lettering as noted above. 
 Minimum height of sign shall be at least 6 feet from finished grade to the top of the 

sign. 
 Sign shall be made of generally weather resistant material. 
 Placement and maintenance of sign is applicant’s responsibility. 
 Applicant must post sign at least 15 calendar days prior to the hearing date. 
 Applicant must remove sign within 10 working days of final action. 
 The Community Development Director may allow changes to sign format so long as 

all sign content requirements are met. 



2017 General Plan Amendment Application              Page 14 of 20 
 

AFFIDAVIT OF SIGN POSTING 
 

Applicant Name:            
 
Project Name/Location:           
 
 
I confirm that the site has been posted as required by Town of Florence Community 
Development Department. A picture of the sign(s) posted on the subject site has also 
been submitted. 
 
 
 
 
              
Applicant/Representative Signature    Date 
 
 
 
STATE OF ARIZONA ) 

) ss 
County of __________________ ) 
 
On this _______ day of _____________________, 20 ____, before me, the 
undersigned Notary Public, personally appeared ____________________________, 
known to me to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within 
instrument and acknowledged that _____________________________ executed the 
same. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereto set my hand and official seal. 
 
My commission expires: 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
Notary Public 

 
 
Please return completed notarized affidavit and picture to the 
Community Development Department within forty-eight (48) 
business hours of the posting. 
 
 
 
 



2017 General Plan Amendment Application              Page 15 of 20 
 

MINOR GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

2017 MEETING SCHEDULE 
 
Minor General Plan Amendments will be heard and acted upon by the Planning and 
Zoning Commission at one of their regularly scheduled meetings that occur on the first 
and third Thursday of the month. Meetings are held in the Town Hall Council Chambers 
(775 N. Main St.) starting at 6:00 p.m.  Meeting dates, times, and/or locations may be 
changed if deemed necessary by the Town.  Proper notice of such changes will be 
provided. 
  
All meetings of the Planning and Zoning Commission are open to the Public. 
 
Complete applications and fees are due to the Community Development Department by 
12:00 p.m. (noon) on the deadline date. 
 
Scheduling of your request for consideration by the Planning and Zoning Commission is 
contingent upon receipt of a complete application.  Additional factors, such as review 
periods and minimum public notification requirements, will determine when your request 
is heard by the Planning and Zoning Commission. The applicant will be notified of their 
application’s status. 
 
A pre-application meeting with the Town’s Technical Review Committee is required for 
most development applications.  Applicant must set a meeting time with the Community 
Development Department prior to the submittal deadline. 
 
A separate Planning and Zoning meeting schedule is provided for the consideration of 
Major General Plan Amendments.  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2017 General Plan Amendment Application              Page 16 of 20 
 

MAJOR GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

2017 MEETING SCHEDULE 
 
Special meeting dates, times and locations have been set for the consideration of Major 
Amendments to the Town’s General Plan by the Planning and Zoning Commission as 
stated below. Meeting dates, times, and/or locations may be changed if deemed 
necessary by the Town.  Proper notice of such changes will be provided. 
 
All meetings of the Planning and Zoning Commission are open to the Public. 

 
The following is the 2017 Planning and Zoning Commission meeting schedule for Major 
General Plan Amendments (contact the Town Clerk for Town Council meeting 
information): 
 
Submittal Deadline 
 
May 1, 2017 

 *First Meeting Date: 
 
September 21, 2017 
 

 

 *Second Meeting Date: 
 
October 5, 2017 
 

 

 Town Council Meeting: 
 
November 6, 2017 

Complete applications and fees are due to the Community Development Department by 
12:00 p.m. (noon) on the deadline date. 
 
Scheduling of your request for consideration by the Planning and Zoning Commission is 
contingent upon receipt of a complete application.  The applicant will be notified of their 
application’s status. 
 
A pre-application meeting with the Town’s Technical Review Committee is required for 
Major General Plan Amendment applications.  If you are submitting for a Major General 
Plan Amendment the applicant must set a meeting time with Community Development 
Department prior to the submittal deadline. Application materials will be distributed to 
meet 60-day review and comment requirements.  *Two Planning and Zoning 
Commission meetings are required to promote public participation. The first meeting will 
be held at a location other than Florence Town Hall unless otherwise noticed by the 
Town. The second meeting will be held in the Town Hall Council Chambers at 775 N. 
Main St. unless otherwise noticed by the Town. Both meetings to be held at 6:00 pm 
unless otherwise noticed. The Town reserves the right to adjust meeting dates, times 
and/or locations so long as proper notice is provided. 
 



2017 General Plan Amendment Application              Page 17 of 20 
 

 EXHIBIT B 
 

CONSENT TO CONDITIONS/WAIVER FOR DIMINUTION OF VALUE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2017 General Plan Amendment Application              Page 18 of 20 
 

WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO: 
FLORENCE TOWN CLERK 
PO Box 2670 
Florence, AZ 85132 
 

 
 

AGREEMENT FOR THE WAIVER OF CLAIMS  
FOR DIMINUTION IN VALUE OF PROPERTY  

 
 
 This AGREEMENT FOR THE WAIVER OF CLAIMS FOR DIMINUTION IN VALUE OF 
PROPERTY (the “Agreement”) is made in favor of the Town of Florence and is entered into between  
        ,  as the owner of the property described 
herein (the “Owner”) and the Town of Florence (“Town”) to waive any and all claims for just 
compensation, including diminution of value that may be based upon action by the Town in response to a 
request from the Owner.  This Agreement is entered into in conformance with A.R.S. §12-1134(I). 
 

RECITALS 
 

A. The Owner is the fee title owner of real property, Parcel No(s) _______- ________- __________ 
located at _______________________________(the “Property”). 

B. The Owner acknowledges that he/she has made a request to the Town for the application and/or 
enactment of its land use laws for the development of the Property and is under no compulsion, 
economic or otherwise, to enter into this Agreement. 

C. Arizona statute A.R.S. section 12-1134 (A) provides that a town must pay just compensation to a 
land owner, in some cases, if the town approves a land use law that reduces the fair market value 
of the owner’s property.  This law is sometimes referred to as “Proposition 207” or the “Arizona 
Private Property Rights Protection Act.” (A.R.S. 12-1134, et. seq.) 

D. The Arizona Private Property Rights Protection Act (e.g. A.R.S. section 12-1134(I)) authorizes 
private property owners to enter into agreements with political subdivisions to waive any claim for 
diminution in value of their property in connection with any action requested by the property 
owner. 

E. The Town and the Owner seek to resolve whether the application of the Town’s land use laws to 
the Property constitutes a “diminution in value” of the Property or other harm entitling Owner, now 
or in the future, to seek compensation from the Town under the Arizona Private Property Rights 
Protection Act. 

 
AGREEMENTS 

  
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the above premises, the promises contained in the Agreement, 
and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which the parties 
acknowledge, it is agreed as follows: 
 

1. The recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated herein by this reference. 
2. The Owner acknowledges that he/she is aware of the Arizona Private Property Rights Protection 

Act (A.R.S. 12-1131, et.seq.). 
3. The Owner acknowledges that he/she has independently determined and believes that the 

application of the Town’s land use laws to the Property will not reduce the fair market value of the 
Property. 

4. The Owner acknowledges that he/she is aware that, as a condition of receiving approvals under 
the Town’s land use laws, the Town may impose various requirements upon the Property, such 
as requirements for right-of-way dedications, time limitations for development, and other land use 
enactments, including, but not limited to zoning ordinance stipulations and conditions. 



2017 General Plan Amendment Application              Page 19 of 20 
 

5. The Owner is the holder of fee title to the real property located at     
   , Florence, Arizona, (the “Property”) which is more fully described in the 
Owner’s application to the Town in Case No.    and incorporated herein.  The Owner 
agrees that the stipulations and conditions set forth in Case No. ______ shall be included as part 
of the ordinance and/or other application/enactment of Town’s land use laws that will be 
considered by the Town of Florence Town Council.  Owner agrees that compliance with the 
stipulations and conditions set forth in Case No. _____ will govern development of the Property.  
Owner further understands and agrees that stipulations and conditions may be added or modified 
during the public hearing process and that those stipulations and conditions will be incorporated 
into this Agreement. 

6. The Owner has requested this action because the Owner has plans for the development of the 
Property that require that application of Town’s land use laws to Case No. ____.  The Owner 
believes that the Town’s application and enactment of land use laws to the Property will increase 
the value and development potential of the Property, and that this outweighs any rights or 
remedies that may be obtained under A.R.S. §12-1134 et. seq.   

7. The Owner hereby waives and fully releases any and all financial loss, injury, claims and causes 
of action that Owner may have, now or in the future, for any “diminution in value” and for any “just 
compensation” under the Arizona Private Property Rights Protection Act based on the Owner’s 
request in Case No._____.  This waiver constitutes a complete release of any and all claims and 
causes of action under the Arizona Private Property Rights Protection Act that may arise out of 
the Owner’s request in Case No. ______.  By signing this Agreement, the Owner waives any right 
or claim that may arise under A.R.S. §12-1134, including any claim for the reduction in the value 
of the Property, as a result of the request, including enactment of any zoning ordinance, in Case 
No.   . 

8. The Owner understands that Town staff may propose, the Planning Commission may 
recommend and the Mayor and Council may adopt conditions to the requested zoning 
application(s) that limit the potential development of the Property.  The Owner acknowledges that 
the rezoning and conditions, along with any application or enactment of land use laws by the 
Town, are a single, integrated legislative approval.  The Owner agrees and consents to all 
conditions that may be imposed.  The Owner retains the right to withdraw its request prior to a 
vote by the Mayor and Council or to decline to implement the necessary requirements to 
effectuate the land use approvals or enactments if the Owner disagrees with any conditions that 
are proposed or approved.  If the Owner does not withdraw the application, the Owner shall be 
deemed to have accepted all adopted conditions to the land use request. 

9. The Owner hereby agrees to indemnify, hold harmless, pay and defend the Town of Florence, its 
Mayor and Council members and its officers, officials, representatives, agents and employees, 
from any and all claims, causes of action, demands, losses and expenses, including reasonable 
attorney’s fees and litigation costs asserted by or resulting, directly or indirectly, in whole or in 
part, from any of the present owners of any interest in the Property seeking any potential 
compensation, damages, attorney’s fees or costs under the Arizona Private Property Rights 
Protection Act that they may have based on the Owner’s request in Case No. _____. 

10. This Agreement shall run with the land and shall be binding upon all present and future owners of 
any interest in the Property.  Owner consents to the recording of this Agreement with the County 
Recorder in which the Property is located. 

11. The Owner agrees that, as of the effective date of this Agreement, he/she has received equal 
protection of the laws and due process of all claims and requests, and has not suffered any 
compensable regulatory taking (as those terms and their related claims are defined by Arizona 
state and federal constitutional jurisprudence). 

12. The Owner warrants and represents that Owner is the holder of the fee title to the Property. 
13. The person who signs this Agreement on behalf of the Owner personally warrants and 

guarantees to the Town that he/she has legal power to bind the Owner to this Agreement. 
14. This Agreement shall be deemed to be made under, shall be construed in accordance with, and 

shall be governed by the laws of the State of Arizona, without reference to choice of law or 
conflicts of laws principles thereof.   

15. The Owner has had the opportunity to consult with an attorney of the Owner’s choice prior to 
entering this Agreement and enters it fully understanding that the Owner is waiving the rights and 
remedies as set forth herein. 

 



2017 General Plan Amendment Application              Page 20 of 20 
 

 Upon execution, this Agreement shall be recorded in the Office of the Pinal County Recorder. 
 
  
 Dated this ________ day of     , 20 . 
 
Owner:  
            (Name of Individual, Corporation, Partnership, or  
                 LLC, as applicable) 

 
 
By:    
         (Signature of Owner or Authorized Representative, if  
           applicable) 
 
Its:     
       (Title of Individual Signing in Representative Capacity) 

Owner:   
            (Name of Individual, Corporation, Partnership, or 
                 LLC, as applicable) 

 
 
By:    
         (Signature of Owner or Authorized Representative, if  
           applicable) 

 
Its:        
        (Title of Individual Signing in Representative Capacity) 

 
 
State of Arizona   ) 
     ) 
County of     ) 
 
On this            day of            , 20       , before me personally appeared 
      on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person who 
he or she claims to be, and acknowledged that he or she signed the above/attached document. 
 
 
              
       Notary Public 
 
My Commission expires:      
 
  
 
 
 
Town of Florence, an Arizona municipal corporation: 
 
 
 
By:          
       Community Development Department 
 
 

 
 

 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
6f. 

MEETING DATE: February 21, 2017  
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   
Subject: 2016 Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce Report Meeting Date: February 21, 2016 
Page 1 of 2 

STAFF PRESENTER:  Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst 
 
SUBJECT:  2016 Annual Report from the Greater Florence 
Chamber of Commerce    

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Information only 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce will provide a written annual report and 
present it to the Town Council to fulfill part of the terms outlined in the Professional 
Services Agreement with the Town of Florence.  The agreement identifies services the 
Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce provides to the Town of Florence to enhance 
economic activity and support businesses in Florence.  The annual report includes the 
outcomes of projects listed in the scope of work, complete financial reports, an analysis 
of special events produced by the Chamber, the outcome of membership recruitment 
and retention efforts, goals and objectives for the following year, and other noteworthy 
events.  
 
The 2016 Professional Services Agreement includes, but is not limited to the following 
services: 
 

1. Assist the Town of Florence with business retention and expansion activities, 
notifying the Town when businesses share plans to relocate or downsize 
operations. 

2. Hold at least one business workshop each quarter.  
3. Host four quarterly business forums to discuss local issues.  
4. Support Florence businesses by coordinating monthly networking luncheons, 

ribbon cuttings, and a shop local program. 
5. Promote Florence by working with local and regional media, providing 

information for the Visit Florence website, and maintaining the community 
calendar of events. 

6. Coordinate of at least two special events including Casino Night. 
7. Operate the Florence Visitor Center and McFarland State Historic Park.  

 



Subject: 2016 Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce Report Meeting Date: February 21, 2016 
Page 2 of 2 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce received $57,500 from the Town of 
Florence as compensation for the services provided in the Professional Services 
Agreement. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
None 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
2016 Annual Report from the Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce 



 

Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce 
2016 – Annual Report to Town of Florence 

 
OUTCOMES OF EACH GOAL/PROJECT  
1.  Business Retention and Growth 
a) Business of the Quarter  
The Chamber recognizes Business of the Quarter. The Business of the Quarter are as 
follows:  

First Quarter: (January-Florence Fudge Shop) (February-Valentino’s) (March-Buck’s 
4 Style) 
Second Quarter: Florence Paralegal 
Third Quarter: Arizona Public Service 
Fourth Quarter: SonRisa Insurance 

 
b) Business Retention and Expansion Program 
In 2016 the Chamber continued with the Membership Marketing Coordinator position 
which is responsible for marketing to new businesses with an emphasis on assisting 
current member businesses and their needs.  New membership plaques were 
distributed and yearly stickers distributed upon membership renewal.  Although newly 
updated, the Chambers CRM program, Chamber Master, proved to be not as efficient 
as anticipated. A proposal to revamp the program again was submitted and approved. 
The Chamber is working with Chamber Member Spider Trainers to overhaul the current 
Website and implement Chamber Dashboard to showcase, advertise, promote and 
inform Members and their Businesses. The Chamber revised the 2016 Membership 
Directory, creating a more accurate and updated 2016-2017 Directory. 5000 copies 
were ordered for distribution.  In addition to the previously established social media 
presence on Facebook, Twitter and Linked In, a private “MEMBERS ONLY” page was 
created. specifically for Chamber Members to be able to communicate, ask questions, 
and network with each other.  
 

 



 

 
c) Business seminars (at least quarterly) 
d) In-House Help for Businesses 
In 2016 the Chamber provided a work shop on the benefits of Promoting your Business 
through Social Media. In addition, the Chamber is excited to offer monthly workshops in 
the upcoming year.  
 
2.  Marketing 
a) Monthly Chamber Luncheon 
Monthly luncheons with speakers on local and relevant topics were held each month 
and open to Members and the public.  The luncheon speakers and topics for 2016 were: 

January – Old Pueblo (speaker Apache Gold Casino) 
February – Holiday Inn (speaker Mayor Rankin) 
March – LB Cantina (speaker Fire & Police Chiefs of The Town of Florence) 
April – Holiday Inn (speaker Rodney Mendoza) 
May – Conquest Arms (speaker Coolidge/Florence Elks lodge) 
June – Green Tree Inn (speaker A.P.S John Hatfield) 
July – The Vault (speaker S.B.A Anna Rivera) 
August – Old Pueblo (speaker Az. Secretary of State Michelle Reagan) 
September – Florence Woman’s Club (speaker Edward Jones) 
October- Valentino’s (speaker F.F.A Lina Austin) 
November- LB Cantina (speaker Beth Beatty) 
December -  F.U.S.D. (speaker Richard Franco) 

 
 
 
b)  Ribbon Cuttings and Ground Breaking events 
The Chamber coordinated 2 ribbon cuttings: 
January- 3 Monkeys Bake Shop 
February- Family & Senior Insurance  



 

Taco Bell (in Florence Az.)  
  
 
 
c)  Public education of shopping local 
The Chamber, through its newsletter and social media promotes the local businesses 
throughout the year.  During the month of December, the Chamber had a shop local 
promotion, it was a hit!! We had almost 400 entry tickets dropped off at our local 
businesses. We secured almost 30 prizes for the customers.   
 
d) Media coverage to promote local businesses 
The Chamber uses social media and a weekly email newsletter to promote local 
businesses and events.  The Chamber has a Facebook page with 867 “Likes” and a 
Twitter account @GFCC851 with 198 followers.  Posts to LinkedIn are also used for 
marketing.  The Chamber also uses print media, the local newspaper and Shoppers for 
marketing and promotion.  
 
f)  Support of Town Events 
Through email campaigns, newsletters and social media, the Chamber has promoted 
and/or participated in all Town of Florence events, including:   Home Tour, Special 
Election, Road to Country Thunder - Battle of the Bands, 4th of July event, and the Main 
of Lights event.  The Chamber is currently serving on the Home Tour Committee. 
 
g)  Coordinate and Promote two (2) Annual Special Events 
In 2016 the Chamber organized and promoted two events, Casino Night and the 1st 
Annual Second Chance Prom. 
 
 
3.  Florence Visitor Center 

General Operations 



 

Marketing 
4.  McFarland State Historic Park 

General Operations 
Marketing continued... 

The Chamber staffed the Visitor Center and McFarland Park for regular hours 
throughout the year without reducing hours during the summer.  The Florence Visitor 
Center had 7,984.00 visitors during 2016.   
 
We partnered with Arizona Workforce to create an “Access Point” at the Visitor Center 
for job seekers.  In addition to searching job openings, the Access Point provides job 
seekers assistance with resume building, cover letters and interview techniques. 
 
With the shutdown of the Prison Outlet Store by ACI, the Visitor Center is now offering 
prison made items for sale in the gift shop.  Since there has been a change in how the 
gift shop will be stocked, we are projecting a minimum of a 40% increase in revenue.    
 
McFarland Park and the Visitor Center hosted several events in 2016 including 
Chamber Mixers, a Veterans display, Home Tour, along with author Jean Groen 
speaking on the many uses of the Prickly Pear cactus, Hoyt Huckaby gave a lecture on 
“Wassaja Tongues” Phil Rheinhardt spoke on the Peralta Stones. 
 
 
 
5.  List “Town of Florence” as a sponsor for all events 
6.  Membership for “Town of Florence”  
The Town of Florence is provided membership with the Chamber and was listed as a 
sponsor on all major Chamber events, including:  Casino Night events, Second Chance 
Prom as well as Meet the Candidate.   
 
FINANCIAL REPORT 



 

The Chamber’s Balance Sheet and P&L Statement for 2016 are attached to this report.   
 
ANALYSIS OF ALL SPECIAL EVENTS 
 
The first annual Second Chance Prom was held in June,11th 2016 It was a well-
attended event. The Prom was held at The Windmill Winery in Florence.   
 
The Chamber Casino night in July 7/31/16 had a high attendance rate, and many are 
requesting we continue to have this function at the Coolidge/Florence Elks Lodge. 
 
The meet the Candidate forums in August were a major success the first forum was 
held at Sun City Anthem ball room the second one was held at the Windmill Winery in 
Florence. Both events hosted at least a minimum of 100 participants each. 
   
MEMBERSHIP REPORT 
The Chamber currently has 218 members in active status. Of those 218 memberships, 
37 are new members who joined in 2016.  
 
GOALS AND OBJECTIVES FOR UPCOMING YEAR 
In 2017, the Chamber will continue to focus on the goal of growing membership with 
increased emphasis on membership satisfaction and retention.  Sponsorship 
opportunities will continue to be available for major events throughout the year.  The 
Chamber will be offering more services and assistance to the businesses as part of their 
membership package.  We will be encouraging the participation and engagement of the 
members by offering opportunities for members to be involved with committees and 
event planning.   Finally, we will be utilizing local business locations more for the regular 
Chamber events such as the mixers.   
 
 
OTHER NOTEWORTHY EVENTS 



 

In 2015 the Chamber implemented a Scholarship Program to provide scholarships to 
students graduating from the Florence Unified School District.  Three $1,000.00 
scholarships were awarded in 2016.  To qualify for a scholarship, students must be 
accepted to attend an accredited college within the United States, complete 16 hours of 
community service with the Chamber, 10 hours of community service with another local 
business and submit an essay entitled “The Future of Florence Through My Eyes.”   



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
7a. 

MEETING DATE:  February 21, 2017 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/ 
                                     Town Clerk 
 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   
Subject: Kokopelli Moon Saloon’s Extension of Premises                         Meeting Date: February 21, 2017 
Page 1 of 1 

SUBJECT:  Recommendation to the Arizona Department of  
Liquor License and Control on the Kokopelli Moon Saloon’s 
application for a Temporary Extension of Premises Patio 
Permit.   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Recommendation of approval to the Arizona Department of Liquor License and Control 
on the Kokopelli Moon Saloon’s application for a Temporary Extension of Premises 
Patio Permit for the Road to Country Thunder event on April 1, 2017.  
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The Kokopelli Moon Saloon is participating in the Town’s Road to Country Thunder 
event on Saturday, April 1, 2017.   
 

Any business that has an active Arizona Liquor License can apply for a permit that 
temporarily extends the area where alcohol is served beyond the licensed boundaries.  
There is no cost for the temporary extension/patio permit.  Arizona Statutes and 
regulation that apply are: R19-1-311, ARS § 4-244.31, § 4-244.20, and § 4-207.01 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that Council forward a favorable recommendation to the Arizona 
Department of Liquor Licenses and Control. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Application 









 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
7b. 

MEETING DATE:  February 21, 2017 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Lisa Garcia 
                                      Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk 
 
SUBJECT:    Pinal County Historical Society, Inc. 
                     Special Event Liquor License Applications 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject: Pinal Co. Historical Society Special Event Liq. Lic. App                                Meeting Date: February 21, 2017 
Page 1 of 1 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Recommendation to the Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and Control on the Pinal 
County Historical Society, Inc. application for a Special Event Liquor License for the Greater 
Florence Chamber of Commerce Mixer, to be held on April 11, 2017.   
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The Pinal County Historical Society, Inc. submitted an application for their Special Event Liquor 
License for the Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce Mixer to be held at their facility 
located at 716 S. Main Street, on April 11, 2017.  The purpose of a Special Event License is to 
allow charitable, civic, fraternal, political, or religious organizations to sell and serve spirituous 
liquor for consumption as a fundraiser.  Special Event Licenses may be issued for no more 
than a cumulative total of 10 days in a calendar year.  This event will bring their third event for 
the 2017 calendar year.  The fee for a Special Event License is $25 per day, payable to the 
Arizona Department of Liquor License and Control.  The Town of Florence is holding a check 
totaling $25 to forward to the Arizona Department of Liquor License and Control upon Council 
approval.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that Council forward a favorable recommendation to the Arizona 
Department of Liquor Licenses and Control. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Application  











MINUTES OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON TUESDAY, 
JANUARY 3, 2017, AT 6:00 P.M., IN THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 
LOCATED AT 775 N. MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA.   
 
CALL TO ORDER: 
 
Mayor Walter called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 

 
ROLL CALL:     
 
Present:  Walter, Woolridge, Hawkins, Guilin, Anderson, Wall, Larsen. 
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 3, 2017 
Page 1 of 13 

 
MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 
Mayor Walter called for a moment of silence. 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Mayor Walter led the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the Town 
Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual 
Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask staff to 
review a matter raised or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  However, 
members of the Council shall not discuss or take action on any matter during an open 
call to the public unless the matters are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 

 
Mr. Dan Anderson, Vice-President and General Manager, Florence Copper, Inc., stated that the 
air quality permit is on the agenda under Executive Session and presented the following facts 
pertaining to the air quality permit: 

- The air quality permit for Florence Copper has consistently been in place for 
approximately 30 years.  

- The current permit controls such things as road dust, the potential emissions created 
onsight from work vehicles. 

- The air quality permits, like that of Florence Copper, routinely carry expiration dates in 
order for regulatory agencies to reassess environmental impacts, even for projects not 
yet in operations such as Florence Copper.  

- The air quality permit is being renewed and at the appropriate time and in accordance 
with the law.  

- A small group of project opponents are incorrectly claiming that Pinal County cannot 
renew its air quality permit because of alleged application timing error made over five 
years ago. 
 There was no error at that time and it has been confirmed by Pinal County’s permit 

section. 
 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 3, 2017 
Page 2 of 13 

Mr. Anderson stated that he wanted the Council to know of the inconsistency and inaccuracy, 
and know that the everyone can agree when considering this, the elected officials have access 
to reliable information based on facts.  He offered his assistance to the Town Council so that 
they may have the latest and factual information on the Florence Copper Project available to 
them.   
 
Mr. Anderson stated that the State of Arizona and the United States Environmental Protection 
Agency have both issued the final permit and approvals required by Florence Copper to proceed 
with its project test facility, he hopes to have the opportunity to work constructively alongside the 
Council.    
 
PRESENTATIONS  
 
Presentation by Dennis Smith, Executive Director, Maricopa Association of 
Governments.  
 
Mr. Dennis Smith, Executive Director, Maricopa Association of Governments (MAG) provided a 
presentation, in which he outlined the following: 

- Regional Council Members 
- History of MAG, its formation and designations 

 Formed in 1967 
 Co-managed by the League of Arizona Cities and Towns 
 Have Council –Manager form of government 
 All cities and towns in Maricopa County are members 
 27 cities and towns 
 3 Native American communities 
 2 counties (Maricopa and Pinal) 

- How they operate 
 Work regionally 
 Are not a government; are a 501(c)4 non-profit 
 Are about governance and not government 
 Local governments represent the greatest resource for regional planning in Arizona: 
 Provide the local voice on planning  
 Partner with state and federal government 
 Offer leadership on decisions affecting local stakeholders 

 MAG Committee Structure 
 Regional Council 

o Comprised of Mayors 
 Management Committee 

o Comprised of City, Town, and County Managers 
o Technical Advisory Committees 

 Are a political organization that does planning that is accountable for local 
government 

 Believe in committee process, and is indicative of all the MAG committees 
 Believes strength is in local government 

- Core Planning Roles Required by Federal Transportation Law 
 20 year transportation plan 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 3, 2017 
Page 3 of 13 

 Prepare a five year Transportation Improvement Plan (TIF) that includes all 
transportation projects in the region.  

 Conformity Analysis for the MAG Transportation Improvement Program  
 Runs all transportation projects through all the models and ensure that the 

environmental isn’t being negatively impacted 
- 80% of Arizona’s Population Growth through 2050 in Phoenix Metropolitan Statistical 

Area  
 Population estimates and projections are done for Maricopa and Pinal Counties 
 For Maricopa County in 2016: 4.55 Million (66.6% of sales tax for all of the State of 

Arizona) 
 For Maricopa County in 2050: 7.73 Million (71.5% of sales tax for all of the State of 

Arizona) 
 The three largest counties in Arizona are Maricopa, Pima, and Pinal 

- MAG Travel Demand Model Includes All of Pinal County 
 Population information is fed in to the transportation model  
 The model is called Activity Based Model and is considered to be the best in the world   
 Can determine where the traffic is coming from and where it is going to. 

- MAG Prepares Air Quality Plans for the Nonattainment Areas in Pinal County 
 The Plan sets emissions budgets for the different pollutants that are displayed in tons 
 The air quality plans must fit into the transportation plan. 
 Florence’s air quality plan was previously completed by the State. 
 Governor asked MAG to do the air quality plans for Pinal County’s PM10 
 Currently Pinal County is considered to be at a moderate level 
 If it goes to a serious level, it will be more difficult for construction and agriculture 

in Pinal County 
o Hidden Valley monitor has gone off over 30 times 

 Attainment deadline is 2018 
- Environmental Programs 
- Transportation Best Practices 

 Regional business at the table 
 Transportation Policy Committee 

o Created by the Regional Council, later recognized in state law 
o 23 Members 

- MAG members  
- Central City  
- 7 largest cities 
- Geographically balanced 
- 1 Native American Indian Community member 
- 1 Maricopa County Board of Supervisors member 
- CTOC 
- ADOT 

o Six business representatives 
- Must be regional in nature 
- Transit representative 
- Freight representative 
- Construction representative 

- Several freeways opening 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 3, 2017 
Page 4 of 13 

- Waze listed Phoenix as the best driving experience in the world. 
 Waze is the world's largest community-based traffic and navigation app 

- Road Safety Assessments (RSAs) 
 A formal assessment of road safety performance 
 A proactive approach 
 Multidisciplinary Team:  
 Law Enforcement Officer 
 Safety Planner 
 Road/Traffic Engineer 
 Human Factors Expert 

 An RSA report is completed in 12 weeks 
- Traffic Signal Optimization Program (TSOP) 

 Provides technical assistance to local agencies 
 Build technical capacity of agency staff 
 Assistance in addressing complex traffic signal timing issues 
 Utilizes MAG On-Call Consultants 
 No cost to local agencies 

- MAG Specifications & Details for Public Works Construction Committee 
- Building Code Committee Activities 

 Building code amendments & standards 
 Updates & standard amendments of ICC codes 
 Review of new building materials & construction methods 
 Digital plan review best practices 
 Approved truss manufacturers list 

- Human Services 
- MAG 9-1-1 Program 

 Established by Local Governments - September 9, 1985 
- Community Emergency Notification System (Reverse 9-1-1) 

 Launched in January 2004 
 Emergency notifications for: 
 Imminent threats to life or property 
 Disaster notifications 
 Endangered children or elderly 
 Evacuation notices 

- Transportation: To What End? Diversify the Economy! 
- Map-21 Title 23, U.S.C. Sec. 134 Metropolitan Planning 

 (1) In general. - The metropolitan planning process for a metropolitan planning 
area under this section shall provide for consideration of projects and strategies 
that will (A) support the economic vitality of the metropolitan area, especially by 
enabling global competitiveness, productivity, and efficiency 

- Overview of the MAG Economic Development Committee 
 Formed in October 2010 
 Role  
 Develop an opportunity-specific and action-oriented plan that fosters and 

advances infrastructure in the MAG Region, especially transportation infrastructure 
that would further economic development opportunities  



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 3, 2017 
Page 5 of 13 

 Membership – 35 Total Members 
 19 local government agencies 
 15 business representatives  
 1 representative from the Arizona Department of Transportation. 

- EDC Focus areas include: 
 Transportation 
 Mexico Initiatives 
 Employment 
 Education 
 Economic Recovery 
 Canadian Impact 

- Megapolitan 2000 
- Megapolitan 2050 scenario 
- Joint Planning Advisory Council 

 “Establish a policy to improve the condition and performance of the national freight 
network to provide the foundation for the United States to compete in the global 
economy and achieve goals related to economic competitiveness and efficiency…” 

- Regional Vehicle Travel Demand 
 More than 314,000 vehicles cross the Maricopa – Pinal County border on an average 

week day. 
 In 2030, an estimated 522,000 vehicles are projected to cross the Maricopa - Pinal 

County border on an average week day. 
- North-South Corridor – the opportunity 

 Highly Educated Workforce 
 26% Bachelor’s Degree 
 13% Graduate or Professional Degree 
 38% in Management, Business, Engineering, Science, and Education Occupations 
 10% in Healthcare Occupations 

 Connectivity with Phoenix Mesa Gateway and ASU PolyTech 
 Manufacturing & Logistics Opportunities 

- Online Mapping and Data       
 Enhanced (platform independent) 
 Online mapping and analysis tool 

- Planners & Economic Development Partnership Exchange 
- Read On Arizona & MAG Unveil Early Literacy Viewer  
- ARI-SON Megaregion 
- Fiscal Services 

 
Mayor Walter stated that there are several committees that Council can participate on and 
asked that they contact either Mr. Billingsley or her if they are interested. 
 
CONSENT: All items on the consent agenda will be handled by a single vote as part of 
the consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public objects at the 
time the agenda item is called.  
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 3, 2017 
Page 6 of 13 

Recommendation to the Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and Control to approve 
the Florence Coolidge Elk Lodge’s applications for a Special Event Liquor License for 
events to be held on January 18,  February 17, and March 17, 2017. (Lisa Garcia) 
 
Recommendation to the Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and Control to approve 
Caliente Casa de Sol’s applications for a Special Event Liquor License for events to be 
held on February 15 18, 21, 22, 24 and 26, 2017. (Lisa Garcia) 
 
Approval of the Intergovernmental Agreement with the Industrial Development Authority 
of the Town of Florence, Inc., for use of the Suter House. (Bryan Hughes) 
 
Appointment of the Town Manager as the Mayor’s Designee and the Town Human 
Resources Director as the Lay Member of the Fire Profit Sharing – Pension & Trust Fund 
Board. (Scott Barber) 
 
Approval of accepting the register of demands ending November 30, 2016, in the amount 
of $1,380,272.23.   
 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Councilmember Anderson, and carried to 
approve the Consent Agenda, as written.  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Approval of the redesign of the intersection of State Route 79 and State Route 79B by 
executing the attached letter from the Arizona Department of Transportation. (Chris 
Salas) 
 
Mr. Chris Salas, Public Work Director, provided a presentation in which he outlined the 
following: 

- Introduction 
 Design and construction of the project are listed in ADOT’s Tentative 2014-2018 

Five-Year Transportation Facilities Construction Program. 
 Project assessment was completed in May 2013. 
 Plans are currently in Stage III (preliminary NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION) 

- Crash data 
 During a five-year period, from January 1, 2004, to December 31, 2008, a total of 

41 collisions were reported within the project limits. 
 These include 4 incapacitating injury, 7 non-incapacitating injury, 6 possible injury, 

24 non-injury collision, and 1 fatal. 
 80% of the collisions occurred during daylight hours. 
 25 out of 41collisions at the study intersection were right-angle collisions. 
 Based on ADOT’s crash analysis and field review of this intersection, it appears 

that the crashes are similar in nature: most of the violations are either failure to 
yield the right-of-way or ran stop sign; all occurred during daylight or at dusk during 
dry, clear weather. 

- Project Scope 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 3, 2017 
Page 7 of 13 

 In addition to considering a No Build alternative, two “build” alternatives for the 
intersection reconfiguration were developed and evaluated in the Initial PA (May 
2010): 
 A three-leg roundabout located north of the existing intersection 
 A T-intersection located on northbound SR 79 

- Has reviewed the map that depicts the construction that ADOT is considering, which is 
included in the plan set:  
 Some areas will remain status quo 
 Other areas will be demolished  
 Other areas will have improvements such as pavement width at the intersection to 

allow for left hand turn lanes and right turn lanes to separate the movements. 
 Turn count information was not available 
 Traffic count was done  

- Conclusion 
 While both a T-intersection and a roundabout were assessed, only the T-

intersection can be built without severe and substantial environmental impacts.   
 Due to the funding type of the Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP), 

ADOT has stated the project needs to be built as a T-intersection or the project will 
be discontinued. 

 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the Towns requested that ADOT take a serious look at the safety of 
this intersection.  ADOT performed a safety assessment at the intersection and the safety 
assessment showed that improvements were needed.  Signage and the intersection were 
changed on an interim basis with the thought that safety funds would be utilized to construct 
the improvements.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that ADOT has determined that the best use of their safety funds (HSIP) 
is to build a T-intersection at that location. ADOT sent the Town a letter asking if Florence 
concurs with them, and if so, Council would need to sign off on the letter.  If Council does not 
concur, funding will not be available and there will be no improvements.     
 
Councilmember Hawkins inquired the following: 

- What would happen to the abandoned roadways 
- Will the property be turned over to the Town 
- Will ADOT maintain the right-of-ways even though there is no longer a road on the 

property 
 
Ms. Salas stated that he has the plan set and it does not show any dedication of right-of-way 
to the Town.  The assumption is when the work is done, ADOT will pulverize the road and 
use it for the base of the new part of the construction and the land will be seeded.  
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the land will be rehabilitated and the existing asphalt will be 
removed.  The property will be made to look like existing desert.  ADOT has a board that 
manages all of their properties and Florence may have the ability to purchase the land from 
ADOT for market value.  If Council chooses, staff can move forward to determine if the land 
has any value to the Town.   
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 3, 2017 
Page 8 of 13 

Councilmember Hawkins inquired how much land ADOT owns. 
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the map in the plan set shows the parcel boundaries and explained 
that there are private parcels of land within the depicted area.   
 
Councilmember Larsen inquired if the property east of SR 79 is public property. 
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that part of the property is CAP and there is private land adjacent to 
there.  He stated that there are challenges with properties within that area.   
 
Councilmember Anderson inquired if the intersection will have turn lanes.  
 
Mr. Salas stated that there will be turn lanes on SR 79B, left turn eastbound to north bound 
and a right turn east bound to southbound.  There will not be a northbound to westbound left 
turn from SR 79 to SR 79B.   
 
Mr. Anderson stated that there should be a turn lane for convenience and inquired if ADOT 
can be convinced to add a turn lane.   
 
Councilmember Larsen agreed that there should be a left turn lane at the intersection.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that staff has been concerned with the solution and what has been 
scoped to the point that staff requested a meeting to discuss the feasibility work that was 
done because Florence was not provided a copy.  Staff wanted to point out the growth that it 
is projecting to the south of this intersection.  He stated that the information was shared and 
ADOT brought several experts to talk to the Town staff at that meeting and ultimately the 
acceptance letter with what they are offering was forwarded to the Town.   
 
Councilmember Hawkins inquired if there would be a stoplight installed. 
 
Mr. Billingsley replied that there would not a stoplight installed. 
 
Mayor Walter inquired if MAG would be able to provide some assistance with their feasibility 
studies. 
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that MAG could do an assessment and would assess over the last five 
years of analysis.  He stated that ADOT came up with this solution because there are sizable 
cultural resources that exist in the area and are trying to limit the project to what has already 
been disturbed.       
 
Mayor Walter inquired if there will be any funding required of the Town of Florence or if the 
project will be paid for entirely by ADOT. 
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that it is an ADOT project and they would pay for the project.   
 
Mr. Salas stated that they would have to widen the road by half a mile to incorporate a left 
hand turn lane.  It is significant to add the turn lane and there are no issues with people 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 3, 2017 
Page 9 of 13 

making left hand turns, collision wise.  He stated that they can request the information from 
ADOT that was used by them to make their determination.  
 
Councilmember Anderson stated that once the intersection is installed they can request a 
traffic light at a later time.   
 
Mr. Salas stated that the Town just purchased a turning count board and one of the ideas is 
to do its own counts so staff can go back with the information to show that a signal is 
warranted.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that if the Town completes a signal warrant study, per the Manual on 
Unit Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD), and it shows that the count meets one or more 
warrants, the Town has the ability to go to ADOT and they will participate in that project.  He 
stated that it does not mean that they will pay for the project in its entirety but they will 
participate.  
 
Councilmember Wall commented that the State is losing a significant distance of road 
maintenance, which will save them money.  She inquired about connectivity between Cheryl 
Road and Sunset Road if the area of SR 79B is demolished.   
 
Mr. Salas stated that connectivity will be made.   
 
On motion of Councilmember Anderson, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried to 
approve the redesign of the intersection of State Route 79 and State Route 79B by 
executing the attached letter from the Arizona Department of Transportation. 

 
TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT 

Mr. Billingsley stated that he received a letter from the Federal Emergency Management Agency 
(FEMA), dated December 27, 2016, in which the letter constitutes a Letter of Map Revision 
(LOMR) determine document for Anthem Merrill Ranch Walker Butte Wash and Tributary A for 
the Walker Butte Wash, which are the two floodplains in the area.  He stated that there have 
been some concerns about mapping and people’s property staying within the floodplain that are 
located within Anthem at Merrill Ranch.  Staff has been working with FEMA, Pulte Homes, and 
Baxter Design Group, towards this resolution.  The draft map and the Flood Insurance Study 
(FIS) Information including profile is now a public document and have been provided to the 
Town.  He stated that it will be advertised per federal law in the January 5 and 12, 2017 
Florence Reminder and Blade Tribune edition and the federal register.  Comments are welcome 
and will be accepted for 90 days, which is the appeal period.     

Mr. Billingsley explained what the 90 day appeal period means and what information FEMA will 
consider.  He stated that the level of information is not received by FEMA; the amended maps 
will become effective May 12, 2017 following the 90 day appeal period.  He stated that Town 
staff has already began reviewing the documents to ensure consistency and to ensure that 
Council’s request of all residential property be removed from the floodplain as part of the 
analysis.  The preliminary results are looking good and he will keep Council apprised of anything 
to the contrary.       



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 3, 2017 
Page 10 of 13 

DEPARTMENT REPORTS   

Community Development 
Courts 
Fire 
Library 
Parks and Recreation 
Police 
Public Works 
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that approximately eight years ago, ADOT started a project 
from Florence to Oracle Junction and installed wider culverts that will eventually split the 
highway.  He inquired when this will be done because they will be disturbing the land.    
 
Mr. Salas stated the work that can be performed under the HSIP is very limited.  It can only be 
for the benefit of safety and cannot do things for future growth.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the Town has had four separate meetings with ADOT and they have 
discussed all of the projects that they plan to do, which includes: 

- SR79 an SR79B intersection 
- Diversion Dam 
- Bridge decking 
- SR287 and SR79B  
 

Mr. Billingsley stated that they have never discussed any improvements to SR 79 from Florence 
to Oracle Junction and there is no money in the current five year plan for widening SR 79.  They 
will not be able to use any federal funds until they have a NEPA decision document that 
mitigates for any significant impact.  He stated that he will inquire about the widening of SR 79 
at the next meeting.   
 
Mr. Salas stated that ADOT is aware of the Johnson Estates project that is in the area and the 
impact to SR79 and SR 79B.   
 
Mayor Walter asked that Mr. Billingsley also inquire about the widening of Hunt Highway.   
 
Vice-Mayor Woolridge inquired if there was a procedure of notifying the businesses of the New 
Year’s Eve Block Party and if all businesses were notified.  She stated that she had received a 
few complaints. 
 
Mr. Bryan Hughes, Parks and Recreation Director, stated that there is a procedure in place and 
they missed a few businesses with regards to the notification of the New Year’s Eve Block 
Party.  They are working on remedies to avoid future mishaps. 
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that he is aware of the information received by Council from the individual.  
He stated that one individual was not properly noticed and one member of the executive staff 
met with the individual prior to the event.  He stated that there is also a meeting scheduled with 
the individual this week to discuss what could have been done different or different ways in 
which they can connect.   



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 3, 2017 
Page 11 of 13 

 
Mr. Billingsley stated that he tasked Mr. Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst, to create a 
detailed protocol to disseminate information to all businesses that have business licenses in 
Town, and not only businesses on Main Street.  He stated that the Town also has businesses 
on SR79 and he had an opportunity to meet with one of the business owners and they would 
like direct notification as well. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that the Town advertised in the local newspaper as well as the 
Casa Grande Dispatch.    
 
The Department Reports were received and filed.  
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
 
There were no public comments.  
 
CALL TO THE COUNCIL – CURRENT EVENTS ONLY 
 
Councilmember Larsen asked staff to re-assess the signs and lighting that surrounds the 
schools because she has heard of the concerns regarding traffic issues and speeding in those 
areas.    
 
Councilmember Wall wished everyone a Happy New Year and is looking forward to 2017. 
 
Councilmember Anderson stated that he shares Councilmember Larsen’s concerns regarding 
the traffic issues and speeding in the school zones.  He stated that Council attempted to budget 
for improvements around the school areas; however, there were not any funds available.  He 
said that the estimate to install flashing lights would cost approximately $12,000 for the Anthem 
K-8 and Florence K-8 schools.   
 
Councilmember Anderson thanked the Public Works Department for the traffic signal installation 
at the Attaway and Hunt Highway intersection.   
 
Councilmember Hawkins thanked all of the Town staff for working the New Year’s Eve Block 
Party event, regardless of the weather conditions.  
 
Mayor Walter stated that Pinal County must approve the air quality permit for Florence Copper, 
Inc.  She stated that the Council is asking its citizens to attend the Pinal County Board of 
Supervisors Meeting to show their support in denying the permit.  The hearing will be held on 
January 4, 2017.   
 
 ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
An Executive Session will be held during the Council Meeting for the purpose of 
discussions or consultations with designated representatives of the public body and/or 
legal counsel pursuant to A.R.S. Sections 38-431.03 (A)(1), (A)(3), (A)(4), and (A)(7) and to 
consider its position and instruct its representatives and/or attorneys regarding: 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 3, 2017 
Page 12 of 13 

Pinal County Air Quality Control District Permit Class II Renewal, Permit No. B31219.000, 
Florence Copper, Inc. Update. 
 
Town’s position and instruct its attorneys in regard to pending litigation in Maricopa 
County Superior Court:  Town of Florence v. Florence Copper, Inc. CV 2015-000325. 

 
Town’s position and instruct its attorneys in regard to Arizona Department of 
Environmental Quality proceedings and related Water Quality Appeals Board Case No. 
16-002. 

 
The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 9 (“EPA”), Class III Underground 
Injection Control (“UIC”) Permit, No. R9UIC-AZ3-FY11-1, issued to Florence Copper, Inc. 
for an In-Situ Copper Production Test Facility (“PTF”), along with comments and the 
EPA’s response to comments. 

 
Request for assistance from the Arizona Ombudsman-Citizens’ Aide office regarding 
Arizona Department of Environmental Quality actions. 

 
Deed restrictions and related work on the Cuen building. 
 
Annual evaluation of the Town Clerk/Deputy Town Manager. 

 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and carried to 
adjourn to Executive Session.  
 
ADJOURN FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Wall, and carried to adjourn 
from Executive Session.  

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Anderson, and carried to 
adjourn the meeting at 8:38 pm.  
 
 
________________________________ 
Tara Walter, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 3, 2017 
Page 13 of 13 

I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town Council 
meeting held on January 3, 2017, and that the meeting was duly called to order and that a 
quorum was present. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
  

 



MINUTES OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON FRIDAY, 
JANUARY 13, 2017, AT 1:00 P.M., IN THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 
LOCATED AT 775 N. MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA.   
 
CALL TO ORDER: 
 
Mayor Walter called the meeting to order at 1:04 pm. 
 
ROLL CALL:     
 
Present:  Walter, Woolridge, Hawkins, Guilin, Anderson, Wall, Larsen. 
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 13, 2017 
Page 1 of 8 

 
MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 
Mayor Walter called for a moment of silence. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Mayor Walter led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the Town 
Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual 
Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask staff to 
review a matter raised or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  However, 
members of the Council shall not discuss or take action on any matter during an open 
call to the public unless the matters are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 
 
There were no public comments.  
 
PRESENTATIONS BY THE ADHOC CITIZENS ADVISORY GROUP TO THE STRATEGIC 
PLAN.  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of setting a date for the Florence Town Council’s 
Strategic Planning Retreat. 
 
Mr. Mark Eckhoff, Community Development Director, gave a brief overview about the Citizens 
Advisory Group and presented the following: 
- Strategic Plan Citizens Advisory Group introductions 

 Betty Wheeler, Florence Resident 
 Guy Rankin, Florence Resident and Farm Owner, Rankin Farms 
 Harold Christ, Florence Resident and Business Owner, Windmill Winery 
 Henry Padilla, Florence Resident 
 Jim Tchida, Florence Resident 
 Peter Koulouris, Florence Resident and Business Owner, Mount Athos Restaurant 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 13, 2017 
Page 2 of 8 

 Mike Shoppell, Florence Resident 
 Russell Clark, Florence Resident 
 Project Facilitators: 
 Mark Eckhoff, Town of Florence Community Development Director 
 Karalea Cox, Planning Facilitator, Common Sense Facilitation Consultant 

- Overview of Town’s Strategic Planning Process 
 A Strategic Plan, and the process of developing such, will help the Town clarify exactly 

where we are today and where we’d like to be in the coming years. The Plan will work 
concurrently with other documents, such as the General Plan, as a guide book of sorts 
making sure that all decisions made and all funds spent are heading the Town in the 
agreed upon direction. As such, this will assist the Town Manager and all Department 
Managers in their day to day work and ensure, to the greatest extent possible, that staff, 
elected leaders and Town citizens are working towards a mutually agreed upon vision.   

- Summary of Our Process (key steps) 
 Direction from Town Council (March 2016) 
 Scope of work established 
 Project Facilitator hired 
 Extensive stakeholder and public outreach 
 Surveys, meetings, interviews, etc. 
 Citizen’s Advisory Group established (meetings) 
 Review of plans 
 Data analysis 
 Citizen’s Advisory Group Presentation to Council (January 13, 2017) 
 Strategic Plan Town Council Retreat 
 Development of draft Strategic Plan and review process 
 Adoption of Strategic Plan and implementation  

 
Ms. Karalea Cox, Planning Facilitator, Common Sense Facilitation Consultant, continued the 
presentation, in which she discussed the following: 
- Review of Key Findings from Town’s strategic planning process 

 Who they reached 
 Council Member Interviews – 5 
 Candidates Interviews – 4 
 Stakeholder Interviews - 55 
 Staff Interviews – 4  
 Held two Public Forums – 76   
 Citizen’s Advisory Group – 11 
 Community Survey – 749      
 High School Student Survey – 144 

 Community Survey Demographics 
 55% over the age of 61 
 52% Males 
 46% reside in “Anthem” 
 12% reside in “Core” 
   8% reside in Parkside (within Anthem) 
 43% have lived in Florence three to seven years 
 35% have lived in Florence eight years or more 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 13, 2017 
Page 3 of 8 

 21% have children living at home 
 Ranking Community Factors - Highest 
 Your neighborhood as a place to live – 3.55 
 Florence as a place to retire – 3.18 
 Florence as a place to live – 2.80 
 Overall quality of life – 2.71 
 Quality of the natural environment – 2.61  

 Ranking Community Factors – Lowest 
 Florence as a place to start a business – 1.02 
 Employment opportunities – 1.05 
 Florence as a place to work – 1.23 
 Educational opportunities – 1.43 
 Shopping opportunities – 1.46 

 Analyzing the data 
 What we value 

 Small town feel 
 The safety of the community 
 Our history 
 Rural, agricultural culture 
 Good schools 
 Strategic partnerships 
 Natural environment  
 Good parks 

 What We Have to Leverage 
 Friendly, safe community 
 Geographic location 
 Climate 
 Citizen capital/expertise 
 History 
 Economic base (government services and agriculture) 
 Regional events 

 What needs to be addressed 
 Clear identity and purpose (vision) for Florence 
 Council outreach, communication and promotion 
 Improve Council relationships 
 Increase support of economic development and additional job opportunities 
 Florence as a place to start a business 
 Lack of amenities/places to go and do/opportunities 
 Keep town core clean and attractive 
 Community events and activities 
 Roads and highways 

- What is in the future? 
 Strong, vibrant business community? 
 Enhanced transportation corridors? 
 A façade improvement fund? 
 Leadership Academy? 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 13, 2017 
Page 4 of 8 

 Improved communication/relationships with Council? 
 More events: triathlon, rodeos, softball tournaments, car shows, etc.? 
 Completion of the Territory Square master plan? 
 Florence Copper issue resolved? 
 A well‐developed Strategic Plan with benchmarks and accountability? 
 Economic growth/job opportunities? 
 Branding and marketing? 

- Key Strategic Plan Priority Areas Identified by the Citizen’s Advisory Group 
 Communication – A Key Priority 
 Encourage respectful dialogue and communication between residents, Town staff and 

Town Council that bridges geographical distances and promotes community 
cohesiveness between neighborhoods, informs the public and promotes the 
community. 
 Who, what, where, when, how? 

 Establish an open dialogue with all parties. 
 Be open to the various and emerging forums of communication. 
 No problem is too large. 
 Link our neighborhoods with assistance from Town staff and possibly the Citizen’s 

Advisory Group. 
 Rotate locations of Council meetings. 
 Create traveling focus groups to improve upon communications from all Town 

departments. 
 Question and discussion sessions with elected officials and Town Manager. 
 Open forums with Federal, State, County and local elected representatives. 
 Consider formation of a Business Development Council. 
 More engagement and interaction with the local Chamber of Commerce.  
 Roundtable discussions with various agencies (ADOT, ADEQ, etc.) and major 

employers (Corrections, School District, National Guard, Safeway, etc.) 
 Use of the internet – keep the Town’s webpage current, relevant and useful. 
 Consider the development of a newsletter that is mailed to residents and stakeholders 

and includes a calendar of events and important contacts.  
 Can be placed on webpage and sent electronically too. 
 Increase positive newspaper coverage.  
 Promote the positive and our accomplishments. 
 Proactively use social media, particularly to reach 25-40 year olds. 
 Cooperate with local HOA’s and community organizations in an effort to share and 

distribute news and information. 
 
Each Citizen Advisory Group member provided a brief background on themselves and 
presented a portion of the presentation, in which the following was discussed: 

 Vision 
 F = Fun 
 L = Loving 
 O = Original 
 R = Rambunctious 
 E = Exciting 
 N = No Other 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 13, 2017 
Page 5 of 8 

 C = Charming 
 E = Energetic 

 Council needs to decide where they want the Town to be in the next five, ten and future 
years. 

 Community vitality 
 Vitality=Vibrancy=Desirability=Quality of Life 
 Establish a brand/image and marketing promotion program. 
 Enhance facades on vacant historic buildings. 
 Beautify blighted homes and clean up vacant lots. 
 Partner with developers and contractors  
 Core “infill” progress. 
 Double the activities and events with focus on all age groupings. 
 Fiscal stability facilitates opportunities. 
 Comprehensively address all needs with overall goal of making Florence a highly 

desirable community.  
 Economic prosperity 
 Location, location, location… 
 Sun Corridor 
 Central 
 Highways 
 Land 
 Airports 
 Rail 
 County Seat 
 Public Sector employment 
 Recognize and build off of our accomplishments. 
 A small community with established core services and amenities. 
 Services, history, tourism, conveniences, etc.  
 Moving Forward: Joint Efforts Help Create Economic Development Opportunities 
 Collaboration and Teamwork 

 Downtown Gilbert, Arizona example 
 Water 
 Wastewater 
 Energy 
 Infrastructure 
 Data/Electricity 
 Image/Perception 

 Blight and abandoned properties 
 Branding and Marketing 

 Sell Arizona, the Sun Corridor, Pinal County AND Florence 
 Understand and promote our assets 

 Leadership 
 From the survey results 

 Lack of a collective vision 
 Staff and residents lack understanding of Council’s vision 
 Perceived lack of desire for business development or economic growth 

 Recommendations for leadership, encouragement and direction  



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 13, 2017 
Page 6 of 8 

 Internally 
 Develop 5-year vision statement and strategic plan with management staff 
 Set tone – Mission doesn’t change; how its communicated does 
 Re-energize the Leadership Academy targeting 25-40 year olds 

 Externally 
 Communicate plans to community stakeholders 
 Listen to the needs and expectations of community organizations 
 Meet with current employers at corporate level (Pinal County, Corrections 

employers, National Guard, etc.) 
 Develop partnerships with State and Regional government entities – be at the 

table. 
 Transportation and infrastructure 
 Not an amenity, but a necessity. 

 Transportation is critical for sustained and positive residential and economic 
growth 

 Hunt Highway and other major corridors 
 Coordination with County, MAG and ADOT 
 Paths and Trails for connectivity 
 Transit  

 Must think short-term, mid-term and long term 
 What can we do now? 
 What can we plan for? 
 What can we influence? 

 Promote the ADOT North-South Corridor and Passenger Rail Corridor projects 
 Have a strong voice at ADOT 
 Regional Collaboration 

 Moving people is huge (roads, highways, etc.)… What happens when they get here? 
 Be prepared to serve new growth and to promote and serve economic development. 
 Water, wastewater, electricity, gas, alternative energy, conservation, etc. 

 
Mayor Walter stated that measurement is necessary for improvement for the Town’s success.   
 
Vice-Mayor Woolridge provided the following comments: 
- The work that the group has done is invaluable. 
- Council needs to have the feedback in order for the Town to move forward and to progress 

in the right direction.   
- Water is invaluable and the Town needs to control it if possible.   
- The infrastructure for wastewater is an expensive process and the Town needs to control 

this.     
- Important to have the youth involved. 
- Her vision includes a Jr. Town Council so that the teens can feel like they are part of the 

community.  The Jr. Town Council can shadow the Council and bring new and fresh ideas.  
The youth are our part of our community and will be our future leaders. 

- There is lack of transportation.  The partnership with Coolidge provides some type of 
transportation but would like to see our transportation opportunities grow. 

 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 13, 2017 
Page 7 of 8 

Discussion occurred on the following topics: 
- Engaging more with the citizens 
- Ideas on how to bring people to the meetings 
- Communication 
- Shopping and retail 
- Quarterly meetings to discuss Florence’s future   
- Garner support from Arizona Department of Transportation 
- Partnering with Pinal County’s economic team  
- Making Florence more business friendly 
- Education on Town’s policies and regulations 
- Partnering with other organizations  
- Do a sourcing study for prisons 
- Chamber member retention 
- The need for an industrial park. 
- Create a fun atmosphere for people to enjoy. 
 
Ms. Cox stated that the residents love Florence and love living here.  The students love their 
school and have tremendous pride of their school.  She stated that the next steps include a 
retreat with the Town Council to develop a draft plan; review the plan; adopt the plan and 
implement the plan. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Guilin, seconded by Councilmember Wall, and carried to set the 
date of Friday, February 3, 2017, at noon for the Town Council’s Strategic Planning Retreat.  
 
TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT 

Mr. Brent Billingsley, Town Manager, thanked everyone who has contributed to the Strategic 
Planning process.  

Mr. Billingsley stated that the Town needs to figure what the mojo is that unites the parents, 
children and the school within the Florence Unified School District.  The Town needs to mirror 
what that mojo which is the pride and unity to the Town.   

CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
 
Mr. Tom Rankin, Florence Resident, stated that the topics discussed were positive; however, 
some were unrealistic.  He discussed the cost for the Territory Square project.  He stated that 
when you are talking about a strategic plan you need to ensure that the entire municipality is 
included.  He discussed the benefits of having the North South Corridor in close proximity.   
 
Mr. Rankin stated that it is important to get citizen participation to attend the Council meetings.  
He stated the Gopher Pride is an integral part of the community.     
 
CALL TO THE COUNCIL – CURRENT EVENTS ONLY 
 
Councilmember Larsen appreciated all the work that has gone into the Strategic Plan so far and 
is excited to see Florence grow.   
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 13, 2017 
Page 8 of 8 

Councilmember Wall stated that she is an optimist and there isn’t anything that should be 
removed from what was discussed.  It is important to have a “can do” attitude.  She stated that it 
is important to consider short-term, mid-term and long term goals.  It is important to involve 
everyone in the community in the process. 
 
Councilmember Anderson stated that many great ideas were presented at this meeting.   
 
Councilmember Guilin stated that it was great to see everyone come together and present as 
one community.   
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that it took a lot of work to compile what the committee did and 
he appreciates their commitment and dedication.   
 
Vice-Mayor Woolridge stated that she is impressed with the committee’s work.  She proposed 
that the committee stay in place and continue on after the Strategic Plan is in place.  They have 
provided an invaluable service and it is impressive that they have given up their time.  They can 
help propel the Town forward. 
 
Ms. Woolridge stated that she had family come from Dallas, Texas, and thanked Mr. Christ for 
opening up his business to her family.  They were impressed with the Windmill Winery. 
 
Mayor Walter expressed gratitude for the work that the committee has done.   
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Vice-Mayor Woolridge, and carried to 
adjourn the meeting at 4:12 p.m.  
 
 
________________________________ 
Tara Walter, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town Council 
meeting held on January 13, 2017, and that the meeting was duly called to order and that a 
quorum was present. 
 
  
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 



MINUTES OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON TUESDAY, 
JANUARY 17, 2017, AT 6:00 P.M., IN THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 
LOCATED AT 775 N. MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA.   
 
CALL TO ORDER: 
 
Mayor Walter called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 

 
ROLL CALL:     
 
Present:  Walter, Woolridge, Hawkins, Anderson, Wall, Larsen. 
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 17, 2017 
Page 1 of 14 

Absent:  Guilin 
 
MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 
Vice-Mayor Woolridge called for a moment of silence. 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Vice-Mayor Woolridge led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the Town 
Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual 
Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask staff to 
review a matter raised or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  However, 
members of the Council shall not discuss or take action on any matter during an open 
call to the public unless the matters are properly noticed for discussion and legal 
action. 

 
Mr. H. Douglas Carlson, Florence Resident, stated that based on the Consent Agenda items 
7h, I, j, and k, it appears that the Town wants to partner with Southwest Value Partners on a 
new round of lawsuits against Florence Copper.  He stated that Southwest Value Partners is a 
San Diego, California, company that makes money flipping land investments.  They have 
purchased a large track of land west of Florence Copper and for their own self-interest, have 
been opposing Florence Copper ever since.  He stated that the company does not employ a 
single resident of Pinal County, has not given any community grants and has no intention in 
investing in the community once they have made money selling their land.   
 
Mr. Carlson stated that his message to the Council is that Southwest Value Partners wasted 
their own money filing frivolous law suits.  There is no need for the Town of Florence to join 
them and use the taxpayers’ dollars.  As a resident of Florence, he objects to any funds being 
spent on a partisan, political issue.  He stated that money could be better spent on historic 
heritage, strengthening our Chamber of Commerce, salaries, or taking care of the new library 
and water park instead of on Florence Copper.  He inquired how much has been spent fighting 
Florence Copper to date.  It was said that over $1 million has been spent, but others have said 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 17, 2017 
Page 2 of 14 

that it has only been $500,000.  He stated that it seems to him that some would like to hide the 
exact amount being spent opposing Florence Copper by placing the funds in some obscure 
line item.  Some want to oppose Florence Copper, let them unite with Southwest Value 
Partners and fund their own political action group for that purpose.   
 
Mr. Carlson stated that he believes it is inappropriate to use municipal money to fight a very 
partisan issue when many in this area support Florence Copper’s development in the Town.  If 
the Town Council sees opposing Florence Copper as an ongoing expense needing public 
funds for the upcoming years, those funds should be budgeted and given their own line item so 
the public can see and know how its money is being spent.   
 
Ms. Stacy Gramazio, Florence Copper Representative, stated that they have seen a lot of 
changes in Florence and with new change comes new possibilities for our community’s future.  
She stated that Florence Copper is committed to bringing good benefits to Florence.  She 
stated that they are pleased that they have received the regulatory approvals that will allow 
them to start a pilot test facility (PTF) for in-situ copper recovery.  She stated that they are 
confident that this test will demonstrate to everyone that it is a safe process.   
 
Ms. Gramazio provided an update of their community outreach efforts, which included 150 site 
tours to 1,500 + residents which has led to growing support of the project.  Once people 
develop an understanding of the process they realize that it can operate without a threat to the 
local drinking water supply.  They have over 800 resumes on file and are continually contacted 
by local residents who want to work and live in Florence and are anxious for them to begin the 
hiring process.   
 
Ms. Gramazio stated that she is very disappointed that many of the Councilmembers have 
thus far declined to take a site tour with her or speak with her or anyone on staff about the 
facts of the project; however she is very hopeful that the Council will look at the project with a 
fresh perspective now that they have received regulatory approval for the Arizona Department 
of Environmental Quality (ADEQ) and the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).  She stated 
that it is unfortunate for the Town’s constituents that the Council has only listened to the land 
owners who neighbor their property because the Council has been given inaccurate 
information about the science and permitting process.   
 
Ms. Gramazio stated that they would like to work with the Council and they have a standing 
invitation for a site tour or conversation.  She stated that they can work together to discuss the 
Town’s concerns.  They appreciate and welcome the Town’s tough questions.  They 
appreciate the Council’s dedication to Florence and together they can do the right thing for 
Florence.   
 
Mr. Ted Bowers, Florence Resident, requested that Item 7k. on the Consent Agenda be 
removed and be considered separately.  He stated that it is a very significant issue and 
deserves to be considered by itself.  Based on the language of Item 7k, it appears that the 
Town wants to authorize a full prosecution and litigation of the appeal.  He stated that the 
language indicates that the Town is seeking to do something and it will take years to do.  He 
would like the following: 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 17, 2017 
Page 3 of 14 

- More information 
- The cost of the litigation thus far 
- What happens if the Town loses the litigation 
- Is the Town subject to the legal costs of the other side 

 
Mr. Bowers stated the time to oppose the issuance of the permit, which was recently granted 
by the EPA, has passed.   
 
Mr. Harry B. Zilm, Florence Resident, stated that he knows he is addressing a biased Council; 
however, he will do it anyway.  He requested that Council remove items 7h, I, j, and k from the 
Consent Agenda and leave them off of the agenda until such time as the Council can account 
for the funds that have already been expended on Florence Copper.  He stated that if the 
Council is to proceed, the public needs to know how much more they expect to spend and 
what the cap will be.  He stated that he does not want to see the property tax go up because 
the Town needs to fund this.  He stated that Florence needs to allow Florence Copper to move 
forward with their testing and not place road blocks against them.  He stated that the newest 
road block deals with air quality permitting.   
 
Mr. Arthur Halbin, Florence Resident, stated that he has been a property owner for over 30 
years, and his land is in trust for his family.   He stated tgat he walked up to Poston Butte each 
night and met a man who walked up there as well.  In conversation, the man stated that they 
were waiting for the water table to go down so they could open an open-pit mine.  He stated 
that he was upset to hear that he found such a beautiful place and now there was going to be 
a mine. Now he hears that the process will be different.  He stated that he chairs a coffee club 
and they have approximately 20 members.  They all share the same feeling that Florence is a 
wonderful place and it is a better idea than an open pit.  He does not understand why Florence 
is fighting this.   He hopes the Council will look into this and consider their opinion. 
 
Mr. William Vockel, Florence Resident, explained that there are four items on the Consent 
Agenda which are resolutions that allow Florence and its lawyers to continue to challenge the 
federal and state permits issued to Florence Copper for an in-situ copper recovery test facility.  
In passing the resolutions, the Council will be acting as if it knows more about the technical 
issues than ADEQ and EPA.  He explained that ADEQ and EPA are tasked with protecting the 
drinking water supply.  Both agencies have carefully reviewed the project application.  All of 
the public comments have been filed and concluded that the two year testing facility could 
safely operate without threat to the Town’s drinking water supply.  Florence’s taxpayers 
deserve to know how their tax dollars are being spent and in what quantities.  He inquired how 
much money is the Town budgeting this year to continue this litigation.  He stated that as a 
voting resident of Florence, he asked that each of the resolutions (Items 7h, I, j. and k) be 
removed from the Consent Agenda and be voted on separately by Council by a roll call vote.   
 
Mr. Shane Doughty, Florence Resident, stated that he owns the property at 321 N. Bailey 
Street, which is known as the Jesus Martinez historical home, and now known as Bailey Street 
Bed and Breakfast.  He stated that the property was purchased in September 2015 for the 
purpose of restoration and returning it to its former use as a bed and breakfast.  He stated that 
they advertised this to the Historic District Advisory Commission in October 2015.  They also 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 17, 2017 
Page 4 of 14 

met with Gilbert Olgin about the zone change to its current DC zoning to facilitate having a bed 
and breakfast at this location.  Upon completion of the cleanup of the property, they obtained a 
building permit for the restoration work.  They were approximately 75% through the restoration 
project when they were called back into a meeting with the Town where they were informed 
that if they wish to be a bed and breakfast (B & B) they needed to change their building permit 
from residential to commercial.  This would result in them needed to obtain a commercial 
contractor to complete the work.  They would also need to obtain an architect, on-site engineer 
and a large amount of capital expense on their part.   
 
Mr. Doughty stated that he asked for a written copy of the Town Code regarding a B & B.  He 
stated that when the Town could not or would not produce the Town Code, he produced 
documentation from Pinal County and the State defining a bed and breakfast as a business 
operated out of a residence.  He was then told that he could complete the restoration under the 
same building permit under the new State B and B laws at which point they did so.  They 
received their final inspections and obtained their Certificate of Occupancy.  They have 
obtained their state business license and contacted the Pinal County Health Department to 
ensure compliance with health and food safety.  They directed them to Title IX, which shows 
that they are in full compliance.   
 
Mr. Doughty stated that they joined the Chamber of Commerce and scheduled their ribbon 
cutting, grand opening and went into the Town to obtain their business license.  At that time, 
they were told by Community Development that they would not be able to obtain a business 
license because their building was not commercial.  He was called into a meeting by Mr. 
Eckhoff on January 5, 2017.  He provided a packet to the Town Clerk to provide to Council 
which included the items received during that meeting.   He stated that once again, the Town 
Code was not provided to him. They provided a copy of the new state statute regarding B & 
Bs, which he previously distributed to his staff.  He was told by Mr. Eckhoff that he could 
proceed as a short term rental and remain a residential property as long as he did not: a) have 
a sign, and b) serve breakfast to his guests.  Mr. Eckhoff finished the meeting telling him that 
this was a grey area and a fine line.   
 
Mr. Doughty stated that the State and County Codes are black and white.  He stated that there 
is no grey area and they fall within their lines.  He stated that he wanted to make Council 
aware of the inconsistencies that they are receiving from the Community Development 
Department and the Town as well as lack of any documentation given to assist us as we begin 
a new business.   
 
Mr. Doughty stated that they are excited about business in the downtown and are excited 
about the prospect of being a part of making Florence a destination.  They have received 
support from the local businesses and the Chamber of Commerce.  He stated that he has a 
vested interest in the community.  He stated that he lives here and his children go to school 
here and his wife is a teacher Florence K-8 school.  He stated that they want to see the Town 
grow and prosper and that the Town is welcoming to new businesses. 
 
Mr. Doughty stated that he has recorded the last two meetings because of the inconsistencies 
he has received and is willing to meet with the Council should they wish to hear the audio.          



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 17, 2017 
Page 5 of 14 

Mr. Harvey Zilm, Florence Resident stated that he has been in Florence for quite some time. 
He stated that this mine has been a long time coming. He hates to just see the negative side of 
the mine.  He challenged the Council to sit down with the mining staff and have a discussion.  
He stated that going through the legal route is easy and it cost money.  The outcome is that 
someone loses.  He would like to see everyone work together and create jobs for the 
community.  He stated that the only way to move forward is to remove the politics and have 
discussions.  You will find that there is common ground and the jobs that will come.  He stated 
that the mine will be an asset.   
 
Mr. Jim Tchida, Florence Resident, stated that he has concentrated his efforts in the downtown 
area.  He discussed the resolutions on the Consent Agenda (Items 7h, I, j, and k).  The Town 
has legal costs, not all of which are related to Florence Copper.  The community does not 
know what the legal costs are.  There are no estimates on what the increase will be for legal 
costs may be.  He suggested the following: 
 

1. Remove the four resolutions from the Consent Agenda  
2. Obtain a range of estimated cost for each resolution  
3. Hold a Worksession with the public describing issues, strategies and the range of costs 
4. Hold a roll call vote by the Council 

 
Mayor Walter stated that the Town has set aside money for this case in the current fiscal 
budget.  She stated that the Council is continuing on the action.  Each Councilmember was 
elected by the citizens of Florence and they are representing them.   
 
Mayor Walter stated that she spoke with Mrs. Doughty and the other business partner.  She 
requested that staff review the matter and have a meeting regarding the bed and breakfast.   

 
PRESENTATION  
  
Update from Mr. Steven Smallidge on the Cuen building. 
 
Mr. Steven Smallidge, Florence Resident and owner of the Cuen Building, stated that the 
concern is the delay with the building.  He stated that they were five and half months behind 
before they were issued a permit.  He stated that the concrete contractor was injured and not 
able to work for three months.  The person doing the stucco was also injured and this put him 
behind another three months.  Mr. Jason Penrod, Senior Building Inspector, has done an 
inspection of the building.   
 
Mr. Smallidge stated that the stucco did not meet his approval so he hired someone else and 
had them re-stucco the building.  He stated that he will have the building painted, windows 
installed and the doors rephrased before the Home Tour.  He will also try to get the front room 
cleaned, stucco done, and painted as well.  He stated that he is staging a few places around 
town.  He has not given up on the building and it will be open in the Fall of 2017.     
 
Councilmember Hawkins inquired if the structure was inspected.  He understands that the fear 
was that the building would fall down.  



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 17, 2017 
Page 6 of 14 

Mr. Smallidge stated that an inspection was done and there were never any structural issues.  
He stated that he has the paperwork from the architects and nothing in any of the reports 
indicated that the building was going to fall down.  He explained all of the work that has been 
done on the building.   
 
Mr. Hawkins stated that Mr. Smallidge is way passed the timeframe in which to get the building 
completed.  He asked Mr. Eckhoff if there were structural integrity problems with the building.    
 
Mr. Mark Eckhoff, Community Development Director, stated that Swan Architects did an 
assessment of the building and they determined that there was a need to do structural things.  
There was also a concern prior to the assessment and braces were added to the exterior of 
the building.  There was a concern of the gap that was increasing. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that Mr. Smallidge is correct in that he has addressed some of the initial 
concerns.  They have not progressed past that point nor has a new assessment been done to 
determine the structural capability of the building.  He stated that it appears that Mr. Smallidge 
has made progress in the early stages of the project.   
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that it is a commercial building and wants to ensure that a 
structural engineer signs off before a Certificate of Occupancy is issued.   
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that Mr. Smallidge building permit had a licensed commercial contractor 
working with him as well as a structural engineer come up with an idea of how to address the 
structural issues of the building.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that he has reviewed the specialty warranty deed and there are two 
phases included in the deed.  He stated that the deed states that the completion must be done 
within two years of the effective date, which would be May 11, 2015, so the completion date 
would be May 11, 2017.   Mr. Smallidge stated that the he would have the building completed 
by the fall, which is in far exceedance of what is included in the deed on the property and the 
reversion clause.  There is the ability for the Town to grant a one-time 180-day extension in 
writing.  He does not want it to be implied that by this presentation, there has been any 
expressive consent provided to extend past the May 11, 2017 date.   
 
Mayor Walter stated that the 180 day extension will put Mr. Smallidge at his target date.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated the Mr. Smallidge would need to submit a written request to Council and 
the request would be brought before Council for consideration.  
 
Mr. Smallidge stated the building was closed in 1961, it has gone through several owners and 
none have done any improvements on the building.  He is the first owner to do improvements 
on the building. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that the Town sought bids for the building and there were two 
other entities who submitted bids as well as Mr. Smallidge.   Mr. Smallidge was provided extra 
time on the onset.   



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 17, 2017 
Page 7 of 14 

Mr. Smallidge stated that he appreciates the Council for listening to the residents’ concerns 
regarding Florence Copper.  He is proud to live in Florence.  He commended the Council for 
their diligence in preserving the Town’s drinking water and ensuring that it remains safe.             
 
CONSENT: All items on the consent agenda will be handled by a single vote as part of 
the consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public objects at the 
time the agenda item is called.  

 
a. Acceptance of the Public Improvements for the Anthem at Merrill Ranch 

Subdivision Unit 53. 
 
b. Authorization to enter into a service agreement with Electrical District 2 for 

electric service to the Hunt Highway and Attaway Road Intersection Traffic Signal.  
 

c. Authorization to enter into a Professional Services Agreement with the Greater 
Florence Chamber of Commerce for Calendar Year 2017 for the amount of 
$45,000.00.  
 

d. Approval of a Groundwater Savings Facility Storage Agreement with the Tonopah 
Irrigation District.   
 

e. Authorization to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Florence 
Unified School District to facilitate two separate utility easements to be used for 
Town sponsored water system improvements.  
 

f. Recommendation of approval to the Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and 
Control on the Pinal County Mounted Posse’s application for their BBQ event to 
be held on March 4, 2017, at the Charles Whitlow Memorial Rodeo Arena, 11608 S. 
Highway 79, Florence, Arizona.  
 

g. Recommendation of approval to the Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and 
Control on the Pinal County Mounted Posse’s application for their participation in 
the Road to Country Thunder event, to be held on April 1, 2017, in downtown 
Historic Main Street,  Florence, Arizona. 
 

h. Adoption of Resolution No. 1609-17:   
 

Mayor Walter read Resolution No. 1609-17 by title only.  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE TOWN OF FLORENCE’S COMPLAINT TO THE 
ARIZONA OMBUDSMAN CITIZENS’ AIDE; AUTHORIZING THE TAKING OF ALL 
ACTIONS NECESSARY TO THE CONSUMMATION OF THE TRANSACTIONS 
CONTEMPLATED BY THIS RESOLUTION AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

 
i. Adoption of Resolution No 1610-17:   



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 17, 2017 
Page 8 of 14 

Mayor Walter read Resolution No. 1610-17 by title only.  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING 
AND AUTHORIZING THE TOWN OF FLORENCE’S APPEAL CHALLENGING THE 
VALIDITY AND ISSUANCE OF THE PINAL COUNTY AIR QUALITY CONTROL DISTRICT’S 
PERMIT No. B31219.000; AUTHORIZING THE TAKING OF ALL ACTIONS NECESSARY 
TO THE CONSUMMATION OF THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED BY THIS 
RESOLUTION AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.  

 
j. Adoption of Resolution No. 1611-17:  
 

Mayor Walter read Resolution No. 1611-17 by title only.  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING 
AND AUTHORIZING THE TOWN OF FLORENCE TO ENTER INTO A SUPPLEMENT TO 
LIMITED JOINT DEFENSE AND INFORMATION SHARING AGREEMENT; AUTHORIZING 
THE TAKING OF ALL ACTIONS NECESSARY TO THE CONSUMMATION OF THE 
TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED BY THIS RESOLUTION AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY.  

 
k. Adoption of Resolution No. 1612-17:  
 

Mayor Walter read Resolution No. 1612-17 by title only.  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING 
AND AUTHORIZING THE TOWN OF FLORENCE’S APPEAL CHALLENGING THE 
VALIDITY AND ISSUANCE OF THE UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 
AGENCY’S CLASS III IN-SITU PRODUCTION OF COPPER PERMIT NO. R9UIC-AZ3-FY11-
1; AUTHORIZING THE FULL PROSECUTION/LITIGATION OF THE APPEAL, AND THE 
TAKING OF ALL OTHER ACTIONS NECESSARY TO THE CONSUMMATION OF THE 
TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED BY THIS RESOLUTION AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY.  
 

l. Adoption of Resolution No. 1613-17:  
 
Mayor Walter read Resolution No. 1613-17 by title only.  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
ACCEPTING THE DEDICATION OF RIGHT-OF-WAY FOR A PORTION OF NORTH 
ATTAWAY ROAD PURSUANT TO THE CONDITIONS CONTAINED IN STATE LAND 
DEPARTMENT STATE OF ARIZONA RIGHT OF WAY AGREEMENT R/W NO. 16-119162 
(“ROW AGREEMENT”), AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE THE ATTACHED 
ROW AGREEMENT.  
 

m. Approval of the December 5, and December 19, 2016 Town Council meeting 
minutes. 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 17, 2017 
Page 9 of 14 

n. Receive and file the following board and commission minutes: 
 

i. September 15 and October 20, 2016 Planning and Zoning Commission 
minutes. 

 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Anderson, and carried to 
approve the Consent Agenda, as written, with the exception of Item numbers 7a, h, I, j, and k.  
 

a. Acceptance of the Public Improvements for the Anthem at Merrill Ranch 
Subdivision Unit 53.  

 
Mr. Billingsley asked that this item be tabled to a future meeting as the Unit number is 
incorrect. 
On motion of Councilmember Anderson, seconded by Vice-Mayor Woolridge, and carried to 
table the acceptance of the Public Improvements for the Anthem at Merrill Ranch Subdivision 
Unit 53 to a future meeting. 

 
h. Adoption of Resolution No. 1609-17:  A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 

FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE 
TOWN OF FLORENCE’S COMPLAINT TO THE ARIZONA OMBUDSMAN CITIZENS’ 
AIDE; AUTHORIZING THE TAKING OF ALL ACTIONS NECESSARY TO THE 
CONSUMMATION OF THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED BY THIS 
RESOLUTION AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.  

 
Vice-Mayor Woolridge stated that some of the Town Council has taken the tour and visited the 
mine.   
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that all of Councilmembers have studied the information 
pertaining to the mines.  The concern is that there have not been any in-situ mines that have 
not polluted but they say it is a proven technology.  The Town has been dealing with this issue 
for the last several years.   
 
On motion of Councilmember Wall, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, to adopt 
Resolution No. 1609-17. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Councilmember Wall: Yes  
Councilmember Hawkins:  Yes 
Councilmember: Larsen: Yes 
Councilmember:  Anderson: Yes 
Vice-Mayor Woolridge:  Yes 
Mayor Walter: Yes 
 
Motion Passed:  Yes:  6; No: 0 

 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 17, 2017 
Page 10 of 14 

i. Adoption of Resolution No 1610-17:  A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE 
TOWN OF FLORENCE’S APPEAL CHALLENGING THE VALIDITY AND ISSUANCE 
OF THE PINAL COUNTY AIR QUALITY CONTROL DISTRICT’S PERMIT No. 
B31219.000; AUTHORIZING THE TAKING OF ALL ACTIONS NECESSARY TO THE 
CONSUMMATION OF THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED BY THIS 
RESOLUTION AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.  

 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Wall, to adopt 
Resolution No. 1610-17. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Councilmember Wall: Yes  
Vice-Mayor Woolridge:  Yes 
Councilmember: Larsen: Yes 
Councilmember:  Anderson: Yes 
Councilmember Hawkins:  Yes 
Mayor Walter: Yes 
 
Motion Passed:  Yes:  6; No: 0 

 
j. Adoption of Resolution No. 1611-17: A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 

FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE 
TOWN OF FLORENCE TO ENTER INTO A SUPPLEMENT TO LIMITED JOINT 
DEFENSE AND INFORMATION SHARING AGREEMENT; AUTHORIZING THE 
TAKING OF ALL ACTIONS NECESSARY TO THE CONSUMMATION OF THE 
TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED BY THIS RESOLUTION AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY.  

 
On motion of Councilmember Anderson, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, to adopt 
Resolution No. 1611-17. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Councilmember:  Anderson: Yes 
Councilmember Hawkins:  Yes 
Councilmember: Larsen: Yes 
Councilmember Wall: Yes  
Vice-Mayor Woolridge:  Yes 
Mayor Walter: Yes 
 
Motion Passed:  Yes:  6; No: 0 

 
k. Adoption of Resolution No. 1612-17: A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 

FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE 
TOWN OF FLORENCE’S APPEAL CHALLENGING THE VALIDITY AND ISSUANCE 
OF THE UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY’S CLASS III 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 17, 2017 
Page 11 of 14 

IN-SITU PRODUCTION OF COPPER PERMIT NO. R9UIC-AZ3-FY11-1; 
AUTHORIZING THE FULL PROSECUTION/LITIGATION OF THE APPEAL, AND THE 
TAKING OF ALL OTHER ACTIONS NECESSARY TO THE CONSUMMATION OF 
THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED BY THIS RESOLUTION AND DECLARING 
AN EMERGENCY.  

 
On motion of Councilmember Wall, seconded by Vice-Mayor Woolridge, to adopt 
Resolution No. 1612-17. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Councilmember Wall: Yes  
Vice-Mayor Woolridge:  Yes 
Councilmember: Larsen: Yes 
Councilmember:  Anderson: Yes 
Councilmember Hawkins:  Yes 
Mayor Walter: Yes 
 
Motion Passed:  Yes:  6; No: 0 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of entering into a contract with Regional Pavement 
Maintenance of Arizona, Inc. for the not-to-exceed amount of $140,000.00, under the Job 
Order Contract (JOC) 2014-007 for the City of Buckeye, for Florence Heights Road 
Improvements.  
 
Mr. Chris Salas, Public Works Director, stated that Florence Heights is an important east-west 
regional road.  The road has deteriorated and needs to be treated with an overlay as there are 
no surface treatments that will fix the amount of cracking that has occurred on that road.  He 
stated that staff has studied the project and a geotechnical report has been written.  The 
project will entail a two-inch overlay with fiber and minimal curb and gutter improvements to 
protect some properties from water going into those properties.     
 
On motion of Councilmember Anderson, seconded by Vice-Mayor Woolridge, and carried to 
enter into a contract with Regional Pavement Maintenance of Arizona, Inc. for the not-to-
exceed amount of $140,000.00, under the Job Order Contract (JOC) 2014-007 for the City of 
Buckeye, for Florence Heights Road Improvements. 
 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of appointing two positions to the Parks and 
Recreation Board with terms to expire December 31, 2019.  
 
Mr. Bryan Hughes, Parks and Recreation Director, stated that four applications were received 
for the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board.  Per Town Code, interviews were conducted 
because there were more applicants than seats available.  The interview panel was comprised 
of the following individuals: 

- Bryan Hughes, Liaison 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 17, 2017 
Page 12 of 14 

- Don Pinson, Chairman, Parks and Recreation Advisory Board 
- Councilmember Kristen Larsen 

 
Mr. Hughes stated that all of the candidates were great and had passion for parks and 
recreation.  The recommendations for the vacancies are Donald Woolridge and Kelly Williams, 
each for a three-year term ending December 31, 2019.   
 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried to 
appoint Donald Woolridge and Kelly Williams to the Parks and Recreation Board with terms to 
expire December 31, 2019. 
 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of Board and Commission appointments to and 
authorization to continue to accept applications until all seats are filled.  
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, stated that the Town received one 
application each for the Arts and Culture Commission and the Historic District Advisory 
Commission.  The Town has the vacancies on the Historic District Advisory Commission, 
Library Advisory Board, and the Planning and Zoning Commission.  She stated that the Town 
hopes that citizens would apply to volunteer their time to serve on a board or commission.   
 
Appointment of Doris Hagemann to the Arts and Culture Commission with a term to 
expire December 31, 2019. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Anderson, seconded by Councilmember Wall, and carried to 
appoint Doris Hagemann to the Arts and Culture Commission with a term to expire December 
31, 2019. 
 
Re-appointment of Eugene J. Horan to the Joint Library Advisory Board with a term to 
expire December 31, 2018. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Anderson, seconded by Councilmember Wall, and carried to re-
appoint Eugene J. Horan to the Joint Library Advisory Board with a term to expire December 
31, 2018. 
 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of setting a date for the Florence Town Council’s 
Strategic Planning Retreat. 
 
Mayor Walter stated that the date has been set for February 3, 2017.   
 
Councilmember Larson asked that alternate dates be considered due to scheduling conflicts.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that Ms. Garcia is out of Town on February 3, 2017 and it is important 
that she attend the retreat.   
 
Mayor Walter stated that the Council can vote on a date range not to exceed February 28, 
2017, and meet with Ms. Garcia to provide dates in which to choose from.   



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 17, 2017 
Page 13 of 14 

Vice-Mayor Woolridge requested that the retreat be held on a Friday.   
 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Wall, and carried to set a 
date range, prior to February 28, 2017, for the Town Council’s Strategic Planning Retreat. 
 
TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT 

Mr. Billingsley introduced Mr. Joe Jarvis, Finance Director.  He is a sixth generation Arizonan.  
He received his Bachelor’s Degree from Brigham Young University and his Master’s Degree 
from Arizona State University (ASU).  Mr. Jarvis was the Andrews Scholar, which is the top, 
most promising student in the public administration degree program for ASU.  His career has 
been spent working with various municipalities.   

Mr. Billingsley stated that the Fire Department Station #2, conducted a poster contest with the 
Anthem K-8 School and hosted a spaghetti dinner for the winners.   

Mr. Billingsley stated that the Police Department has received numerous complaints of 
students driving erratically to and from Florence High School (FHS).  The Police Department 
has done a special traffic detail at and around FHS throughout January.  All of the objectives 
were fulfilled and it was an opportunity to educate the high school drivers.   

CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
 
There are no public comments.  
 
CALL TO THE COUNCIL – CURRENT EVENTS ONLY 
 
Councilmember Wall thanked everyone who came to the Council meeting and expressed how 
they feel about the Florence Copper project.  She assured the public that everything that 
Council considers, Councilmembers look at both sides of the issues.  She stated that she has 
done her homework and is confident that any decisions that are made going forward are in the 
best interest of Florence residents.   
 
Councilmember Anderson stated that he attended the Pinal County Partnership meeting and 
there were four newly elected Mayors present.  He stated that the Arizona Department of 
Transportation (ADOT) was a topic and everyone has the same issues with ADOT as the 
Town of Florence.  He stated that there was a wide representation of everyone in Pinal 
County. It was a good way to build partnerships.  An ADOT representative was present.   
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that the Town is doing what they feel is in the best interest of 
Florence.  He stated that the Town is transparent and it is public information on how much is 
being spent.  He stated that money was budgeted for legal issues.     
 
Vice-Mayor Woolridge stated that the public can review the Town’s budget and that the 
amount being spent by the Town is public information.   
 
Mayor Walter thanked everyone who attended the Council meeting.  



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
January 17, 2017 
Page 14 of 14 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Councilmember  
Anderson, and carried to adjourn the meeting at 7:16 pm.  
 
 
________________________________ 
Tara Walter, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town 
Council meeting held on January 17, 2017, and that the meeting was duly called to order and 
that a quorum was present. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 

 

























 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
8a. 

MEETING DATE: February 21, 2017 
 
DEPARTMENT: Community Development 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Mark Eckhoff, AICP 
                                     Community Development Director 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   
Subject: Direction on DA with Artisan Acres, LLC                        Meeting Date: February 21, 2017 
Page 1 of 5 

 
SUBJECT: Direction on entering into a Development 
Agreement with Artisan Acres, LLC (RE: Proposed Windmill 
Winery Expansion)  

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion directing staff to commence Development Agreement (DA) negotiations with 
Artisan Acres, LLC and other associated parties seeking to enter into a DA with the 
Town of Florence in order to facilitate the proposed expansion of the Windmill Winery 
project in Florence, Arizona. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
OVERVIEW: 
 
Florence Artisan Acres, LLC, a group of investors that includes the property owner of 
the Windmill Winery in Florence, Arizona, have previously had General Plan 
Amendment and Rezoning applications approved for the subject forty-acre site, which is 
located within the well-known Territory Square Master Plan, to accommodate the 
expansion of the Windmill Winery development.  This group is interested in expanding 
the energy and success of the Windmill Winery project to this subject site with planned 
complementary facilities.  The expansion area is located across from the existing 
Windmill Winery at the southeast corner of Butte Avenue and Plant Road. 
 
The proposed development considered under this DA request will be within the West 
End Land Use Group (LUG) of the Territory Square Master Plan. The proposed visual 
character of the development will directly align with the general character defined in the 
West End LUG, e.g., “a mixed-use environment that includes a diversity of density from 
farm fields to retail and commercial development.  This location, near a potential 
freeway corridor, provides an opportunity to integrate agrarian themes with a more 
urban form”.  
 
Long-term, the specific uses being considered for this property also align directly with 
those uses allowed under the West End LUG including; residential, commercial, 



Subject: Direction on DA with Artisan Acres, LLC                        Meeting Date: February 21, 2017 
Page 2 of 5 

specialty retail, restaurant, mixed-use buildings, and a small inn with associated casitas. 
An RV use (limited/ short term only related to events) is also proposed as an accessory 
use within the West End LUG.  Unlike a formal setting with buildings organized along 
street fronts, these buildings and developments are envisioned to sit within the 
landscape in a less formal manner.  The proposed  DA would apply to the owner’s 40 
acre property, but the immediate development focus is on approximately 16 acres 
located immediately south of the existing Windmill Winery facility.  
 
PHASING: 
 
The planned project is envisioned to occur in a series of phases.  As noted, Phase One 
is the primary focus point for development at this time.  Phase One, located close to the 
southeast corner of Butte Avenue and Plant Road, consists of improvements on the first 
16 of 40 acres to be developed.  This portion of the project will be developed across 
from the existing Windmill Winery facilities in order to maximize the synergy and range 
of uses that occur on that adjacent site today.  This first phase of the project consists of 
an event center, boutique hotel and bridal suite, as well as all associated site 
improvements.  
 
Though subject to change, the next project phases might seek to expand the event 
center with a possible restaurant and brewery, expand the number of guest casitas, 
consider an expansion of the boutique hotel, and possibly add additional retail buildings 
that would be oriented towards unique artisan crafts.  All buildings and site 
improvements are planned to be designed within the character and vernacular of the 
existing Windmill Winery.  The event center is envisioned to look and feel like an old 
Cotton Gin building. The casitas and other future buildings would be designed to 
capture that same feel that helps to celebrate the agrarian history of Florence. 
  
With a total land area of 40 acres, the possibilities for the future phases are quite open 
at this time, but uses will be consistent with the Territory Square Master Plan and the 
thematic components would be extended regardless of land uses. 
 
BUILDINGS: 
 
The architecture of the Windmill Event Center 9,500-10,000 square foot building was 
designed considering the general character/use of the West End LUG of the Territory 
Square Zoning District.  The Windmill Event Center will be a large agrarian-themed 
single-story building designed for the purpose of hosting a variety of events.  The scale, 
form, materials and visual character represent the very best examples of a working 
cotton gin.  The exterior façade will be treated with the metal panels from an actual 
salvaged cotton gin from Coolidge.  Outside ornamental features include artisan rustic 
industrial outdoor sconce lamps.  Wall materials include stone walls, vertical metal 
siding, horizontal wood siding, and corrugated metal roofing.  
 
The 14,900-15,500 square foot Windmill Inn will play off the Cotton Gin architectural 
theme with the inclusion of some metal paneling along the base of the building.  A 
central gable roof form, standing seam metal roofing material, expansive front porch, 
smaller windows, dormers, shiplap horizontal siding and associated details will give this 
building a dominant agrarian feel which will compliment both the Cotton Gin and the 
existing Windmill Winery facilities.  Outside ornamental features will include artisan 



Subject: Direction on DA with Artisan Acres, LLC                        Meeting Date: February 21, 2017 
Page 3 of 5 

rustic industrial outdoor sconce lamps.  Wall materials include stone walls, vertical metal 
siding, horizontal wood siding and corrugated metal roofing.  
 
The 700-800 square feet Bridal Cottage, while smaller in size and stature, will follow the 
design of the Windmill Event Center and Winery Inn and will express the agrarian and 
ranch themes through a residential manner.  Again, ornamental features will include 
artisan rustic industrial outdoor sconce lamps, stone walls, vertical metal siding, 
horizontal wood siding and corrugated metal roofing.  
 
ACCESS/CIRCULATION: 
 
Vehicular ingress/egress into the site will be provided off of Butte Avenue and Plant 
Road with a minimum of three access points.  The Phase One access points from each 
frontage have been thoughtfully planned based on engineering standards and the 
locations of opposing driveways.  Right-of-way will be dedicated for each adjacent 
frontage, but major roadway improvements are proposed to be phased in.  This 
phasing, specifically project triggers that would cause for improvements to be completed 
will be a key discussion point for the Development Agreement. 
 
The parking space requirement per Town Codes for all of the uses currently identified in 
Phase One is 85 spaces.  The current DR application shows that this minimum will be 
exceeded. At least 104 spaces are proposed and this will include required accessible 
parking spaces and oversized parking spaces.  Additional parking areas will be added 
as new buildings are added. 
 
All of the parking areas and buildings are connected with a system of private roadways, 
fire lanes and pedestrian pathways.  Some internal roadways and parking areas will use 
alternative materials to help maintain an agrarian appearance.  Pedestrians will be able 
to access the project off of Butte Avenue.  On-site pedestrian circulation will be 
enhanced to allow for people to move around the site safely.  In addition, 
accommodations will be made to safely cross Butte Avenue to the existing Windmill 
Winery facility.  Alternative materials and the crosswalk are items that will be discussed 
more during the Development Agreement process. 
 
GRADING AND DRAINAGE: 
 
Grading and retention will be done in accordance with Town codes and the subject site 
will have primary retention basins, at least for Phase One, along the project frontages 
and the southwest portion of the Phase One site.  Surface retention basins will include 
attractive landscaping to aid in the appeal of the property to the surrounding users and 
traffic along adjacent roadways. 
 
LANDSCAPING: 
 
Phase One and all future phases will be improved with the addition of well-manicured 
landscaping.  The landscape theme will be consistent with the West End LUG and the 
existing Windmill Winery site.  Plus, all landscaping and irrigation will meet minimum 
Town Codes.  Several plaza and gathering areas are planned around the site for active 
programming and passive enjoyment.  Landscaping will help to soften hardscape areas 
and buffer the adjacent roadways.  Development Agreement discussions will explore 



Subject: Direction on DA with Artisan Acres, LLC                        Meeting Date: February 21, 2017 
Page 4 of 5 

the possibility of adding complimentary landscaping along the frontage of the Town’s 
Wastewater Treatment Facility (WWTF).  
 
WATER/SEWER: 
 
The project will connect to the Town’s water and wastewater systems.  It appears that 
Phase One can be served by the Town’s current system, but full engineering plans are 
still subject to the applicable reviews and approvals.  The phasing of infrastructure for 
future phases, as well as the possibility of a sewer dump station, will be discussed as 
part of the DA negotiations. 
 
In regards to the Town’s WWTF, the owners are also granting an easement to the Town 
that addresses any potential impacts of the existing and expanded WWTF (a 
requirement of zoning and also an item to be discussed in the Development 
Agreement). 
 
SIGNAGE: 
 
A Comprehensive Sign Plan will be provided for this project and be subject to the review 
and approval of the Planning and Zoning Commission.  
 
DEVELOPMENT: 
 
Concurrent with the filing of this application, the Town is working with the project team 
on their Design Review application and initial engineering plans.  The development 
team is anxious to commence with the submittal of full construction plans for Phase 
One.  It is desirable to advance with Development Agreement negotiations as quickly as 
possible so that a Development Agreement can be presented for Council’s review and 
hopeful approval in advance of vertical construction on this site (some permitted grading 
and utility work could precede this timeframe).  As suggested, the development 
schedule for this project is very ambitious, but obtainable, particularly since the services 
of Nu-Trend Architectural Services (current consultant to the Town) are anticipated to 
facilitate this project (another Development Agreement negotiation item). 
 
This report addressed some topics to be discussed during the negotiations of the 
Development Agreement (phasing, roadways, alternative materials, crosswalk, expedite 
reviews, etc.).  The applicant’s application provide with this report addresses some 
addition points.  Overall, staff is inclined to believe that successful negotiations can 
occur if given such direction. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
There is not a direct fiscal impact to commence DA negotiations, other than staff time, 
which is off-set, at least partially, by the DA application fee.  The final fiscal impact of 
this agreement will be discussed when the DA is presented to Town Council for action. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Motion directing staff to commence Development Agreement negotiations with Artisan 
Acres, LLC, and other associated parties seeking to enter into a Development 



Subject: Direction on DA with Artisan Acres, LLC                        Meeting Date: February 21, 2017 
Page 5 of 5 

Agreement with the Town of Florence in order to facilitate the proposed expansion of 
the Windmill Winery project in Florence, Arizona. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Development Agreement Application 
Legal description and map 
Project site plan and elevations (Current Phase One Design Review*) 
 
*Plans under review and subject to modifications 



 
Florence Artisan Acres, LLC 
Development Agreement Application 
December 2016 
Amended: January 2017 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Submitted by: 
  

 

W. Ralph Pew 
1744 S. Val Vista Drive, Suite 217 

Mesa, AZ 85204 
Phone: (480) 461-4670 

Email: ralph.pew@pewandlake.com 
 

On behalf of:  

Harold Christ 
Florence Artisan Acres, LLC 



  2 
 

Introduction 
Pew and Lake PLC, on behalf of Florence Artisan Acres, LLC, is pleased to submit this application 
for a Development Agreement pertaining to the 40 acres located at the southeast corner of Plant 
Road and Butte Avenue (Pinal County APN: 202-05-001C), commonly referred to as the Territory 
Square Expansion. 

 

Figure 1. Project Site Vicinity Map 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Town Council recently approved a Minor General Plan (PZ 16-49 GP), Rezoning (PZ 16-50 ZC) and 
Text Amendment (PZ16-51 ORD) in association with this project at its September 6, 2016 meeting.  
Associated documents for these approvals are on file at the Town.   

The purpose of this formal application is for the Town Council consideration of a Development 
Agreement to bring to fruition the development of the Territory Square Expansion as envisioned 
by the approved land entitlements.  Previously, the Town and Developer have had informal 
discussions regarding items for consideration to be included in a Development Agreement.  The 
filing of this application will provide for the finalizing of the details and business points into a 
Development Agreement that can be approved and executed by the Town and 
Landowner/Developer. 

 



  3 
 

RELEVANT QUESTIONS FOR CONSIDERATION 
 

A. Why does the applicant want to enter into a Development Agreement with the Town? 

The principal reason is to reach agreement with the Town on the development standards that will 
be applicable to the “Territory Square Expansion” (TSE), and to allow the owner flexibility of design 
to preserve the quaint, inviting, rustic and rural environment consistent with the Windmill Winery 
that will attract guests/tourist to stay in Florence, rather than simply pass through to visit.  The 
owner recognizes and understands that essential health/safety development requirements must 
be preserved, and proposes this Development Agreement to strike a balance between creating a 
cohesive grouping of attractions that will capture the attention and investments of guests to enjoy, 
and stay longer in Florence and patronize both the Windmill Winery and the Territory Square 
Expansion. 

 

B. What does the Owner want the Town to do? 

The owner respectively requests that the Town agree to facilitate the successful evolution and 
development maturation of the TSE by recognizing the importance of preserving the rural, 
agrarian, and historic nature and elements of the TSE, by allowing the following modification to 
the typical urban Town Code development and improvement standards: 

1) Town has hired a staff member to review building fire and safety permit plans and to 
perform inspections for the first phase of the TSE on an expedited basis and Owner will 
pay to the Town the standard fees for plan check/review and inspections. 

2) Development standard recognition by the Town that water and sewer lines/systems have 
adequate capacity to service the proposed first phase of the TSE, constituting 
approximately 8 acres, 3 buildings and associated site improvements.  The Owner will not 
be responsible to upgrade or oversize the existing utility delivery systems for the first 
phase of the TSE. 

3) Allow future phasing of utility infrastructure for the TSE, based upon review and approval 
by the Town of projections and modeling analysis provided by Owner’s engineer 
addressing with Life/Safety issues. 

4) Town to allow alternative surfacing materials to accommodate equestrian and rural 
atmosphere uses consistent with existing zoning, based upon confirmation from Owner’s 
consultants that such alternative surfacing material(s) satisfy the Town’s Fire and Building 
Safety Code and applicable American with Disabilities Act requirements. 

5) Understanding by the Town that if, and when, effluent discharge water is available at the 
site, the Town, in its sole and absolute discretion, will consider discussing with the Owner 
the usage of a portion of such effluent on the site. 



  4 
 

6) In Phase 1, the Town will cooperate with the Owner to design an at-grade pedestrian 
crosswalk on Butte within the TSE frontage that is consistent with generally accepted traffic 
design criteria for public safety purposes.     

7) Agree to a height allowance of sixty (60) feet on commercial uses, consistent with current 
zoning, including the first phase cotton gin (multi-purpose building) and hotel. 

8) Town to allow owner to construct a recreational vehicle sewer drainage line from the 
property to the Town’s adjacent wastewater facility for use by the visitors staying 
temporarily in the visitor’s recreational vehicle portion of the TSE.  Construction of this 
sewer drainage line shall be executed pursuant to a building permit issued by the Town 
consistent with Town utility building code requirements.  Town will not charge a fee to the 
Owner for its visitor’s using the sewer drainage line. 

9) Town to review and approve a traffic analysis demonstrating that street lights, deceleration 
lanes and other roadway improvements in the right of way are not required by the Town 
on Butte and Plant Roads in the development of Phase 1 of the TSE.  Based on completed 
traffic study, the Town will not require any roadway expansion in Phase 1.  During the 
course of construction for Phase 1 of the TSE, Owner will submit to the Town projections, 
modeling and economic studies demonstrating to the Town the economic benefit to the 
Town of the future phases of the TSE. Town will meet and confer with Owner regarding 
future offsite improvements and if a cost sharing arrangement between the Town and 
Owner is justified to complete such improvements in future phases of the project. 

10) Town to plan for the improvement of the aesthetic appearance of Butte Road, from Main 
Street to the eastern boundary of the TSE site by taking such action as may be appropriate, 
including the possibility of adopting a zoning abatement ordinance, enabling the Town to 
initiate the abatement of dilapidated structures, removal of non-compliant 
improvements/landscaping and bringing properties on Butte Road into compliance with 
Town zoning and maintenance standards.  

11) Town will maintain and improve as necessary (to comply with all state and federal 
standards) the odor mitigation techniques or measures currently used at the Town 
Wastewater Facility adjacent to the TSE. 

12) Town will allow Owner to pay half of Town’s development impact fees at issuance of 
building permits and half at the time of certificate of occupancy, during the course of 
construction of the project phases.  

13) Agree to a 10 to 15 year duration of the development agreement to allow time to complete 
the anticipated phases of the project.  

14) Town to agree to the issuance of one building permit and multiple certificates of 
occupancy for each phase of the TSE. 

15) Town to install and maintain the landscaping adjacent to the Town’s wastewater facility 
based upon landscape design plans and materials (trees, plants and shrubs) provided by 
the Owner. 
 
 



  5 
 

 
C. What will the Owner do? 
1) Develop, improve, manage and operate an innovative/creative community-style amenity 

and attraction that will compliment and be harmonious with the Windmill Winery.  The 
TSE will promote classical, rural artisans, vendors, retail uses, entertainment and hospitality 
uses, that when built and operated in the style of old-town Florence will provide the Town 
with a genuine and sustainable venue that will attract a tourist population and hospitality 
dollars for the Town.   

2) Pay all the standard Town fees for plan review and inspections.   
3) Provide, at Owner’s cost, civil engineering studies and analysis, confirming the adequacy 

of the water and sewer lines that currently serve the site and as may be required for future 
phases of development 

4) Execute and deliver to the Town an easement for the benefit of the Town, and drafted in 
the form and content satisfactory to both the Town and Owner that will function as an 
Owner’s consent and non-objection to and recognition of the existing/adjacent Town 
Wastewater Facility and its potential expansion. 

5) Dedicate to the Town the required additional rights-of-way on Butte and Plant Roads, 
adjacent to the project. 

6) Provide landscape plans, materials, specifically plants, shrubs and trees required by the 
Town, to create an aesthetic buffer around the wastewater treatment facility.  

7) Pay all Town required development impact fees as each phase of the TSE project is 
built/completed, half  at the time of issuance of the respective building permit and half at 
the time of issuance of a certificate of occupancy for each structure or site improvement 
within each phase. 

8) Work with the Town to create a realistic timeline for the commencement and completion 
of the various phases of the project infrastructure and facilities. 
 
 

D. Why should the Town Council approve this proposed Development Agreement? 
1) Development of this multi-purpose hospitality type use is expected to have a nationwide 

draw for people to visit Florence and spend time and money in our Town.   
2) This is a development that is consistent with the heritage and old-style ambiance of 

Florence, and rural Pinal County. 
3) Accommodates the development of a complimentary and concomitant use with the 

Windmill Winery. 
4) The development of this project does not require any economic stimulus or incentive that 

would adversely impact the Town’s budget and financial condition  

  



  6 
 

Conclusion 
Other requested documents to process this application for Development Agreement approval 
include the ALTA Survey and Title Report (Exhibit A) and the addresses of property owners within 
300 feet of the project (Exhibit B).  The Developer looks forward to working with the Town on this 
Development Agreement request, and ultimately the successful build out of Territory Square 
Expansion.  

 

Attachments 
 

Exhibit A: ALTA Survey and Title Report 

Exhibit B: Public Notification Map and Addresses 

 









No.  NCS-681299-PHX1  

Page 1 

INFORMATION

The Title Insurance Commitment is a legal contract between you and the company. It is 
issued to show the basis on which we will issue a Title Insurance Policy to you. The Policy 
will insure you against certain risks to the land title, subject to the limitations shown in the  
Policy 

The Company will give you a sample of the Policy form, if you ask. 

The Commitment is based on the land title as of the Commitment Date.  Any changes in the 
land title or the transaction may affect the Commitment and the Policy. 

The Commitment is subject to its Requirements, Exceptions and Conditions.

THIS INFORMATION IS NOT PART OF THE TITLE INSURANCE COMMITMENT.  
___________________________________________________________________

COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE 

ISSUED BY

First American Title Insurance Company 
through its Division 

First American Title Insurance Company
TABLE OF CONTENTS

AGREEMENT TO ISSUE POLICY . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  on the following page 
COMMITMENT DATE . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Schedule A (Page 1) 
POLICIES TO BE ISSUED, AMOUNTS AND PROPOSED INSURED  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Schedule A (Page 1) 
INTEREST IN THE LAND  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Schedule A (Exhibit A) 
DESCRIPTION OF THE LAND . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .on the following page 
EXCEPTIONS - PART ONE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Schedule B (inside) 
EXCEPTIONS - PART TWO . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Schedule B (inside) 
REQUIREMENTS (Standard) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . on the third page 
REQUIREMENTS (Continued) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ..Requirements (inside) 
CONDITIONS . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . on the third page

YOU SHOULD READ THE COMMITMENT VERY CAREFULLY 
If you have any questions about the Commitment, contact:

First American Title Insurance Company National Commercial Services  
2425 E. Camelback Road, Suite 300, Phoenix, AZ 85016



No.  NCS-681299-PHX1  

Page 2 

AGREEMENT TO ISSUE POLICY

We agree to issue a policy to you according to the terms of this Commitment.  When we 
show the policy amount and your name as the proposed insured in Schedule A, this 
Commitment becomes effective as of the date shown in Schedule A. 

If the Requirements shown in this Commitment have not been met within six months after 
the Commitment Date, our obligation under this Commitment will end.  Also, our obligation 
under this Commitment will end when the Policy is issued and then our obligation to you will 
be under the Policy. 

Our obligation under the Commitment is limited by the following: 

               The Provisions in Schedule A 
               The Requirements
               The Exceptions in Schedule B - Parts 1 and 2
               The Conditions 

This Commitment is not valid without SCHEDULE A and Parts 1 and 2 of SCHEDULE B. 
____________________________________________________________________

SCHEDULE B - EXCEPTIONS 

Any Policy we issue will have the following exceptions unless they are taken care of to our satisfaction. 

Part One: (for use with 2006 ALTA policies)

  1. (a) Taxes or assessments that are not shown as existing liens by the records of any taxing authority that 
levies taxes or assessments on real property or by the Public Records; (b) proceedings by a public 
agency that may result in taxes or assessments, or notices of such proceedings, whether or not shown 
by the records of such agency or by the Public Records. 

      
  2. Any facts, rights, interests or claims that are not shown by the Public Records but which could be 

ascertained by an inspection of the Land or that may be asserted by persons in possession of the Land. 
      
  3. Easements, liens or encumbrances, or claims thereof, not shown by the Public Records. 
      
  4. Any encroachment, encumbrance, violation, variation, or adverse circumstance affecting the Title that 

would be disclosed by an accurate and complete land survey of the Land and not shown by the Public 
Records. 

      
  5. (a) Unpatented mining claims; (b) reservations or exceptions in patents or in Acts authorizing the 

issuance thereof; (c) water rights, claims or title to water, whether or not the matters excepted under 
(a), (b), or (c) are shown by the Public Records. 

Part One: (for use with 1992 and prior ALTA policies)

  1. Taxes or assessments which are not shown as existing liens by the records of any taxing authority that 
levies taxes or assessments on real property or by the public records. 

Proceedings by a public agency which may result in taxes or assessments, or notices 
of such proceedings, whether or not shown by the records of such agency or by the public records. 

      



No.  NCS-681299-PHX1  

Page 3 

  2. Any facts, rights, interests or claims which are not shown by the public records but which could be 
ascertained by an inspection of the land or by making inquiry of persons in possession thereof. 

      
  3. Easements, liens or encumbrances, or claims thereof, which are not shown by the public records. 
      
  4. Discrepancies, conflicts in boundary lines, shortage in area, encroachments, or  any other facts which a 

correct survey would disclose, and which are not shown by the public records. 
      
  5. (a) Unpatented mining claims; (b) reservations or exceptions in patents or in Acts authorizing the 

issuance thereof; (c) water rights, claims or title to water; whether or not the aforementioned matters 
excepted are shown by the public records. 

      
  6. Any lien, or right to a lien, for services, labor or material heretofore or hereafter furnished, imposed by 

law and not shown by the public records. 
      

Part One of Schedule B will be eliminated from any A.L.T.A. Extended 
Coverage Policy, A.L.T.A. Plain Language Policy and policies with EAGLE 
Protection added.  However, the same or similar exception may be made in 
Schedule B of those policies in conformity with Schedule B, Part Two of this 
Commitment.



No.  NCS-681299-PHX1  

Page 4 

REQUIREMENTS 
(Standard)

The following requirements must be met:
(a) Pay the agreed amounts for the interest in the land and/or the mortgage to 

be insured.
(b) Pay us the premiums, fees and charges for the policy.
(c) Documents satisfactory to us creating the interest in the land and/or the  mortgage 

to be insured must be signed, delivered and recorded.
(d) You must tell us in writing the name of anyone not referred to in this commitment 

who will get interest in the land or who will make a loan on  the land. We may then 
make additional requirements or exceptions.

(Continued on Requirements Page)
_____________________________________________________________________

CONDITIONS
1. DEFINITIONS 

(a)  "Mortgage" means mortgage, deed of trust or other security instrument. 
(b)  "Public Records" means title records that give constructive notice of matters 
affecting
       the title according to the state law where the land is located.

2. LATER DEFECTS
The Exceptions in Schedule B may be amended to show any defects, liens or 
encumbrances that appear for the first time in the public records or are created or 
attached between the Commitment Date and the date on which all of the 
Requirements are met.  We shall have no liability to you because of this amendment.

3. EXISTING DEFECTS 
If any defects, liens or encumbrances existing at Commitment Date are not shown 
in Schedule B, we may amend Schedule B to show them.  If we do amend Schedule B 
to show these defects, liens or encumbrances, we shall be liable to you according to 
Paragraph  4 below unless you knew of this information and did not tell us about it in 
writing.

4. LIMITATION OF OUR LIABILITY 
Our only obligation is to issue to you the Policy referred to in this Commitment, when 
you have met its Requirements.  If we have any liability to you for any loss you incur 
because of an error in this Commitment, our liability will be limited to your actual loss 
caused by your relying on this Commitment when you acted in good faith to: 

comply with the Requirements 
               or 
eliminate with our written consent any Exceptions shown in Schedule B

We shall not be liable for more than the Amount shown in Schedule A of this
Commitment and our liability is subject to the terms of the Policy form to be issued to 
you.

5. CLAIMS MUST BE BASED ON THIS COMMITMENT 
Any claims, whether or not based on negligence, which you may have against us 
concerning the title to the land must be based on this Commitment and is subject to 
its terms



No.  NCS-681299-PHX1  

Page 5 

First American Title 
Insurance Company 
National Commercial 
Services 

The First American
Corporation

PRIVACY POLICY

We Are Committed to Safeguarding Customer Information

In order to better serve your needs now and in the future, we may ask you to provide us with certain information.  We understand that you 
may be concerned about what we will do with such information - particularly any personal or financial information.  We agree that you have 
a right to know how we will utilize the personal information you provide to us.  Therefore, together with our parent company, The First 
American Corporation, we have adopted this Privacy Policy to govern the use and handling of your personal information.

Applicability

This Privacy Policy governs our use of the information which you provide to us.  It does not govern the manner in which we may use 
information we have obtained from any other source, such as information obtained from public records or from another person or entity.  
First American has also adopted broader guidelines that govern our use of personal information regardless of its source.  First American calls 
these guidelines its Fair Information Values, a copy of which can be found on our web site at www.firstam.com.

Types of Information

Depending upon which of our services you are utilizing, the types of nonpublic personal information that we may collect include:

Information we receive from you on applications, forms and in other communications to us, whether in writing, in 
person, by telephone or any other means;
Information about your transactions with us, our affiliated companies, or others; and
Information we receive from a consumer reporting agency.

Use of Information

We request information from you for our own legitimate business purposes and not for the benefit of any nonaffiliated party.  Therefore, we 
will not release your information to nonaffiliated parties except:  (1) as necessary for us to provide the product or service you have 
requested of us;  or (2) as permitted by law.  We may, however, store such information indefinitely, including the period after which any 
customer relationship has ceased.  Such information may be used for any internal purpose, such as quality control efforts or customer 
analysis.  We may also provide all of the types of nonpublic personal information listed above to one or more of our affiliated companies.  
Such affiliated companies include financial services providers, such as title insurers, property and casualty insurers, and trust and investment 
advisory companies, or companies involved in real estate services, such as appraisal companies, home warranty companies, and escrow 
companies.  Furthermore, we may also provide all information we collect, as described above, to companies that perform marketing services 
on our behalf, on behalf of our affiliated companies, or to other financial institutions with whom we or our affiliated companies have joint 
marketing agreements.

Former Customers

Even if you are no longer our customer, our Privacy Policy will continue to apply.

Confidentiality and Security

We will use our best efforts to ensure that no unauthorized parties have access to any of your information.  We restrict access to nonpublic 
personal information about you to those individuals and entities who need to know that information to provide products and services to you.  
We will use our best efforts to train and oversee our employees and agents to ensure that your information will be handled responsibly and 
in accordance with this Privacy Policy and First American's Fair Information Values.  We currently maintain physical, electronic, and 
procedural safeguards that comply with federal regulations to guard your nonpublic personal information.

c2001 The First American Corporation - All Rights Reserved



No.  NCS-681299-PHX1  

Page 6 

First American Title Insurance Company 
National Commercial Services 

SCHEDULE A

Fourth Amended  

ESCROW/CLOSING INQUIRIES should be directed to your Escrow Officer:  Tom Anzaldua at 
(602)567-8100

Effective Date:  October 5, 2016 at 7:30 a.m. 

1. Policy or (Policies) to be issued: 

ALTA 2006 Extended Owner's Policy  for $525,000.00  

Proposed Insured:  
Red Rock Property Investments, LLC, an Arizona limited liability company 

2. The estate or interest in the land described or referred to in this commitment and covered herein 
is fee simple and title thereto is at the effective date hereof vested in: 

Merrill Property Division Trust, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company as to that potion 
lying in Lot 3 and Parcel 2 and Florence Artisan Acres, LLC, a Delaware limited liability 
company as to that portion lying in Lot 4

3. Title to the estate or interest in the land upon issuance of the policy shall be vested in: 

Red Rock Property Investments, LLC, an Arizona limited liability company  

4. The land referred to in this Commitment is located in Pinal County, AZ and is described as: 

SEE EXHIBIT "A" ATTACHED HEREIN

Title officer: Mike S. Jones @ (602)567-8149/msjones@firstam.com. 

Pages 1 through 5 of this document consist of the Title Insurance Commitment contract and our Privacy Policy.



No.  NCS-681299-PHX1  

Page 7 

EXHIBIT "A"

PARCEL NO. 1: 

LOTS 3 AND 4 OF SECTION 2, TOWNSHIP 5 SOUTH, RANGE 9 EAST OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER 
BASE AND MERIDIAN, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:  

BEGINNING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 2 AND ALSO DESCRIBED AS THE NORTHWEST 
CORNER OF LOT 4;  

THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 48 MINUTES 39 SECONDS EAST APPROXIMATELY 2,644.09 FEET AND 
THEN SOUTHERLY ALONG THE EASTERN BOUNDARY OF LOT 3 APPROXIMATELY 1,311.00 FEET AND 

THENCE WEST ALONG A LINE DESCRIBED AS NORTH 89 DEGREES 53 MINUTES 26 SECONDS 
APPROXIMATELY 2,644.5 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 4;  

THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG A LINE DESCRIBED AS NORTH 00 DEGREES 55 MINUTES 10 SECONDS 
WEST APPROXIMATELY 1,328.11 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.  

PARCEL NO. 2: 

ALL THAT PORTION OF BUSH STREET VACATED BY THE TOWN OF FLORENCE BY ORDINANCE NO. 590, 
REGULARLY ADOPTED JANUARY 15, 1958, AND OF RECORD IN THE OFFICE OF THE RECORDER OF 
PINAL COUNTY RECORDED IN DOCKET 194, AT PAGE 542, AND PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS THE 
WEST HALF OF SUCH VACATED PORTION LYING BETWEEN THE SOUTH LINE OF 18TH STREET 
(IDENTICAL WITH THE NORTH LINE EXTENDED OF BLOCK 11, WESTERN ADDITION), AND THE SOUTH 
LINE OF WESTERN ADDITION TO TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT FILED 
AND RECORDED IN THE OFFICE OF THE PINAL COUNTY RECORDER IN BOOK 3 OF MISCELLANEOUS 
RECORDS, PAGE 446 THEREOF. 



No.  NCS-681299-PHX1  

Page 8 

First American Title Insurance Company 
National Commercial Services 

SCHEDULE B 
Fourth Amended  

PART TWO: 

1. Second installment of 2016 taxes, a lien, payable on or before March 1, 2017, and delinquent 
May 1, 2017.  

2. Any charge upon said land by reason of its inclusion in Central Arizona Water Conservation 
District.  (All assessments due and payable are paid.) 

3. Any charge upon said land by reason of its inclusion in San Carlos Irrigation and Drainage 
District.  (All assessments due and payable are paid.) 

4. Any charge upon said land by reason of its inclusion in Central Arizona Groundwater 
Replenishment District.  (All assessments due and payable are paid.) 

5. Any charge upon said land by reason of its inclusion in Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District 
No. 1.  (All assessments due and payable are paid.) 

6. Reservations or Exceptions in Patents, or in Acts authorizing the issuance thereof. 

7. Restrictions, dedications, conditions, reservations, easements and other matters shown on the 
plat of Western Addition to Town of Florence, as recorded in Plat Book 3 of Miscellaneous, 
Page(s) 446, but deleting any covenant, condition or restriction indicating a preference, limitation 
or discrimination based on race, color, religion, sex, handicap, familial status or national origin to 
the extent such covenants, conditions or restrictions violate 42 USC 3604(c).  

(Affects Parcel No. 2) 

8. All matters as set forth in Ordinance No. 590, recorded January 20, 1958 as Docket 194, Page 
542.  

(Affects Parcel No. 2) 

9. Certification by the Board of Supervisors of Pinal County, Arizona recorded February 21, 1964 as 
Docket 375, Page 572, purporting to establish a county roadway. 

10. An easement for pipeline and incidental purposes in the document recorded  as Docket 803, Page 
593. 

(Affects Parcel No. 2) 

11. An easement for canal crossing and incidental purposes in the document recorded  as Docket 
803, Page 595. 



No.  NCS-681299-PHX1  

Page 9 

(Affects Parcel No. 2) 

12. The terms and provisions contained in the document entitled "Royalty Deed and Agreement" 
recorded July 07, 1992 as Docket 1837, Page 879. 

13. The terms and provisions contained in the document entitled "Net Profits Royalty Deed" 
recorded December 07, 2001 as 2001-056458 of Official Records.   

14. This item has been intentionally deleted. 

15. An easement for right-of-way and incidental purposes in the document recorded  as 2007-
074830 of Official Records.

(Affects Parcel No. 1) 

16. All matters as set forth in ALTA/ACSM Survey, recorded as Book 23 of Surveys, Page 31.  

(Affects Parcel No. 1) 

17. All matters as set forth in Result of Survey, recorded as 2009-052552 of Official Records.  

(Affects Parcel No. 2) 

18. The rights or claims of title, if any, by the State of Arizona to any portion of the property 
described in Schedule A being located in the bed of any river or dry wash. 

19. This item has been intentionally deleted. 

20. This item has been intentionally deleted. 

21. Water rights, claims or title to water, whether or not shown by the public records.

End of Schedule B



No.  NCS-681299-PHX1  

Page 10 

First American Title Insurance Company 
National Commercial Services 

Fourth Amended  

REQUIREMENTS:

1. Compliance with A.R.S. 11-480 relative to all documents to be recorded in connection herewith.  
See note at end of this section for details. 

2. Pay first half of 2016 taxes. 

NOTE:  Taxes are assessed in the total amount of $8,461.40 for the year 2016 under Assessor's 
Parcel No. 202-05-001C 4. 

(Affects Parcel No. 1) 

NOTE:  Taxes are assessed in the total amount of $8,419.22 for the year 2016 under Assessor's 
Parcel No. 202-05-001D 2. 

(Affects Parcel No. 1) 

NOTE:  Taxes are assessed in the total amount of $12.34 for the year 2016 under Assessor's 
Parcel No. 202-07-1060 0. 

(Affects Parcel No. 2) 

3. Payment in full of all assessments, late charges, transfer fees, and any other amounts due San 
Carlos Irrigation and Drainage District. 

4. Payment in full of all assessments, late charges, transfer fees, and any other amounts due Merrill 
Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1. 

5. Record partial release and reconveyance of a Deed of Trust securing an original indebtedness in 
the amount of $1,350,000.00, recorded January 16, 2003 as 2003-003156 of Official Records.  
Dated: January 09, 2003  
Trustor: Florence Copper, Inc, a Delaware corporation  
Trustee: First American Title Insurance Company  
Beneficiary: GDA Investment, Ltd., a Florida limited partnership; Mary Therese 

Doan, trustee under the Mary Therese Doan Revocable Trust Agreement
dated December 22, 1993 and Thomas W. Staed and Barbara Staed, 
husband and wife  

REQUIREMENT SATISFIED



No.  NCS-681299-PHX1  

Page 11 

6. Record partial release and reconveyance of a Deed of Trust securing an original indebtedness in 
the amount of $2,000,000.00, recorded May 01, 2003 as 2003-028480 of Official Records.  
Dated: May 01, 2003  
Trustor: Florence Copper, Inc., a Delaware corporation  
Trustee: First American Title Insurance Company  
Beneficiary: GDA Investment, Ltd., a Florida limited partnership; Mary Therese 

Doan, trustee under the Mary Therese Doan Revocable Trust Agreement
dated December 22, 1993 and Thomas W. Staed and Barbara Staed, 
husband and wife  

REQUIREMENT SATISFIED

7. Furnish Plat of Survey of the subject property by a Registered Land Surveyor in accordance with 
the "Minimum Standard Detail Requirements for ALTA/ACSM Land Title Surveys" which became 
effective February 23, 2011. Said Plat of survey shall include the required certification and, at a 
minimum, also have shown thereon Items 1, 8, 11(b), 16, 17, 20(a), and 20(b) from Table A 
thereof. If zoning assurances are requested, Items 7(a), 7(b), 7(c) and 9 from Table A and 
information regarding the usage of the property must be included. 

NOTE:  If a Zoning Endorsement is requested, Items 7(a), 7(b) and 7(c) of Table A will also be 
required.  If "parking" is to be added to the endorsement, the number and type of parking 
spaces must be shown on the survey.  Property use information must also be provided to First 
American Title Insurance Company. 

REQUIREMENT SATISFIED

8. Furnish copies of any existing leases affecting the within described property and insertion of said 
leases in Schedule B of the Policy of Title Insurance. 

9. Furnish a copy of the Articles of Organization or other pertinent formation documents duly 
processed by the regulatory body of Delaware , a fully executed copy of the Operating 
Agreement, and any amendments thereto; and a list of the current members of Merrill Property 
Division Trust, LLC, a limited liability company. 

10. Record Warranty Deed from Merrill Property Division Trust, LLC, a Delaware limited liability 
company and Florence Artisan Acres, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company to Buyer(s). 

Said Deed will complete the comnsummation of an unrecorded Purchase Contract as disclosed by 
a Memorandum thereof recorded as 2014-073832 of Offivial Records. 

NOTE:  If this will be other than a Cash Transaction, notify the title department prior to close and 
additional requirements will be made. 

11. Return to title department for final recheck before recording. 

NOTE:  In connection with Arizona Revised Statutes 11-480, as of January 1, 1991, the County 
Recorder may not accept documents for recording that do not comply with the following:

a. Print must be ten-point type or larger.



No.  NCS-681299-PHX1  

Page 12 

b. A margin of two inches at the top of the first page for recording and return address 
information and margins of one-half inch along other borders of every page.

c. Each instrument shall be no larger than 8-1/2 inches in width and 14 inches in length.

DISCLOSURE NOTE:  In the event any Affidavit required pursuant to A.R.S. 33-422 has been, or 
will be, recorded pertaining to the land, such Affidavit is not reflected in this Commitment nor will 
it be shown in any policy to be issued in connection with this Commitment.  The statute applies 
only to unsubdivided land in an unincorporated area of a county. 

NOTE:  The policy to be issued may contain an arbitration clause. When the Amount of Insurance is less 
than the certain dollar amount set forth in any applicable arbitration clause, all arbitrable matters shall be 
arbitrated at the option of either the Company or the Insured as the exclusive remedy of the parties. If 
you desire to review the terms of the policy, including any arbitration clause that may be included, 
contact the office that issued this Commitment or Report to obtain a sample of the policy jacket for the 
policy that is to be issued in connection with your transaction. 

End of Requirements



Neighborhood Meeting

7550 East McDonald Drive · Scottsdale, Arizona 85250 · 480 367-2100 ph · 480 367-2101
fax info@swabackpartners.com · www.swabackpartners.com

1

A Neighborhood Meeting Notice was sent to the following property owners via Priority Mail on June 10, 2016.

Name Agency Addres
s

City State
Zip 

Code
Merrill Property Division 
Trust LLC

N/A 8000 Capps Ferry Rd. Douglasville GA 30135

Granillo Anna N/A 910 E. Butte Ave. Florence AZ 85132

Rankin Family LLLP N/A PO Box 1471 Florence AZ 85132

United Metro
Materials Inc.; C/O Rinker 
Materials Corp-Tax Dept.

N/A 1501 Belvedere Rd. West Palm 
Beach

FL 33406

WHM Merrill Ranch 
Investments LLC N/A 8000 Capps Ferry Rd. Douglasville GA 30135

Adamsville 650 LLC N/A 1200 W. Queen Creek 
Rd

Chandler AZ 85248

Langley Florence 70 LLC N/A 2738 E. Guadalupe Rd. Gilbert AZ 85234

Future Forward 
Foundation Inc.

N/A PO Box 333 Florence AZ 85132

The list below represents Property Owners within Territory Square.

Name Agency Addres
s

City State
Zip 

Code

Harold J Christ LTD N/A PO Box 2276 Florence AZ 85132

Rankin Family LLLP N/A PO Box 1471 Florence AZ 85132

Sheridan James J & 
Margaret J Rev 

N/A PO Box 2972 Florence AZ 85132

Yole LLC N/A
4343 E Camelback Rd
#400

Phoenix AZ 85018

Cox Christine N/A PO Box 1053 Florence AZ 85132

Cox Christine TR N/A PO Box 1053 Florence AZ 85132

Town of Florence, Giles 
James M (Est. Of)

N/A PO Box 2670 Florence AZ 85132

See page three of this pdf for the Project Location exhibit.



Neighborhood Meeting

7550 East McDonald Drive · Scottsdale, Arizona 85250 · 480 367-2100 ph · 480 367-2101
fax info@swabackpartners.com · www.swabackpartners.com

3

Project Location
Exhibit Legend

Site Location 
300ft Buffer 

Parcel Lines 
Town Limits 

Context Map

Thank you in advance for your participation. 
Sincerely,

Jeffrey Denzak, Partner 
Swaback Partners, pllc

John Shoecraft, Managing Member 
Harold Christ, Managing Member 
Kevin Brooks, Managing Member 
Florence Artisan Acres, LLC

EEEExxxxxxhhhhhhiiibbbiitttttt

W  Butte Ave 

300 ft 300 ft 

The 
Windmill 

Butte 
Ave.

Territory 
Square 

N 
 P

la
nt

  R
d  

S 
 P

la
nt

  R
d  

30
0 f

t 
30

0 f
t 

P
la

nt
R

d



   
PAGE 1 OF 1 

 

P:\050057 - SEC Plant Rd & Butte Avenue\050057-01-001 (SUR)\Survey\Legal Descriptions\050057-LEGAL-WEST.docx 
 

Bowman Consulting Group, Ltd. • 1295 W Washington, Suite 108 • Tempe, Arizona 85281 • P: 480.629.8830 

November 20, 2014 
PROJECT # 050057-01-001 

 
 

EXHIBIT ‘A’ 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
PLANT & BUTTE – WEST PARCEL 

 
LOT 4 OF SECTION 2, TOWNSHIP 5 SOUTH, RANGE 9 EAST OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER BASE AND 
MERIDIAN, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:  
 
BEGINNING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 2 AND ALSO DESCRIBED AS THE 
NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 4, BEING A 3” PINAL COUNTY HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT ALUMINUM 
CAP 1.0 FEET BELOW GROUND, FROM WHICH THE NORTH QUARTER CORNER OF SAID SECTION 2, BEING 
A TOWN OF FLORENCE BRASS CAP FLUSH, BEARS SOUTH 89 DEGREES 46 MINUTES 27 SECONDS EAST, A 
DISTANCE OF 2644.14 FEET; 
  
THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 46 MINUTES 27 SECONDS EAST, ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 
2, A DISTANCE OF 1322.07 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 4; 
 
THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 49 MINUTES 10 SECONDS EAST, ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 4, A 
DISTANCE OF 1322.54 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER THEREOF; 
 
THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 56 MINUTES 32 SECONDS WEST, ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 4, A 
DISTANCE OF 1320.70 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER THEREOF;   
  
THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 52 MINUTES 27 SECONDS WEST, ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SECTION 
2, A DISTANCE OF 1329.10 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 

CONTAINING 1,751,678 SQUARE FEET OR 40.2130 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 





4

PRES 2

3

PRES 2

1

PRES 2

GROOM STORAGE

BAR

FIRE PIT

WOMEN

MEN

PREP

STORAGE

JANITOR

PENDANT FIXTURE

WALL SCONCE

PENDANT FIXTURE

WALL SCONCES

PENDANT FIXTURE

WALL SCONCES

WOMEN

MEN

EVENT

PENDANT FIXTURE

WALL SCONCE

GOOSENECK 

WALL SCONCES

ABOVE

Planning, Architecture, and Interior Design
Scottsdale, Arizona | 480.367.2100

SWABACK PARTNERS pllc

WINDMILL WINERY

C
O

T
T

O
N

 G
IN

D
E

S
IG

N
 R

E
V

IE
W

 S
U

B
M

IT
T

A
L

NOVEMBER 23, 2016

F
LO

R
E

N
C

E
, A

R
IZ

O
N

A

MAIN LEVEL FLOOR PLAN

W
in

dm
ill

 W
in

er
y 

E
xp

an
si

on

0

2' 4' 8'

fly
mw



MAIN LEVEL

0"

FASCIA

12' - 0"

ROOF

45' - 0"

METAL ROOF

VERTICAL METAL SIDING

METAL ROOF

VERTICAL METAL SIDING

RIDGE 3

42' - 0"

PENDANT FIXTURE

WALL SCONCES ROLL UP DOORS

(RIDGE)

(RIDGE)

GOOSENECK WALL SCONCE

MAIN LEVEL

0"

FASCIA

12' - 0"

ROOF

45' - 0"

METAL ROOF

VERTICAL METAL SIDING

METAL ROOF

VERTICAL METAL SIDING

RIDGE 3

42' - 0"

RIDGE

22' - 0"

RIDGE 2

36' - 0"

RIDGE 1

31' - 0"

GOOSENECK WALL SCONCES

WALL SCONCE

PENDANT FIXTURE

FASCIA 1

31' - 6"

MAIN LEVEL

0"

FASCIA

12' - 0"

ROOF

45' - 0"

VERTICAL METAL SIDING

METAL ROOF METAL ROOF

VERTICAL METAL SIDING

RIDGE 3

42' - 0"

RIDGE

22' - 0"

WALL SCONCE ROLL UP DOORS PENDANT FIXTURE

MAIN LEVEL

0"

FASCIA

12' - 0"

ROOF

45' - 0"

METAL ROOF

VERTICAL METAL SIDING

METAL ROOF

VERTICAL METAL SIDING

RIDGE 3

42' - 0"

PENDANT FIXTURE

ROLL UP DOORS WALL SCONCE

PENDANT FIXTURE

RIDGE

22' - 0"

RIDGE 2

36' - 0"

Planning, Architecture, and Interior Design
Scottsdale, Arizona | 480.367.2100

SWABACK PARTNERS pllc

WINDMILL WINERY

C
O

T
T

O
N

 G
IN

D
E

S
IG

N
 R

E
V

IE
W

 S
U

B
M

IT
T

A
L

NOVEMBER 23, 2016

F
LO

R
E

N
C

E
, A

R
IZ

O
N

A

BUILDING ELEVATIONS

W
in

dm
ill

 W
in

er
y 

E
xp

an
si

on

EAST ELEVATION

NORTH ELEVATION

SOUTH ELEVATION

WEST ELEVATION

PENDANT 14" DIAMETER 10" HIGH 

3 BULB 150WATT

ARTISAN RUSTIC INDUSTRIAL OUTDOOR SCONCE

11"H x 11"W x 12.5"E  60WATT MEDIUM BASE LMAP MAX.

4'4'4'4'0000 8'8'8'8' 16'16'16'16'

*SEE MATERIAL BOARD FOR COLOR RANGE OPTIONS

fly
mw



1

PRES 3

4

PRES 3

2

PRES 3

EQUIPMENT/PREP

DOUBLE QUEEN

BRIDES SUITE

KING SUITE DOUBLE QUEEN

DOUBLE QUEEN

OFFICE

LAUNDRY

WOMEN

ELEVATOR

MEN

DESK LOBBY

ICE

STAIRS

3

PRES 3

GATHERING

KING SUITE
KING SUITE

KING ADA

DOUBLE QUEEN

KING KING

PENDANT FIXTURE

WALL SCONCE

WALL SCONCE

PENDANT FIXTURE

WALL SCONCE

PENDANT FIXTURE

WALL SCONCE

Planning, Architecture, and Interior Design
Scottsdale, Arizona | 480.367.2100

SWABACK PARTNERS pllc

WINDMILL WINERY

W
IN

D
M

IL
L 

W
IN

E
R

Y
 IN

N
D

E
S

IG
N

 R
E

V
IE

W
 S

U
B

M
IT

T
A

L

NOVEMBER 23, 2016

F
LO

R
E

N
C

E
, A

R
IZ

O
N

A

MAIN FLOOR PLAN

W
in

dm
ill

 W
in

er
y 

E
xp

an
si

on

0

2' 4' 8'

fly
mw



1

PRES 3

4

PRES 3

2

PRES 3

STAIRS

3

PRES 3

ELEVATOR

ICE

BRIDES SUITE

KING SUITE DOUBLE QUEEN

DOUBLE QUEEN

KING SUITE
KING SUITE

DOUBLE QUEEN

DOUBLE QUEEN

KING ADAKING KING KING

KING

KING SUITE

OPEN TO BELOW

Planning, Architecture, and Interior Design
Scottsdale, Arizona | 480.367.2100

SWABACK PARTNERS pllc

WINDMILL WINERY

W
IN

D
M

IL
L 

W
IN

E
R

Y
 IN

N
D

E
S

IG
N

 R
E

V
IE

W
 S

U
B

M
IT

T
A

L

NOVEMBER 23, 2016

F
LO

R
E

N
C

E
, A

R
IZ

O
N

A

UPPER LEVEL FLOOR PLAN

W
in

dm
ill

 W
in

er
y 

E
xp

an
si

on

0

2' 4' 8'

fly
mw



MAIN LEVEL

0"

LEVEL 2

12' - 0"

LEVEL 4

32' - 0"

METAL ROOF

VERTICAL METAL SIDING

METAL ROOF

STONE

STONE WAINSCOT

HORIZONTAL WOOD SIDING

STONE WAINSCOTWROUGHT IRON RAILING

VERTICAL METAL SIDING

STONE COLUMN
PENDANT FIXTURE

WALL SCONCE

WOOD COLUMNS

WEATHERVANE

MAIN LEVEL

0"

LEVEL 2

12' - 0"

LEVEL 4

32' - 0"

METAL ROOF

VERTICAL METAL SIDING

METAL ROOF HORIZONTAL WOOD SIDING

STONE WAINSCOT

HORIZONTAL WOOD SIDING

STONE COLUMN
WROUGHT IRON RAILING

VERTICAL METAL SIDING

STONE

WALL SCONCEPENDANT FIXTURE

(RIDGE)

WOOD COLUMN

MAIN LEVEL

0"

LEVEL 2

12' - 0"

LEVEL 4

32' - 0"

METAL ROOF

VERTICAL SIDING

METAL ROOF

HORIZONTAL WOOD SIDING

WALL SCONCE STONE COLUMNWROUGHT IRON RAILING

VERTICAL METAL SIDING

STONE WAINSCOT

PENDANT FIXTURE

MAIN LEVEL

0"

LEVEL 2

12' - 0"

LEVEL 4

32' - 0"

METAL ROOF

VERTICAL METAL SIDING

METAL ROOF

HORIZONTAL WOOD SIDING
STONE WAINSCOT

HORIZONTAL WOOD SIDING

STONE WAINSCOT
WROUGHT IRON RAILING

VERTICAL METAL SIDING

STONE

STONE COLUMN

PENDANT FIXTURE

WALL SCONCE

WEATHERVANE

Planning, Architecture, and Interior Design
Scottsdale, Arizona | 480.367.2100

SWABACK PARTNERS pllc

WINDMILL WINERY

W
IN

D
M

IL
L 

W
IN

E
R

Y
 IN

N
D

E
S

IG
N

 R
E

V
IE

W
 S

U
B

M
IT

T
A

L

NOVEMBER 23, 2016

F
LO

R
E

N
C

E
, A

R
IZ

O
N

A

BUILDING ELEVATIONS

W
in

dm
ill

 W
in

er
y 

E
xp

an
si

on

NORTH ELEVATION

EAST ELEVATION WEST ELEVATION

SOUTH ELEVATION

4'4'4'4'0000 8'8'8'8' 16'16'16'16'

PENDANT 14" DIAMETER 10" HIGH 

3 BULB 150WATT

ARTISAN RUSTIC INDUSTRIAL OUTDOOR SCONCE

11"H x 11"W x 12.5"E  60WATT MEDIUM BASE LMAP MAX.

*SEE MATERIAL BOARD FOR COLOR RANGE OPTIONS

fly
mw



MAIN LEVEL

0"

FASCIA

10' - 0"

ROOF

14' - 0"

METAL ROOF

VERTICAL METAL SIDING

HORIZONTAL SIDING STONE WAINSCOTWROUGHT IRON RAILING HORIZONTAL SIDING

STONE COLUMN

WOOD COLUMN

PENDANT FIXTURE

WOOD BEAM

WALL SCONCE

FASCIA

10' - 0"

ROOF

14' - 0"

METAL ROOF

VERTICAL METAL SIDING

METAL ROOF

HORIZONTALWOOD SIDING

STONE WAINSCOT STONE 

HORIZONTAL WOOD SIDING

2

PRES 1

5

PRES 1

3 WAY 

MIRROR

FP

MAKE UP

PORCH

HIGH WINDOWS

W.I.C

BRIDES COTTAGE

WC

SWING

4

PRES 1

PENDANT FIXTURE

WALL SCONCE

MAIN LEVEL

0"

FASCIA

10' - 0"

ROOF

14' - 0"

METAL ROOF

VERTICAL METAL 

SIDING

METAL ROOF

STONE WAINSCOT STONE WROUGHT IRON RAILINGHORIZONTAL SIDING

STONE COLUMN

WOOD COLUMN

PENDANT FIXTURE

WOOD BEAM

WALL SCONCE

FASCIA

10' - 0"

ROOF

14' - 0"

METAL ROOF

HORIZONTAL WOOD SIDING

STONE WAINSCOT

STONE 

WROUGHT IRON RAILING

HORIZONTAL WOOD SIDING

STONE WAINSCOTSTONE COLUMN
WOOD COLUMN

PENDANT FIXTURE

WOOD BEAM

WALL SCONCE

WOOD COLUMN

Planning, Architecture, and Interior Design
Scottsdale, Arizona | 480.367.2100

SWABACK PARTNERS pllc

WINDMILL WINERY

B
R

ID
A

L 
C

O
T

T
A

G
E

D
E

S
IG

N
 R

E
V

IE
W

 S
U

B
M

IT
T

A
L

NOVEMBER 23, 2016

F
LO

R
E

N
C

E
, A

R
IZ

O
N

A

MAIN LEVEL FLOOR PLAN

W
in

dm
ill

 W
in

er
y 

E
xp

an
si

on

EAST ELEVATION

NORTH ELEVATION

FLOOR PLAN

WEST ELEVATION

SOUTH ELEVATION

0000 2'2'2'2' 4'4'4'4' 8'8'8'8'

PENDANT 14" DIAMETER 10" HIGH 

3 BULB  150WATT MAX

ARTISAN RUSTIC INDUSTRIAL OUTDOOR SCONCE

11"H x 11"W x 12.5"E  60WATT MEDIUM BASE LMAP MAX.

*SEE MATERIAL BOARD FOR COLOR RANGE OPTIONS

fly
mw



fly
mw



Windmill Winery Expansion
Phase 1

Design Review Application

PARCEL: 202-05-001C

Town of Florence, AZ
November 23, 2016

resubmitted: december 21, 2016



DESIGN REVIEW SUBMITTAL: 11.23.16
2ND D.R. SUBMITTAL: 12.21.16

THE WINDMILL WINERY EXPANSION

The visual character is seen as an agrarian mixed-use environment that includes a 
diversity of density from farm fields to retail and commercial development. The specific 
uses being considered for this property also align directly with those uses allowed under 
the Territory Square: West End LUG including; commercial, specialty retail, restaurant, 
mixed-use buildings, and a small inn. A RV-Resort Vehicle use (limited/ short term only 
related to events) is also being contemplated as a future accessory use within the West 
End LUG. Unlike a formal setting with buildings organized along street fronts, these 
buildings and developments are envisioned to sit within the landscape in a less formal 
manner.

Phase 1

The planned project is envisioned to occur in a series of phases. Phase One will likely 
be developed nearest the north east corner of the site within an approximate area of 
seven (7) acres.  The envisioned initial phase;  will be developed across from the existing 
Windmill Winery facilities in order to maximize the synergy and range of uses that occur 
today.  Phase One is tentatively planned for a 25 room Winery Inn, the Cotton Gin 
Event Center, and a Bridal Cottage. All associated site improvements will take on the 
character and quality of the Windmill Winery in order to emphasize the indoor-outdoor 
experience of the Arizona agrarian landscape themes.   

All of these components will be designed within the character and vernacular of the 
Windmill Winery. The architecture of the buildings will to capture the same qualities and 
characteristics of the existing facilities at the Windmill Winery.  

Future phases will surround the initial development and will be done in a manner to 
complement the overall character and quality of the setting.

W
IN

D
M

IL
L 

W
IN

ER
Y

 E
X

PA
N

SI
O

N
: P

H
A

SE
 1

SWABACK PARTNERS pllc
Planning, Architecture, and Interior Design
Scottsdale, Arizona | 480.367.2100

FL
O

RE
N

C
E

, A
RI

ZO
N

A
PR

O
JE

C
T 

N
A

RR
AT

IV
E



Design Review Application Page 9 of 11 

APPLICATION FOR DESIGN REVIEW 

PROJECT NAME:      

APPLICATION TYPE:  Minor (< 5 acres)  Major (>5 acres)  

Signage 

1. Property Owner: Name:    
Address:    

  
Phone:  Fax:   
Email:   

2. Applicant:    Name:   
Address:    

Phone: Fax: 
Email:    

3. Address or Location of Property:      

Tax Parcel Numbers:   

Gross Acres:  Net Acres: Current Zoning District:   

4. Describe project in detail:
            
            
          

_____________ __________ 
SIGNATURE OF PROPERTY OWNER or REPRESENTATIVE DATE 

FOR STAFF USE ONLY: 

CASE NO.  APPLICATION DATE AND TIME 

PERMIT NO. FEE $   

PZC HEARING DATE REVIEWED BY: 

Windmill Winery Expansion: Phase 1

X

Florence Artisan Acres, LLC
4545 N. 36th St., Ste. 214

Phoenix, AZ 85018

(602) 402-4455 (602) 926-2560

jonnyshoe7@aol.com

SE corner of Plant Rd. and Butte Ave.

APN 202-05-001C

7 Territory Square (TS)

Jeffrey M. Denzak
7550 E. McDonald Drive

(480) 367-2100

jdenzak@swabackpartners.com

Phase 1 will include an agrarian multi-use development consisting of a Cotton Gin Event Center, 
the Winery Inn (25 rooms), a Bridal Cottage, several event lawns, and an orchard. Parking and circulation 
are provided to accomodate populated events, service and emergency access.

11.23.16

(480) 367-2101



NTS

This map is created for reference purposes only and is to
be used at your own risk.  The Town of Florence makes
no warranty as to the accuracy or completeness of the
information contained in this map and assumes no
liability for any errors or omissions contained therein,
nor for any direct, indirect, or consequential damages
Which may be caused by its use.  It is the user’s
responsibility to verify all information contained herein.

Zoning Map

Map Information
20205001C

TS
Not Available

Not Available
Not Available

Not Available
05S 09E S02

PHOENIX
AZ

85018
Not Available
USA

Not Available
1,759,745.62

40.40

Selected Parcel:
Zoning:
Full Address:
City:
State:
Zip Code:
Survey Location:
Parcel Address:

Owner Name 1:

Owner Name 2:

Mail ing Address 1:

Mail ing Address 2:

Mail ing City:
Mail ing State:
Mail ing Zip Code:
Mail ing Province:
Mail ing Country:
Mail ing Postal Code:
Parcel Size (sq ft) :
Parcel Size (acres):

Town of Florence

REFERENCE ONLY
NOT FOR COMMERCIAL USE

Not Available

Not Available

4545 N 36TH ST STE
214

FLORENCE ARTISAN
ACRES LLC

P
la

n
t 

R
d

.

Butte Ave.

NET ACRES: APPROX. 7 ACRES

PHASE 1 EXTENTS

300' BUFFER

PARCEL BOUNDARIES

CIRCULATION

EXISTING WINDMILL 

WINERY

WINDMILL WINERY 

EXPANSION:

WINDMILL WINERY 

EXPANSION:

APN: 20040008C

APN: 20211001C

APN: 20211004D

APN: 20205001D

APN: 20040010A

APN: 20205001C

APN: 20205001C

APN: 20039003A

300'

BUFFER

PHASE 1

W
IN

D
M

IL
L 

W
IN

ER
Y

 E
X

PA
N

SI
O

N
: P

H
A

SE
 1

SWABACK PARTNERS pllc
Planning, Architecture, and Interior Design
Scottsdale, Arizona | 480.367.2100

FL
O

RE
N

C
E

, A
RI

ZO
N

A
V

IC
IN

IT
Y

 M
A

P
LEGEND     

APN: 20040009A

DESIGN REVIEW SUBMITTAL: 11.23.16
2ND D.R. SUBMITTAL: 12.21.16



W
IN

D
M

IL
L 

W
IN

ER
Y

 E
X

PA
N

SI
O

N
: P

H
A

SE
 1

SWABACK PARTNERS pllc
Planning, Architecture, and Interior Design
Scottsdale, Arizona | 480.367.2100

FL
O

RE
N

C
E

, A
RI

ZO
N

A
SI

TE
 P

LA
N

BUTTE AVENUE

PROPERTY LINE

PR
O

PE
RT

Y
 LI

N
E

55
' E

A
ST

SI
D

E 
R.

O
.W

. P
RO

PO
SE

D

30' SOUTHSIDE R.O.W. PROPOSED

THE ORCHARD
ENTRY "BRIDGE" CROSSING

ENTRY DROP-OFF

FOUNTAIN

NORTH GARDEN

26'

26
' THE GATEWAY

INN PATIO & TERRACE

PERIMETER BERMING

WEDDING GARDEN

BRIDAL GARDEN

BUNK HOUSE PAVILLION

PORCH

PORCH

SILO

PORCH

30
'

20'

WEST LAWN

ARTISAN LAWN

DUMPSTER & ENCLOSURE

DUMPSTER & ENCLOSURE

WATER TANK

D

E

G G
G

G

G

F
F

F

34'

52'

26'

30'

26'

0’ 50’ 100’ 200’ 300’

C

TRELLIS

B

C

A

THE COTTON GIN 

EVENT CENTER

THE WINERY INN

PL
A

N
T 

RO
A

D

H

DESIGN REVIEW SUBMITTAL: 11.23.16
2ND D.R. SUBMITTAL: 12.21.16

PER TERRITORY SQUARE ZONING CODE:

WESTEND L.U.G. SETBACKS:

 STREET: 10'-30'

 REAR/SIDE: 10'-20'

LEGEND   

THE WINERY INN (25 ROOMS)

14,902 SF

9,560 SF

2 STORY

2 STORY

THE COTTON GIN EVENT CENTER

BRIDAL COTTAGE

WEDDING CEREMONY LOCATION

SETBACK LINE PER THE T.S. 

BUILDING SETBACKS

PROPOSED FIRE HYDRANT

SEE FIRE ACCESS ROUTE AND 
HYDRANT SPACING EXHIBIT

NOTE: SEE CIVIL ENGINEERING EXHIBITS (GRADING/DRAINAGE/FIRE 
ACCESS ROUTE) FOR ADDITIONAL SITE DIMENSION INFORMATION.

EVENT LAWN

CARRIAGE DRIVE

SERVICE & LOADING YARD

RETENTION BASIN

PARKING

CROSSWALK (CONCEPTUAL)

TWO TRUCK TRAILER/VEHICLE PARKING

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

I

I

ENTRY INTO WINDMILL WINERY

BUTTE AVENUE

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 D

RI
V

EW
A

Y
 IN

TO
 A

DJ
A

C
EN

T 
PR

O
PE

RT
Y

EXISTING WINDMILL WINERY



PROPERTY LINE

PR
O

PE
RT

Y
 LI

N
E

55
' E

A
ST

SI
D

E 
R.

O
.W

. P
RO

PO
SE

D

30' SOUTHSIDE R.O.W. PROPOSED

30
'

20'
THE COTTON GIN 

EVENT CENTER

THE WINERY INN

PL
A

N
T 

RO
A

D

BUTTE AVENUE

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 D

RI
V

EW
A

Y
 IN

TO
 A

DJ
A

C
EN

T 
PR

O
PE

RT
Y

DESIGN REVIEW SUBMITTAL: 11.23.16
2ND D.R. SUBMITTAL: 12.21.16

W
IN

D
M

IL
L 

W
IN

ER
Y

 E
X

PA
N

SI
O

N
: P

H
A

SE
 1

SWABACK PARTNERS pllc
Planning, Architecture, and Interior Design
Scottsdale, Arizona | 480.367.2100

FL
O

RE
N

C
E

, A
RI

ZO
N

A
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 S

ET
B

A
C

KS

19
0’

 1”

26
0’

 0
”

38
5’

 9
”

90
3’

 5
”

10
27

’ 8
”

95
2’

 10
”

TO
 S

O
U

TH
 P

/L

TO
 S

O
U

TH
 P

/L

TO
 S

O
U

TH
 P

/L

2121’ 2”

1852’ 9”

2000’ 0”

TO EAST P/L

TO EAST P/L

TO EAST P/L

380’ 3”

600’ 6”

0’ 50’ 100’ 200’ 300’

ENTRY INTO WINDMILL WINERY

EXISTING WINDMILL WINERY

BRIDAL COTTAGE

WEDDING CEREMONY LOCATION

SETBACK LINE PER THE T.S. 

BUILDING SETBACKS

EVENT LAWN

CARRIAGE DRIVE

SERVICE & LOADING YARD

RETENTION BASIN

PARKING

CROSSWALK (CONCEPTUAL)

TWO TRUCK TRAILER/VEHICLE PARKING



NOTE: PARKING STANDARD DIMENSIONS - 10'X18'
DRIVE AISLE: 26' WIDE

W
IN

D
M

IL
L 

W
IN

ER
Y

 E
X

PA
N

SI
O

N
: P

H
A

SE
 1

SWABACK PARTNERS pllc
Planning, Architecture, and Interior Design
Scottsdale, Arizona | 480.367.2100

FL
O

RE
N

C
E

, A
RI

ZO
N

A
PA

RK
IN

G
 P

LA
N

THE COTTON GIN 

EVENT CENTER

THE WINERY INN

PARKING CALCULATIONS       

USE  CALCULATION             REQUIRED   PROVIDED 

COTTON GIN @ 4,500 SF OF ASSEMBLY SPACE  60 63  

WINERY INN 1/SPACE PER ROOM   25 29  

STAFF PARKING      - 12  

    OVERALL TOTAL : 85 104  

35 PARKING SPACES
29 PARKING SPACES

28 PARKING SPACES

12 PARKING SPACES

HANDICAP PARKING

(5 TOTAL/1 VAN ACCESSIBLE)

PROPERTY LINE

PR
O

PE
RT

Y
 LI

N
E

PL
A

N
T 

RO
A

D

BUTTE AVENUE

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 D

RI
V

EW
A

Y
 IN

TO
 A

DJ
A

C
EN

T 
PR

O
PE

RT
Y

EXISTING WINDMILL WINERY

ENTRY INTO WINDMILL WINERY

0’ 50’ 100’ 200’ 300’ DESIGN REVIEW SUBMITTAL: 11.23.16
2ND D.R. SUBMITTAL: 12.21.16



W
IN

D
M

IL
L 

W
IN

ER
Y

 E
X

PA
N

SI
O

N
: P

H
A

SE
 1

SWABACK PARTNERS pllc
Planning, Architecture, and Interior Design
Scottsdale, Arizona | 480.367.2100

FL
O

RE
N

C
E

, A
RI

ZO
N

A

MAIN SITE ENTRANCE

SECONDARY SITE ENTRANCE

MAIN CIRCULATION ROUTE

EXISTING ROADS

PEDESTRIAN PATHWAYS

SERVICE DRIVE

DUMPSTER LOCAL/ACCESS

LEGEND    

*PE
D

ES
TR

IA
N

 &
 V

EH
IC

U
LA

R 
C

IR
C

U
LA

TI
O

N
 P

LA
N

*

BUTTE AVENUE

PROPERTY LINE

PR
O

PE
RT

Y
 LI

N
E

PL
A

N
T 

RO
A

D

BUTTE AVENUE

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 D

RI
V

EW
A

Y
 IN

TO
 A

DJ
A

C
EN

T 
PR

O
PE

RT
Y

THE COTTON GIN 

EVENT CENTER

THE WINERY INN

EXISTING WINDMILL WINERY

ENTRY INTO WINDMILL WINERY

PARKING CALCULATIONS       

USE  CALCULATION             REQUIRED   PROVIDED 

COTTON GIN @ 4,500 SF OF ASSEMBLY SPACE  60 63  

WINERY INN 1/SPACE PER ROOM   25 29  

STAFF PARKING      - 12  

    OVERALL TOTAL : 85 104  

DESIGN REVIEW SUBMITTAL: 11.23.16
2ND D.R. SUBMITTAL: 12.21.16

0’ 50’ 100’ 200’ 300’



THE COTTON GIN 

EVENT CENTER

THE WINERY INN

PROPERTY LINE

PR
O

PE
RT

Y
 LI

N
E

PL
A

N
T 

RO
A

D

BUTTE AVENUE

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 D

RI
V

EW
A

Y
 IN

TO
 A

DJ
A

C
EN

T 
PR

O
PE

RT
Y

LEGEND    

OVERALL SITE I.D. SIGNAGE

MAIN ENTRY SIGN

BUILDING I.D. SIGNAGE

WAYFINDING SIGNAGE

SPECIALTY SIGNAGE

1. REFER TO THE TERRITORY SQUARE 

ZONING DOCUMENT IN TERMS OF THE 

CHARACTER AND CONDITION OF A 

CONCEPTUAL SIGNAGE PACKAGE.

2. CIVIL ENGINEER TO IDENTIFY 

TRAFFIC/EMERGENCY SERVICE ACCESS 

SIGNAGE.

*

W
IN

D
M

IL
L 

W
IN

ER
Y

 E
X

PA
N

SI
O

N
: P

H
A

SE
 1

SWABACK PARTNERS pllc
Planning, Architecture, and Interior Design
Scottsdale, Arizona | 480.367.2100

FL
O

RE
N

C
E

, A
RI

ZO
N

A
C

O
N

C
EP

TU
A

L 
SI

G
N

A
G

E 
PL

A
N

***
*

*
* *

*

0’ 50’ 100’ 200’ 300’ DESIGN REVIEW SUBMITTAL: 11.23.16
2ND D.R. SUBMITTAL: 12.21.16

EXISTING WINDMILL WINERY

ENTRY INTO WINDMILL WINERY



W
IN

D
M

IL
L 

W
IN

ER
Y

 E
X

PA
N

SI
O

N
: P

H
A

SE
 1

SWABACK PARTNERS pllc
Planning, Architecture, and Interior Design
Scottsdale, Arizona | 480.367.2100

FL
O

RE
N

C
E

, A
RI

ZO
N

A
H

A
RD

SC
A

PE
 P

LA
N

LEGEND    

SDG

CRC

UP1

STABALIZED DECOMPOSED 

GRANITE

UNIT PAVERS TYPE 1

UNIT PAVERS TYPE 2

CONCRETE RIBBON CURB 

AT PERIMETER OF PARKING 

STALLS

CONCRETE PAD AT 

DUMPSTER LOCATIONS

NOTE: 

- RAIL ROAD TIES WHEEL STOPS TO 

MATCH EXISTING CONDITIONS.

- PARKING AND DRIVE SURFACES 

WILL BE STUDIED FURTHER TO 

ENSURE PROPOSALS MEET LOAD 

STANDARDS AS WELL AS ADDRESS 

ANY ASSOCIATED LIFE SAFETY 

WELFARE ISSUES.

CP

UP2

CRC

CRC

CRC

UP1

UP2

UP2

UP2

UP2

CP

CP

UP2

UP2

SDG

SDG
SDG

SDG

SDG

SDG

PROPERTY LINE

PR
O

PE
RT

Y
 LI

N
E

THE COTTON GIN 

EVENT CENTER

THE WINERY INN

PL
A

N
T 

RO
A

D

BUTTE AVENUE

EXISTING WINDMILL WINERY

ENTRY INTO WINDMILL WINERY

DESIGN REVIEW SUBMITTAL: 11.23.16
2ND D.R. SUBMITTAL: 12.21.16

0’ 50’ 100’ 200’ 300’

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 D

RI
V

EW
A

Y
 IN

TO
 A

DJ
A

C
EN

T 
PR

O
PE

RT
Y



W
IN

D
M

IL
L 

W
IN

ER
Y

 E
X

PA
N

SI
O

N
: P

H
A

SE
 1

SWABACK PARTNERS pllc
Planning, Architecture, and Interior Design
Scottsdale, Arizona | 480.367.2100

FL
O

RE
N

C
E

, A
RI

ZO
N

A
C

O
N

C
EP

TU
A

L 
LA

N
D

SC
A

PE
 

PL
A

N NOTES:
- ALL SHRUBS AND GROUNDCOVER PLANT MATERIALS ARE INCLUDED IN THE  
ARIZONA MUNICIPAL WATER USERS ASSOCIATION APPROVED PLANT LIST.
- PERIMETER OF SITE & BERMING TO BE HYDRO-SEEDED WITH NATIVE PLANT MIX.
- ALL DISTURBED GROUND TO BE FINISHED WITH DESERT NATURAL SURFACE.
- SITE VISIBILITY TRIANGLES SHOWN PER AASHTO STANDARDS. SVT'S TO BE 
COORDINATED WITH FINAL CIVIL PLANS.

TREES BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME CONT

                                 Cercidium x `Desert Museum` / Thornless Palo Verde 24" Box

                                 Citrus x sinensis / Sweet Orange 15 Gal.

                                 Fraxinus uhdei / Shamel Ash 24" Box

                                 Pinus eldarica / Afghan Pine 15 Gal.

                                 Populus fremontii / Fremont Cottonwood 24" Box

                                 Populus nigra `Italica` / Lombardy Poplar 15 Gal.

                                 Prosopis chilensis / Chilean Mesquite 24" Box

                                 x Chitalpa tashkentensis `Pink Dawn` / Pink Dawn Chitalpa 24" Box

SOD/SEED BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME

                                 Cynodon dactylon `419 Hybrid` / Bermuda Grass

PLANT SCHEDULE

TREES BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME CONT

                                 Cercidium x `Desert Museum` / Thornless Palo Verde 24" Box

                                 Citrus x sinensis / Sweet Orange 15 Gal.

                                 Fraxinus uhdei / Shamel Ash 24" Box

                                 Pinus eldarica / Afghan Pine 15 Gal.

                                 Populus fremontii / Fremont Cottonwood 24" Box

                                 Populus nigra `Italica` / Lombardy Poplar 15 Gal.

                                 Prosopis chilensis / Chilean Mesquite 24" Box

                                 x Chitalpa tashkentensis `Pink Dawn` / Pink Dawn Chitalpa 24" Box

SOD/SEED BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME

                                 Cynodon dactylon `419 Hybrid` / Bermuda Grass

PLANT SCHEDULE

TREES BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME CONT

                                 Cercidium x `Desert Museum` / Thornless Palo Verde 24" Box

                                 Citrus x sinensis / Sweet Orange 15 Gal.

                                 Fraxinus uhdei / Shamel Ash 24" Box

                                 Pinus eldarica / Afghan Pine 15 Gal.

                                 Populus fremontii / Fremont Cottonwood 24" Box

                                 Populus nigra `Italica` / Lombardy Poplar 15 Gal.

                                 Prosopis chilensis / Chilean Mesquite 24" Box

                                 x Chitalpa tashkentensis `Pink Dawn` / Pink Dawn Chitalpa 24" Box

SOD/SEED BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME

                                 Cynodon dactylon `419 Hybrid` / Bermuda Grass

PLANT SCHEDULETREES BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME CONT

                                 Cercidium x `Desert Museum` / Thornless Palo Verde 24" Box

                                 Citrus x sinensis / Sweet Orange 15 Gal.

                                 Fraxinus uhdei / Shamel Ash 24" Box

                                 Pinus eldarica / Afghan Pine 15 Gal.

                                 Populus fremontii / Fremont Cottonwood 24" Box

                                 Populus nigra `Italica` / Lombardy Poplar 15 Gal.

                                 Prosopis chilensis / Chilean Mesquite 24" Box

                                 x Chitalpa tashkentensis `Pink Dawn` / Pink Dawn Chitalpa 24" Box

SOD/SEED BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME

                                 Cynodon dactylon `419 Hybrid` / Bermuda Grass

PLANT SCHEDULE

TREES BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME CONT

                                 Cercidium x `Desert Museum` / Thornless Palo Verde 24" Box

                                 Citrus x sinensis / Sweet Orange 15 Gal.

                                 Fraxinus uhdei / Shamel Ash 24" Box

                                 Pinus eldarica / Afghan Pine 15 Gal.

                                 Populus fremontii / Fremont Cottonwood 24" Box

                                 Populus nigra `Italica` / Lombardy Poplar 15 Gal.

                                 Prosopis chilensis / Chilean Mesquite 24" Box

                                 x Chitalpa tashkentensis `Pink Dawn` / Pink Dawn Chitalpa 24" Box

SOD/SEED BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME

                                 Cynodon dactylon `419 Hybrid` / Bermuda Grass

PLANT SCHEDULETREES BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME CONT

                                 Cercidium x `Desert Museum` / Thornless Palo Verde 24" Box

                                 Citrus x sinensis / Sweet Orange 15 Gal.

                                 Fraxinus uhdei / Shamel Ash 24" Box

                                 Pinus eldarica / Afghan Pine 15 Gal.

                                 Populus fremontii / Fremont Cottonwood 24" Box

                                 Populus nigra `Italica` / Lombardy Poplar 15 Gal.

                                 Prosopis chilensis / Chilean Mesquite 24" Box

                                 x Chitalpa tashkentensis `Pink Dawn` / Pink Dawn Chitalpa 24" Box

SOD/SEED BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME

                                 Cynodon dactylon `419 Hybrid` / Bermuda Grass

PLANT SCHEDULE

TREES BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME CONT

                                 Cercidium x `Desert Museum` / Thornless Palo Verde 24" Box

                                 Citrus x sinensis / Sweet Orange 15 Gal.

                                 Fraxinus uhdei / Shamel Ash 24" Box

                                 Pinus eldarica / Afghan Pine 15 Gal.

                                 Populus fremontii / Fremont Cottonwood 24" Box

                                 Populus nigra `Italica` / Lombardy Poplar 15 Gal.

                                 Prosopis chilensis / Chilean Mesquite 24" Box

                                 x Chitalpa tashkentensis `Pink Dawn` / Pink Dawn Chitalpa 24" Box

SOD/SEED BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME

                                 Cynodon dactylon `419 Hybrid` / Bermuda Grass

PLANT SCHEDULE
TREES BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME CONT

                                 Cercidium x `Desert Museum` / Thornless Palo Verde 24" Box

                                 Citrus x sinensis / Sweet Orange 15 Gal.

                                 Fraxinus uhdei / Shamel Ash 24" Box

                                 Pinus eldarica / Afghan Pine 15 Gal.

                                 Populus fremontii / Fremont Cottonwood 24" Box

                                 Populus nigra `Italica` / Lombardy Poplar 15 Gal.

                                 Prosopis chilensis / Chilean Mesquite 24" Box

                                 x Chitalpa tashkentensis `Pink Dawn` / Pink Dawn Chitalpa 24" Box

SOD/SEED BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME

                                 Cynodon dactylon `419 Hybrid` / Bermuda Grass

PLANT SCHEDULE

TREES BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME CONT

                                 Cercidium x `Desert Museum` / Thornless Palo Verde 24" Box

                                 Citrus x sinensis / Sweet Orange 15 Gal.

                                 Fraxinus uhdei / Shamel Ash 24" Box

                                 Pinus eldarica / Afghan Pine 15 Gal.

                                 Populus fremontii / Fremont Cottonwood 24" Box

                                 Populus nigra `Italica` / Lombardy Poplar 15 Gal.

                                 Prosopis chilensis / Chilean Mesquite 24" Box

                                 x Chitalpa tashkentensis `Pink Dawn` / Pink Dawn Chitalpa 24" Box

SOD/SEED BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME

                                 Cynodon dactylon `419 Hybrid` / Bermuda Grass

PLANT SCHEDULETREES BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME CONT

                                 Cercidium x `Desert Museum` / Thornless Palo Verde 24" Box

                                 Citrus x sinensis / Sweet Orange 15 Gal.

                                 Fraxinus uhdei / Shamel Ash 24" Box

                                 Pinus eldarica / Afghan Pine 15 Gal.

                                 Populus fremontii / Fremont Cottonwood 24" Box

                                 Populus nigra `Italica` / Lombardy Poplar 15 Gal.

                                 Prosopis chilensis / Chilean Mesquite 24" Box

                                 x Chitalpa tashkentensis `Pink Dawn` / Pink Dawn Chitalpa 24" Box

SOD/SEED BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME

                                 Cynodon dactylon `419 Hybrid` / Bermuda Grass

PLANT SCHEDULE

TREES BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME CONT

                                 Cercidium x `Desert Museum` / Thornless Palo Verde 24" Box

                                 Citrus x sinensis / Sweet Orange 15 Gal.

                                 Fraxinus uhdei / Shamel Ash 24" Box

                                 Pinus eldarica / Afghan Pine 15 Gal.

                                 Populus fremontii / Fremont Cottonwood 24" Box

                                 Populus nigra `Italica` / Lombardy Poplar 15 Gal.

                                 Prosopis chilensis / Chilean Mesquite 24" Box

                                 x Chitalpa tashkentensis `Pink Dawn` / Pink Dawn Chitalpa 24" Box

SOD/SEED BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME

                                 Cynodon dactylon `419 Hybrid` / Bermuda Grass

PLANT SCHEDULE
TREES BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME CONT

                                 Cercidium x `Desert Museum` / Thornless Palo Verde 24" Box

                                 Citrus x sinensis / Sweet Orange 15 Gal.

                                 Fraxinus uhdei / Shamel Ash 24" Box

                                 Pinus eldarica / Afghan Pine 15 Gal.

                                 Populus fremontii / Fremont Cottonwood 24" Box

                                 Populus nigra `Italica` / Lombardy Poplar 15 Gal.

                                 Prosopis chilensis / Chilean Mesquite 24" Box

                                 x Chitalpa tashkentensis `Pink Dawn` / Pink Dawn Chitalpa 24" Box

SOD/SEED BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME

                                 Cynodon dactylon `419 Hybrid` / Bermuda Grass

PLANT SCHEDULE

TREES BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME CONT

                                 Cercidium x `Desert Museum` / Thornless Palo Verde 24" Box

                                 Citrus x sinensis / Sweet Orange 15 Gal.

                                 Fraxinus uhdei / Shamel Ash 24" Box

                                 Pinus eldarica / Afghan Pine 15 Gal.

                                 Populus fremontii / Fremont Cottonwood 24" Box

                                 Populus nigra `Italica` / Lombardy Poplar 15 Gal.

                                 Prosopis chilensis / Chilean Mesquite 24" Box

                                 x Chitalpa tashkentensis `Pink Dawn` / Pink Dawn Chitalpa 24" Box

SOD/SEED BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME

                                 Cynodon dactylon `419 Hybrid` / Bermuda Grass

PLANT SCHEDULE

TREES BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME CONT

                                 Cercidium x `Desert Museum` / Thornless Palo Verde 24" Box

                                 Citrus x sinensis / Sweet Orange 15 Gal.

                                 Fraxinus uhdei / Shamel Ash 24" Box

                                 Pinus eldarica / Afghan Pine 15 Gal.

                                 Populus fremontii / Fremont Cottonwood 24" Box

                                 Populus nigra `Italica` / Lombardy Poplar 15 Gal.

                                 Prosopis chilensis / Chilean Mesquite 24" Box

                                 x Chitalpa tashkentensis `Pink Dawn` / Pink Dawn Chitalpa 24" Box

SOD/SEED BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME

                                 Cynodon dactylon `419 Hybrid` / Bermuda Grass

PLANT SCHEDULE

TREES BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME CONT

                                 Cercidium x `Desert Museum` / Thornless Palo Verde 24" Box

                                 Citrus x sinensis / Sweet Orange 15 Gal.

                                 Fraxinus uhdei / Shamel Ash 24" Box

                                 Pinus eldarica / Afghan Pine 15 Gal.

                                 Populus fremontii / Fremont Cottonwood 24" Box

                                 Populus nigra `Italica` / Lombardy Poplar 15 Gal.

                                 Prosopis chilensis / Chilean Mesquite 24" Box

                                 x Chitalpa tashkentensis `Pink Dawn` / Pink Dawn Chitalpa 24" Box

SOD/SEED BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME

                                 Cynodon dactylon `419 Hybrid` / Bermuda Grass

PLANT SCHEDULETREES BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME CONT

                                 Cercidium x `Desert Museum` / Thornless Palo Verde 24" Box

                                 Citrus x sinensis / Sweet Orange 15 Gal.

                                 Fraxinus uhdei / Shamel Ash 24" Box

                                 Pinus eldarica / Afghan Pine 15 Gal.

                                 Populus fremontii / Fremont Cottonwood 24" Box

                                 Populus nigra `Italica` / Lombardy Poplar 15 Gal.

                                 Prosopis chilensis / Chilean Mesquite 24" Box

                                 x Chitalpa tashkentensis `Pink Dawn` / Pink Dawn Chitalpa 24" Box

SOD/SEED BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME

                                 Cynodon dactylon `419 Hybrid` / Bermuda Grass

PLANT SCHEDULE

TREES BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME CONT

                                 Cercidium x `Desert Museum` / Thornless Palo Verde 24" Box

                                 Citrus x sinensis / Sweet Orange 15 Gal.

                                 Fraxinus uhdei / Shamel Ash 24" Box

                                 Pinus eldarica / Afghan Pine 15 Gal.

                                 Populus fremontii / Fremont Cottonwood 24" Box

                                 Populus nigra `Italica` / Lombardy Poplar 15 Gal.

                                 Prosopis chilensis / Chilean Mesquite 24" Box

                                 x Chitalpa tashkentensis `Pink Dawn` / Pink Dawn Chitalpa 24" Box

SOD/SEED BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME

                                 Cynodon dactylon `419 Hybrid` / Bermuda Grass

PLANT SCHEDULETREES BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME CONT

                                 Cercidium x `Desert Museum` / Thornless Palo Verde 24" Box

                                 Citrus x sinensis / Sweet Orange 15 Gal.

                                 Fraxinus uhdei / Shamel Ash 24" Box

                                 Pinus eldarica / Afghan Pine 15 Gal.

                                 Populus fremontii / Fremont Cottonwood 24" Box

                                 Populus nigra `Italica` / Lombardy Poplar 15 Gal.

                                 Prosopis chilensis / Chilean Mesquite 24" Box

                                 x Chitalpa tashkentensis `Pink Dawn` / Pink Dawn Chitalpa 24" Box

SOD/SEED BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME

                                 Cynodon dactylon `419 Hybrid` / Bermuda Grass

PLANT SCHEDULE

TREES BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME CONT

                                 Cercidium x `Desert Museum` / Thornless Palo Verde 24" Box

                                 Citrus x sinensis / Sweet Orange 15 Gal.

                                 Fraxinus uhdei / Shamel Ash 24" Box

                                 Pinus eldarica / Afghan Pine 15 Gal.

                                 Populus fremontii / Fremont Cottonwood 24" Box

                                 Populus nigra `Italica` / Lombardy Poplar 15 Gal.

                                 Prosopis chilensis / Chilean Mesquite 24" Box

                                 x Chitalpa tashkentensis `Pink Dawn` / Pink Dawn Chitalpa 24" Box

SOD/SEED BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME

                                 Cynodon dactylon `419 Hybrid` / Bermuda Grass

PLANT SCHEDULE
TREES BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME CONT

                                 Cercidium x `Desert Museum` / Thornless Palo Verde 24" Box

                                 Citrus x sinensis / Sweet Orange 15 Gal.

                                 Fraxinus uhdei / Shamel Ash 24" Box

                                 Pinus eldarica / Afghan Pine 15 Gal.

                                 Populus fremontii / Fremont Cottonwood 24" Box

                                 Populus nigra `Italica` / Lombardy Poplar 15 Gal.

                                 Prosopis chilensis / Chilean Mesquite 24" Box

                                 x Chitalpa tashkentensis `Pink Dawn` / Pink Dawn Chitalpa 24" Box

SOD/SEED BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME

                                 Cynodon dactylon `419 Hybrid` / Bermuda Grass

PLANT SCHEDULE

TREES BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME CONT

                                 Cercidium x `Desert Museum` / Thornless Palo Verde 24" Box

                                 Citrus x sinensis / Sweet Orange 15 Gal.

                                 Fraxinus uhdei / Shamel Ash 24" Box

                                 Pinus eldarica / Afghan Pine 15 Gal.

                                 Populus fremontii / Fremont Cottonwood 24" Box

                                 Populus nigra `Italica` / Lombardy Poplar 15 Gal.

                                 Prosopis chilensis / Chilean Mesquite 24" Box

                                 x Chitalpa tashkentensis `Pink Dawn` / Pink Dawn Chitalpa 24" Box

SOD/SEED BOTANICAL NAME / COMMON NAME

                                 Cynodon dactylon `419 Hybrid` / Bermuda Grass

PLANT SCHEDULE

LEGEND     

BRIDAL COTTAGE

WEDDING CEREMONY LOCATION

EVENT LAWN

CARRIAGE DRIVE

SERVICE & LOADING YARD

RETENTION BASIN

PARKING

CROSSWALK (CONCEPTUAL)

TWO TRUCK TRAILER/VEHICLE PARKING

SITE VISIBILITY TRIANGLES

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

I

SETBACK LINE PER THE T.S. BUILDING SETBACKS

BUTTE AVENUE

PROPERTY LINE

PR
O

PE
RT

Y
 LI

N
E

55
' E

A
ST

SI
D

E 
R.

O
.W

. P
RO

PO
SE

D

30' SOUTHSIDE R.O.W. PROPOSED

THE ORCHARD
ENTRY "BRIDGE" CROSSING

ENTRY DROP-OFF

FOUNTAIN

NORTH GARDEN

THE GATEWAY

INN PATIO & TERRACE

PERIMETER BERMING

WEDDING GARDEN

BRIDAL GARDEN

BUNK HOUSE PAVILLION

PORCH

PORCH

SILO

PORCH

30
'

20'

WEST LAWN

ARTISAN LAWN

DUMPSTER & ENCLOSURE

DUMPSTER & ENCLOSURE

WATER TANK

D

E

G G
G

G

G

F
F

F

C

TRELLIS

B

C

A

THE COTTON GIN 

EVENT CENTER

THE WINERY INN

PL
A

N
T 

RO
A

D

H

I

ENTRY INTO WINDMILL WINERY

BUTTE AVENUE

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 D

RI
V

EW
A

Y
 IN

TO
 A

DJ
A

C
EN

T 
PR

O
PE

RT
Y

EXISTING WINDMILL WINERY

0’ 50’ 100’ 200’ 300’ DESIGN REVIEW SUBMITTAL: 11.23.16
2ND D.R. SUBMITTAL: 12.21.16



W
IN

D
M

IL
L 

W
IN

ER
Y

 E
X

PA
N

SI
O

N
: P

H
A

SE
 1

SWABACK PARTNERS pllc
Planning, Architecture, and Interior Design
Scottsdale, Arizona | 480.367.2100

FL
O

RE
N

C
E

, A
RI

ZO
N

A
SI

TE
 L

IG
H

TI
N

G
 F

RA
M

EW
O

RK

LEGEND    

PARKING LOT LIGHTING:

WOOD SQUARE POLE WITH 

RUSTIC FIXTURE (MATCH 

EXISTING)

LOW PATHWAY LIGHTS

SPECIALTY OVERHEAD 

STRING MARKET LIGHTS

NOTE: 

1.  ACCENT LIGHTS AT SIGNAGE

2. ACCENT LOW LEVEL UP LIGHTS AT 

FEATURED LANDSCAPE

3. ARCHITECTURAL WALL SCONCES 

AND PORCH PENDANTS TO 

COMPLEMENT SITE LIGHTING

THE COTTON GIN 

EVENT CENTER

THE WINERY INN

PROPERTY LINE

PR
O

PE
RT

Y
 LI

N
E

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 D

RI
V

EW
A

Y
 IN

TO
 A

DJ
A

C
EN

T 
PR

O
PE

RT
Y

PL
A

N
T 

RO
A

D

BUTTE AVENUE

EXISTING WINDMILL WINERY

ENTRY INTO WINDMILL WINERY

DESIGN REVIEW SUBMITTAL: 11.23.16
2ND D.R. SUBMITTAL: 12.21.16

0’ 50’ 100’ 200’ 300’



W
IN

D
M

IL
L 

W
IN

ER
Y

 E
X

PA
N

SI
O

N
: P

H
A

SE
 1

SWABACK PARTNERS pllc
Planning, Architecture, and Interior Design
Scottsdale, Arizona | 480.367.2100

FL
O

RE
N

C
E

, A
RI

ZO
N

A
PO

TE
N

TI
A

L 
PH

A
SI

N
G

 
PL

A
N

 (P
H

A
SE

 1B
)

PROPERTY LINE

PR
O

PE
RT

Y
 LI

N
E

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 D

RI
V

EW
A

Y
 IN

TO
 A

DJ
A

C
EN

T 
PR

O
PE

RT
Y

PL
A

N
T 

RO
A

D

BUTTE AVENUE

EXISTING WINDMILL WINERY

ENTRY INTO WINDMILL WINERY

DESIGN REVIEW SUBMITTAL: 11.23.16
2ND D.R. SUBMITTAL: 12.21.16

0’ 50’ 100’ 200’ 300’

THE COTTON GIN 

EVENT CENTER

THE WINERY INN

SMALL ARTISAN 

RETAIL BUILDING

INN EXPANSION

INN COTTAGES

LEGEND    

PHASE 1B DEVELOPMENT

* POTENTIAL PHASING PLAN IS CONCEPTUAL IN 
NATURE.



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
8b. 

MEETING DATE:  February 21, 2017 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Public Work 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Chris Salas, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Authorization to contract with Holbrook Asphalt 
Company to provide HA5 high density mineral bond pavement 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
Subject:  Holbrook Asphalt Company                                                      Meeting Date:  February 21, 2017 
Page 1 of 1 

 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Authorization to enter into a contract with Holbrook Asphalt Company, to provide HA5 
high density mineral bond pavement preservation treatment in various locations, in an 
amount not to exceed $207,713.28.    
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The surface of the various locations throughout Florence are worn and in need of 
asphalt preservation.  The HA5 product is a surface treatment designed to extend 
pavement life and protect the surface from moisture and UV rays.  HA5 installations are 
backed by a five year warranty and the life of the treatment is expected to last seven to 
ten years.   
 
The HA5 product was applied on Heritage Way in previous years.   
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The cost to the Town to complete the project is $188,830.25, plus a 10% contingency, 
for a total of $207,713.28.    
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
  
Staff recommends Town Council approval.   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Goodyear Contract 
Goodyear Contract Extension 
Cooperative Cover Contract 
Florence Gardens Proposal 
Anthem at Merrill Ranch Units 11 and 13 Proposal 

preservation treatment in various locations.      































































































































CONTRACT COVER SHEET

For Contract Review- please route Contract through Fernando Camacho in Finance, Ext.# 7844.

A contract number will be assigned when it starts the review process.

NOTE: Contract Numbers will not be issued via email or over the telephone. Goodyear"

lease allout thisform completely or itwill be returned to `'bup̀"rias to review, approval, ar fling in LaserFichef p Y Y pp      ,

ffa response is not applicable,please use" N/A"- Do Not.Leaye Any Blanks.   N. r

Date Submitted for Review:     o lL
Type( check one):

Construction[-]     Contract®   Change Order/Modification   # NA Drop Down
IGA Development Agreement       Amendment®   # 1 Drop Down

Easement     Lease/Property Acquisition Other   ( please specify):

IDENTIFYING INFORMATION: ( Please fill in each field)

Requesting Dept., Contact Name, Ext. #:      Brief Summary of the Services to be provided:
Luke Albert, Engineering, x: 7519 High Density Mineral Bond/ Slurry Seal
Contractor Name, Address, Tel. No.:   Terms:

Holbrook Asphalt Start: 11/ 16/16 Expire: 11/ 15/17

3806 S. 16th Street Contract Amount: $ 973,451.

Phoenix, AZ 85040 Council Date: 10/26/15 COAC# 156683 N/A

Cory Galbraith, AZ Vice President Operations
602-307-0425, cory@holbrookasphalt.com City Clerk' s Office Use— Retention Date:      o a

Assigned Contract Number: CON- 16%3332Al

Link to:

REVIEWED ANDAPPRON' Fl):

Procurement:      t,      ContractYslProebred Vices

Legal:   LMWA Date:   JQ a All documents

City Manager:       Date:   When

requiredCONTRACTREVIEWREQUIRENIENTS

g

MENT PROCESS N4TE3 IGts, Easemezats, Ieaseil"roper#y'Acusition and Devel s t Agreements

P gent Review er, they;mast still tie seen by Legal Services. All Contracts must.be.reviewed and s    :  ffW uremenft

the Citi Manager& Leal Services priorto going to Council.      

Designate what method you used to arrive at this contract and whether the item is budgeted for:

Less than$ 5000  $ 5, 000 to$ 50,000— 3 written quotes  Cooperative Agreement   On-Call/ Task Order

Formal Solicitation, Incl. Solicitation Number: OP- 16-3332

Other—please name( e.g., sole source, demo, etc.& attach RAP( Request for Alternate Procurement) approved by Procurement Manager.

Budgeted: ® Yes   No Requires Council Action: Yes No®  If yes, Council Date:

Additional Funding Source? Federal—Identify: State— Identify:

Grant/Other—Identify: Attach all supporting documentation for funding source.

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS?

INSURANCE& BONDS r be completed bN Procurement Specialist)
Insurance Certificate:    Attached RW Initial Date: f

Bid Bond:     Attached Initial Date:

Performance Bond:  Attached Initial Date:

Payment Bond:      Attached Initial Date:

Revised: March 2015# 013401





Office of Procurement
Contract Amendment 190 N. Litchfield RoadAt-dill6t4o

No. 1 P.O. Box 5100

Contract Number:  CON- 16-3332-A1
Goodyear, AZ 85338

cmros

r
Phone: 623-882- 7879

High Density Mineral Bond/ Slurry Seal

CONTRACT EXTENSION

Contract CON- 16- 3332 is hereby mutually extended from 11/ 16/ 2016 through 11/ 15/2017 unless
terminated, cancelled or extended as otherwise provided in the contract.

There are three( 3) extensions remaining on the contract.

No other terms, conditions, or performance standards written or implied are changed.

Procurement Specialist: Russ Welborn, CPPB

City of Goodyear      ,     Hol o phalt

By:     By:    2     /

Jacque Beh ns, CPPB Date Vlghiiiure Date

Title: Procurement Manager IIIV   i} 
fi

j^ 

lIAJ
Typed Name and Title

Attested By: Annraved PiLto Form By:

Maureen Scott, City Clerk Roric Massey, City Attorney



HOLBASPH- 1 HOWENS

ACORN
CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

FDAT D/ YYYY)

100/ 4/2/412016

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER CONTACT
NAME:

The Presidio Group, Inc.      PHONE g01 924- 1400
FAX

6967 South River Gate Drive,# 200 A/ C No Ext:(    ) A/c, No):( 801) 924-1441
Salt Lake Ci UT 84047

E- MAIL
rece tion residio- rou comCity, ADDRESS:     p @p 9 p•

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC#

INSURER A: Employers Mutual Casualty 21415

INSURED
INSURER B: Advantage Workers Compenstion 40517

Holbrook Asphalt LLC INSURER C:

3828 S. 1700 E.  INSURER D:

St. George, UT 84790
INSURER E

INSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:      REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
TYPE OF

POLICY EFF POLICY EXP
LIMITSLTR INSD WVD POLICY NUMBER MM/ DDIYYYY MM/ DDIYYYY

A X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE       $ 1, 000,000
DAMAGE TO RENTED

CLAIMS- MADE N OCCUR X 4D7669017 06/15/2016 06/15/2017 PREMISES Ea occurrence    $   300,000

X EBL MED EXP( Any one person)    $     5,000

PERSONAL& ADV INJURY   $ 1, 000,000

GEN' LAGGREGATELIMIT APPLIES PER.  GENERAL AGGREGATE      $ 2,000,000

POLICYFX] PRO-
ECT F7LOC PRODUCTS- COMP/OP AGG  $ 2,0009000

OTHER: 

MBINED
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

COEacidentSINGLE LIMIT    $ 
1, 000,000ac

A X ANY AUTO 4D7669017 06/15/2016 06/15/2017 BODILY INJURY( Per person)  $

ALL OWNED SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY( Per accident) $
AUTOS AUTOS

HIRED AUTOS
NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE
AUTOS Per accident

X UMBRELLA LIAB X OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE       $ 2,000,000

A EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS- MADE 4D7669017 06/15/2016 06/15/2017 AGGREGATE 2,000,000

DED I X I RETENTION$     10,000

WORKERS COMPENSATION X
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

STATUTE
OERTH-

B ANY PROPRIETOR/ PARTNER/ EXECUTIVE
YIN

3144794 06/15/2016 06/15/2017 E.L. EACH ACCIDENT       $ 1, 000,000
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? F1NIA
Mandatory in NH)     E.L. DISEASE- EA EMPLOYE  $ 1, 000,000

If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE- POLICY LIMIT  $ 1, 000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS/ VEHICLES ( ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached If more space Is required)

Verification of Insurance subject to the terms and conditions of the policy.

City of Goodyear is additional insured with respect to General Liability.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

City of Goodyear
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF,  NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

Engineering Division
190 N. Litchfield Rd.

Goodyear, AZ 85338 AUTHORIZED REPPRRESENTATIVE

go RE
1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

ACORD 25( 2014/01)       The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



Policy Number: 4D7669016

COINIERCIAL GENERAL UABIUTY

THIS CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED— OWNERS, LESSEES OR CONTRACTORS—
AUTOMATIC STATUS WHEN REQUIRED IN CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT OR

AGREEMENT INCLUDING COMPLETED OPERATIONS— PRIMARY AND
NONCONTRIBUTORY

This endora. msnt modifies the Irurarnce provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABIUTY COVERAGE FORM

A. 8eetlon fi - Who N An burred is amended to surveys, Heid orders, charge orders or drswlgs
include as an additional Insured:  and specifications; or

1.  Any,person or organization for wham you are b. Supervisory,   inspection.   ardilleckwal or

perform" operationer when you and such erowerft solivities.
person or ag nastion have sprod in wrklmg In

This wiclusion apples even k the daNns spinet
a contrsnd or agrowner' that such person or

any Insured a"   or other wrongdaftorganization be added as an additional Insured
In Ihe supervision. heft. arriplopnent, baftV oron your PAY ad
nnonkorirg of others by the insured.  N the

L Any other person ororganaation you are ocorce'renwhich caused the ' bodly injury or
add asrequired to aan additi rnl inured wrier property damps•,or the oftne which caused the

the contract or agreernent deecrlbed in psreorrsi and advertift IrW. Involved the
Paragraph 1. above. rerndering of,  or the taRure to render,  any

Such penon(s) or orpnasdon(s) is an sddifionei an' mkectursl, agkrserimg or surveying
Insured only with reaper' to NoW for • bodily

swvbw

kW.  'property dwW or  ' personal and      . With respect to the Insurance offordedthese

I
adva thv awed, in whale or b-       

C
ad I",    insweds, the following is tadded to

a. Your acts or orniaions. or Section III- Lb11Ns Of Insurance.

b. The acts or omissions of those adkg on The most we will pay on behalf of the additional
your b~.     insured is the arrow' of Insurance:

in the pafoarance of.   1. Required by the contract or agreement

a.  your ongoing operations for the sddkWW
described in Paragraph A.1.; or

Insured; or 2 Available under the apple"  Umks of

b. ' Your work' for the additional Insured and
hMurMnCe shown In the Declarations;

included In the ' products - complead whicAeve is less.

operations betarf.      This endorsement shell not Increase the applicable

However, this insurance oft rim d to such eddltionwt
Units of Insurance shown in the Dederatione.

Insured described above:     D. The fok wing is added to the Other Insurance
a.  Only applies to the eudent perm ted by brew; Condition and supersedes any provision to the

and
oma":

b. VM not be broader than that which you are Prbnwy and Noncartribub" Ineannce

required by the cordrad or agreement to This Insurance is prirmrary a and will not seek
provide for such additional insured. contrbutlon from any other insurance available to

B. With rasped to the Insurance alforded to these an additional insured under your policy provided

additional insureds,  the kilawk additional
that:

exclusion applies:       1) The additional Insured Is a Named Insu; ed

This insurance does not apply to ' bodily ir4ury,'    
under such other Insurance; and

properly damage' and - personal and m v dWng 2) You have agreed In writing In a conbsct or
Igwy adelp out of the renderip of, or the f6kre agrearnert that this Insurance would be primary
to render,   any Professional wchkecdxal,    and would not seek conVibubon from any other
engineering or swvey)ng services inckudirg:   isuraece available to the additional insured.

a. The preparing, approving. or ft& V to prepare E. AN other arms and conditions of this policy remain
or approve maps, shop drawings, opinions, reports, wndwgpd.

CG7174, N10.13)   1114411011111011 k Pipe 1 of 1



Policy Number.41317669016 COMMERCIAL AUTO

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

COMMERCIAL AUTO AMENDMENT

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:
BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM

The BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM is amended to include the following clarifications and extensions of
coverage. With respect to coverage provided by this endorsement, the provisions of the Coverage Form apply unless
modified by the endorsement.
A.  BLANKET ADDITIONAL INSURED D.  COVERAGE EXTENSIONS - SUPPLEMENTARY

SECTION II - LIABILITY COVERAGE, A.I. Who PAYMENTS
Is An Insured is amended by adding the following:    SECTION 11  -  LIABILITY COVERAGE,  A.2. a.
d.  Any person or organization who is a party to a Coverage Extensions, Supplementary Payments

written agreement or contract with you in which 2) and( 4) are replaced by the following:
you agree to provide the type of insurance 2) Up to  $ 3,000 for the cost of bail bonds
afforded under this Business Auto Coverage including bonds for related traffic law
Form,   

violations) required because of an " accident"
This provision applies to claims for" bodily injury" or we cover.   We do not have to furnish these
property damage" which occur after the execution bonds.

of any written agreement or contract.     4) All reasonable expenses incurred by the
B.  NEWLY FORMED OR ACQUptED ORGANIZATIONS insured" at our request, including actual loss of

SECTION 11 - LIABILITY COVERAGE, A.I. Who earnings up to $ 350 a day because of time off
Is An Insured is amended by adding the following: 

from work.

e.  Any organization which you acquire or form
E.  PHYSICAL DAMAGE- TOWING

after the effective date of this policy in which SECTION III- PHYSICAL DAMAGE COVERAGE,
you maintain ownership or majority interest.   A.2. Towing is replaced with the following:
However:  We will pay for towing and labor costs incurred,
1) Coverage under this provision Is afforded subject to the following:

only up to 180 days after you acquire or a.  Up to $ 100 each time a covered " auto" of the
form the organization, or to the end of the private passenger type is disabled; or
policy period, whichever is earlier.       

b.  Up to $ 500 each time a covered " auto" other
2) Any organization you acquire or form will than the private passenger type is disabled.

not be considered an" insured" if:
However, the labor must be performed at the place

A.  The organization is a partnership or a of disablement.
joint venture; or

F.  PHYSICAL DAMAGE   -   TRANSPORTATION
B.  That organization is covered under EXPENSES

other similar insurance.       
SECTION III- PHYSICAL DAMAGE COVERAGE,

3) Coverage under this provision does not A.4.   Coverage Extensions subparagraph a.
apply to any claim for " bodily injury" or Transportation Expenses is replaced by the
property damage"   resulting from an following:
accident" that occurred before you formed

1) We will pay up to$ 75 per day to a maximum ofor acquired the organization.  
1, 000 for temporary transportation expenseC.  SUBSIDIARIES AS INSUREDS incurred by you because of the total theft of a

SECTION 11 - LIABILITY COVERAGE, A.I. Who covered " auto" of the private passenger type.
Is An Insured is amended by adding the following: We will pay only for those covered " autos" for
L An legally in which you cant'  either Comprehensive orY 9 Y   

rpo50%  subsidiary in which Specified Cause of Loss Coverage.   We willyou own more than 50% of the voting stock on
pay for temporary transportation expensesthe effective date of this policy.   However,
incurred during the period beginning 48 hoursinsured" does not include any subsidiary that is

an" insured" under any other automobile liability after the theft and ending, regardless of the
policy or was an " insured" under such a policy

policy's expirations, when the covered " auto" is
but for termination of thatpolicy or the retumed to use or we pay for its loss.
exhaustion of the policy's limits of liability.

CA7270(3-07) Inchrdes copyrighted material of ISO Properties, Inc, with its permission. Page 1 of 2



Policy Number: 4D7669016

2) If the temporary transportation expenses you If a Comprehensive, Specified Causes of Loss or
incur arise from your rental of an " auto" of the Collision Coverage  " loss"  from one  " accident"

private passenger type, the most we will pay is involves two or more covered  " autos", only the
the amount it costs to rent an " auto" of the highest deductible applicable to those coverages

private passenger type which is of the same will be applied to the" accident".

like kind and quality as the stolen covered This provision only applies if you carry
auto."      Comprehensive, Collision or Specified Causes of

G.  HIRED AUTO PHYSICAL DAMAGE Loss Coverage for those vehicles, and does not

SECTION III— PHYSICAL DAMAGE COVERAGE,   extend coverage to any covered " autos" for which

A.4. Coverage Extensions is amended by adding
you do not carry such coverage.

the following:      K.  WAIVER OF DEDUCTIBLE— GLASS REPAIR OR

c.  If hired " autos" are covered " autos" for Liability
REPLACEMENT

Coverage,  and if Comprehensive,  Specified SECTION Ili— PHYSICAL DAMAGE COVERAGE,

Causes of Loss,  or Collision coverage is D. Deductible is amended by adding the following:
provided for any " auto" you own,  then the If a Comprehensive Coverage deductible is shown
Physical Damage coverages provided are in the Declarations it does not apply to the cost of
extended to " autos" you hire, subject to the

repairing or replacing damaged glass.
following limit and deductible:

The most we will a for loss to an hired
L.  DUTIES IN THE EVENT OF ACCIDENT, CLAIM,

auto" is the lesser of $50,000 or Actual SUIT, OR LOSS

Cash Value

of
Cost of Repair, minus the SECTION IV — BUSINESS AUTO CONDITIONS,

deductible.   A.2. Duties in the Event of Accident, Claim, Suit

2) The deductible will be equal to the largest
or Loss is amended by adding the fallowing:

deductible applicable to any owned " auto"   
d.  Your obligation to notify us promptly of an

for that coverage.  No deductible applies to accident," claim, " suit" or " loss" is satisfied if

loss" caused by fire or lightning.      
you send us the required notice as soon as

3 Subject to the above limit, deductible and
practicable after your Insurance Administrator

Subj or anyone else designated by you to be
excess provisions,   we will provide responsible for insurance matters is notified, or
coverage equal to the broadest coverage

in any manner made aware, of an " accident,"
applicable to any covered" auto" you own.  claim," suit" or" loss."

The insurance provided under this provision is M.  UNINTENTIONAL FAILURE TO DISCLOSE

excess over any other collectible insurance. EXPOSURES

H.  PERSONAL PROPERTY OF OTHERS SECTION IV — BUSINESS AUTO CONDITIONS,

SECTION III— PHYSICAL DAMAGE COVERAGE,   8.2. Concealment, Misrepresentation, or Fraud
A.4. Coverage Extensions is amended by adding is amended by adding the following:
the following:   If you unintentionally fail to disclose any exposures
d.  We will pay up to $ 500 for loss to personal existing at the inception date of this policy, we will

property of others in or on your covered" auto."    not deny coverage under this Coverage Part solely
This coverage applies only in the event of" loss"   

because of such failure to disclose.  However, this

to your covered" auto" caused by fire, lightning,   
provision does not affect our right to collect

explosion,  theft,  mischief or vandalism,  the
additional premium or exercise our right of

covered" auto's" collision with another object, or
cancellation or non-renewal.

the covered" auto's" overtum.     N.  MENTAL ANGUISH

No deductibles apply to this coverage.       SECTION V— DEFINITIONS, C. is replaced by the

I.   AIRBAG COVERAGE following:

SECTION III— PHYSICAL DAMAGE COVERAGE,   Bodily injury"  means bodily injury,  sickness or

B.3. a.  Exclusions is amended by adding the disease sustained by a person, including mental

following:       
anguish or death resulting from bodily injury,
sickness or disease.

If you have purchased Comprehensive or Collision
O.  LIBERALIZATION

Coverage under this policy, the exclusion relating to
mechanical breakdown does not apply to the If we revise this endorsement to provide greater

accidental discharge of an airbag. coverage without additional premium charge, we

J.  LOSS TO TWO OR MORE COVERED AUTOS will automatically provide the additional coverage to

FROM ONE ACCIDENT
all endorsement holders as of the day the revision

SECTION III— PHYSICAL DAMAGE COVERAGE,   
is effective in your state.

D. Deductible is amended by adding the following:

CA7270(3-07) Induces copyrighted material of ISO Properties, Inc. with its permission. Page 2 of 2



TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA 
CONTRACT FOR COOPERATIVE USE OF CITY OF GOODYEAR 

SOLICITATION/CONTRACT NUMBER CON-16-3332 AND CON-16-3332-A1 FOR 
HIGH DENSITY MINERAL BOND APPLICATION / SLURRY SEAL ON TOWN 

STREETS 
 
 

THIS CONTRACT (the “Contract”) is made and entered into effective as of the 21st day 
of February, 2017 (“Effective Date”), by and between the Town of Florence, Arizona (the 
“Town”), and Holbrook Asphalt, LLC (the “Contractor”) and together with the Contract 
Documents referred to and incorporated herein, is the “resultant contract” contemplated 
in the City of Goodyear Solicitation No. 16-3332, Contract Number: CON-16-3332 and 
Contract Amendment No.1 Contract Number CON-16-3332-A1 for High Density Mineral 
Bond / Slurry Seal services.   The Town and the Contractor are sometimes referred to in 
this Contract collectively as the “Parties” and each individually as a “Party”.  
 

1. SCOPE OF WORK: The Contractor shall provide the Town all necessary labor, 
material, transportation services and equipment to perform High Density Mineral 
Bond Application / Slurry Seal on Town streets per contract specifications 
described in the attached scope of materials and services set forth in Exhibit “1” 
(the “Services”). The Contractor shall provide the Services in accordance with the 
schedule attached in Exhibit “1”, and the Contract Documents, including all 
exhibits to the Master Contract including but not limited to any Standard Terms 
and Conditions, Special Terms and Conditions and Detailed Specifications.  
Contractor agrees, at its own cost and expense, to do all of the work and furnish 
all of the equipment, personnel and materials necessary to provide in a good and 
substantial manner, and to the satisfaction of the Town, the Services. 

2. PRIORITY OF DOCUMENTS. It is further expressly agreed by and between the 
Parties that should there be any conflict between the terms of this Contract, the 
Master Contract, or the Contractor’s Proposal, then this Contract and the 
provisions of the Contract Documents shall control and nothing herein shall be 
considered as an acceptance of the terms of the said Proposal conflicting 
herewith or with the Master Contract, unless expressly stated herein. 

3. INCORPORATION: For and in consideration of this Contract and other good and 
valuable consideration, the Contractor agrees that the master cooperative 
solicitation/contract (the City of Goodyear Solicitation No. 16-3332, Contract 
Number: CON-16-3332, Contract Amendment No.1 Contract Number CON-16-
3332-A1 for High Density Mineral Bond Application / Slurry Seal services) is in 
full force and effect, and all terms and conditions of the Master Contract are 
incorporated by reference into this Contract, creating an agreement identical in 
terms between the Town and Contractor.  In the Master Contract, the terms: 
“City”, “City of Goodyear”, shall be deemed to be and refer to the Town of 
Florence; the terms: “Maricopa County”, shall be deemed to be and refer to Pinal 
County; the terms: “Pavement Manager”, shall be deemed to be and refer to the 
Florence Public Works Director, Town of Florence, 425 E. Ruggles Street, 



Florence, AZ 85132; and the terms: “Bidder”, “Contractor,” and “Offeror”, shall be 
deemed to be and refer to the Contractor under this Contract.  

4. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: This Contract consists of the following  contract 
documents, which by reference are incorporated herein: 
A. This signed Contract. 
B. The solicitation Documents for the City of Goodyear Solicitation No. 16-3332 

for High Density Mineral Bond / Slurry Seal, issued September 3, 2015 and 
Contract Number: CON-16-3332 effective November 16, 2015 and Contract 
Amendment No.1 Contract Number: CON-16-3332-A1 between the City of 
Goodyear and Holbrook Asphalt, LLC, including, but not limited to: Invitation 
for Bid, Instructions to Bidders, Fee Schedules; Notices; Checklists; 
Requirements for Proposers; Standard Terms and Conditions; Special Terms 
and Conditions; Scope of Work; Work Schedule; Certificates of Compliance; 
Warranties for Work; Work Forms; Attachments; Price Sheets; 
Questionnaires; Response Forms; Special Provisions and Specifications; 
Technical Provisions and Specifications; Schedules; Cooperative 
Authorizations; Exhibits; Solicitation Amendment No. 1 and No.2 (the 
“Contract Documents” or “Master Contract”). 

5. CONTRACT PRICING: Contract pricing shall be consistent with the Contract 
Documents and Contractor’s Proposal and is listed in Exhibit “1” (Price Sheet), 
and shall not exceed $207,713.28. 

6. TERM OF CONTRACT: The term of this Contract shall be from the Effective 
Date through satisfactory completion of the Services or delivery of Goods and 
acceptance of the Services and/or Goods by the Town. Time is of the essence to 
the terms of this Contract. 

7. COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL AND STATE LAWS. 
A. The Contractor understands and acknowledges the applicability to it of the 

American with Disabilities Act, the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 
1986 and the Drug Free Workplace Act of 1989.  

 
B. Under the provisions of A. R. S. § 41-4401, Contractor hereby warrants to the 

Town  that the Contractor and each of its subcontractors will comply with, and 
are contractually obligated to comply with, all Federal Immigration laws and 
regulations that relate to their employees and A. R. S. § 23-214 (A) 
(hereinafter “Contractor Immigration Warranty”). 

 
C. A breach of the Contractor Immigration Warranty shall constitute a material 

breach of this Contract and shall subject the Contractor to penalties up to and 
including termination of this Contract at the sole discretion of the Town. 

 
D. The Town retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any Contractor or 

Subcontractor’s employee who works on this Contract to ensure that the 
Contractor or Subcontractor is complying with the Contractor Immigration 
Warranty.  Contractor agrees to assist the Town in regard to any such 
inspections. 

 



E. The Town may, at is sole discretion, conduct random verification of the 
employment records of the Contractor and any subcontractors to ensure 
compliance with Contractor’s Immigration Warranty.  Contractor agrees to 
assist the Town in regard to any random verification performed. 

 
F. Neither the Contractor nor any subcontractor shall be deemed to have 

materially breached the Contractor Immigration Warranty if the Contractor or 
subcontractor establishes that it has complied with the employment 
verification provisions prescribed by section 274A and 274B of the Federal 
Immigration and Nationality Act and the E-Verify requirements prescribed by 
A. R. S. § 23-214, Subsection A. 

 
G. The provisions of this Section must be included in any contract the Contractor 

enters into with any and all of its subcontractors who provide Services under 
this Contract or any subcontract.  “Services” are defined as furnishing labor, 
time or effort in the State of Arizona by a contractor or subcontractor.  
Services include construction or maintenance of any structure, building or 
transportation facility or improvement to real property. 

 
H. The provisions of this Section must be included in any contract the Contractor 

enters into with any and all of its subcontractors who provide Services under 
this Contract or any subcontract.  

 
8. METHOD OF PAYMENT.  Method of payment shall be set forth in Exhibit “1”.  

If payment is to be made monthly, Contractor shall prepare monthly invoices and 
progress reports which clearly indicate the progress to date and the amount of 
compensation due by virtue of that progress.  All invoices shall be for Services 
completed or Goods accepted by the Town. 

9. TERMINATION.  Town, at any time and for any reason and without cause, may 
terminate, suspend or abandon any portion, or all, of this Contract at Town’s 
convenience without penalty or recourse.  Contractor shall receive payment for 
Services or Goods satisfactorily completed and accepted by Town, as 
determined by Town in its reasonable discretion, based on the Goods and/or 
Services requirements and schedule for payment. 

10. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.  It is understood that Contractor shall be an 
independent contractor with respect to Services and/or Goods provided under 
this Contract, and shall not be deemed to be a partner, employee, joint venture, 
agent, or to have any other legal relationship with Town. 

11. Notices.  Any notice to be given under this Contract shall be in writing, shall be 
deemed to have been given when personally served or when mailed by certified 
or registered mail, addressed as follows:  Town: Town of Florence, Town Clerk, 
775 N. Main Street, PO Box 2670, Florence, AZ 85132; and Contractor: Holbrook 
Asphalt, LLC Attn: Justin Holbrook, 3806 S. 16th Street, Phoenix, AZ 85040. 

12.  INDEMNIFICATION.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor, its 
successors, assigns and guarantors, shall pay, defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless the Town of Florence, its Mayor and Council members, its agents, 



officers, officials, representatives and employees, from and against all demands, 
claims proceedings, suits, damages, losses and expenses (including but not 
limited to attorney’s fees, court costs, and the costs of appellate proceedings), 
and all claim adjustment and handling expenses, relating to, arising out of, or 
alleged to have resulted from the acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, Goods or 
Services of the Contractor, its agents, employees or any tier of Contractor’s 
subcontractors related to the Goods or Services in the performance of this 
Contract.  Contractor’s duty to defend, hold harmless and indemnify Town of 
Florence, its Mayor and  Council members, its agents, officers, officials, 
representatives and employees shall arise in connection with any claim, damage, 
loss or expense that is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, death, or 
injury to, impairment, or destruction of property including loss of use of resulting 
therefrom, caused by Contractor’s acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, Goods, 
Services in the performance of this Contract including any employee of the 
Contractor, any tier of Contractor’s subcontractors or any other person for whose 
acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, Goods, Services the Contractor may be legally 
liable. 

13. WARRANTY.  Contractor warrants that the Goods and Services will conform to 
the requirements of this Contract.  Additionally, Contractor warrants that all 
Services will be performed in a good, workman-like and professional manner.  
The Town’s acceptance of Goods or Services provided by Contractor shall not 
relieve Contractor from its obligations under this warranty.  If any Goods or 
Services are of a substandard or unsatisfactory manner as determined by the 
Town, Contractor, at no additional charge to the Town, will provide Goods or 
redo such Services until they are in accordance with this Contract and to the 
Town’s reasonable satisfaction.  Unless otherwise agreed, Contractor, warrants 
that Goods will be new, unused, of most current manufacture and not 
discontinued, will be free of defects in materials and workmanship, will be 
provided in accordance with manufacturer’s standard warranty for at least one (1) 
year, unless otherwise specified, and will perform in accordance with 
manufacturer’s published specifications. 

14. PURCHASING POLICY.  The Town of Florence Town Code and Purchasing 
Policy govern this procurement and are incorporated as part of this Contract by 
this reference.  

15. GOVERNING LAW.  This Contract shall be deemed to be made under, shall be 
construed in accordance with, and shall be governed by the laws of the State of 
Arizona, without reference to choice of law or conflicts of laws principles thereof. 
The exclusive forum selected for any proceeding or suit in law or equity arising 
from or incident to this Contract shall be Pinal County, Arizona. 

16. PROHIBITED BOYCOTT.  Pursuant to A.R.S. 35-393.01, the Contractor, by 
execution of this Contract, certifies that it is not currently engaged in, and agrees 
for the duration of this Contract to not engage in, a boycott of Israel. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Contract effective as of the 
Effective Date set forth above. 
 



 
 
TOWN OF FLORENCE, A municipal corporation 
 
By: __________________________  Date:_________________________ 
       Tara Walter, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
______________________________ 
Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney 
 
 
CONTRACTOR 
 
By: ___________________________  
 
Date:__________________________ 
 
Its: ___________________________  
         
 
           



PROPOSAL
Date

1/13/2017

Estimate

33561

Client
Florence City
Chris Salas
PO Box 2670
425 E. Ruggles
Florence, AZ 85132

Project Location
SR79 and Gila Road
Florence, Az 85132

P.O. Number
GY- 16-3332-A1

Terms
Due upon completion

Advisor
Deke

Project Description

2017 Florence Gardens

State License #
AZ-ROC261715

Region
AZ, Southern

Print Name Date Holbrook Asphalt Co.

www.HolbrookAsphalt.com

Arizona Office
3806 S 16th Street
Phoenix, AZ 85040

P: 602.307.0425
F: 435.656.3943

Nevada Office
2900 Meade Ave, Ste 7
Las Vegas, NV 89118

P: 702.823.3902
F: 702.777.7575

Utah Office
3828 South 1700 East
St. George, UT 84790

P: 435.652.4427
F: 435.656.3943

_______________________ ___________________________________ ____________________

Description Quantity U/M Rate Total
HA5 HIGH DENSITY MINERAL BOND: Phase II
-- Clean & prepare surface using high pressure air & wire bristle brooms.
-- Install "HA5" High Density Mineral Bond advanced performance pavement preservation treatment.
-- No guarantee surface treatments will adhere to areas saturated with motor oil.
-- HA5 meets demands of APWA (American Public Works Association) specification 

 (Section 32 01 13.68 High Density Mineral Bond).

38,958 SqYd 1.48 57,657.84

HA5 HIGH DENSITY MINERAL BOND: Phase III
-- Clean & prepare surface using high pressure air & wire bristle brooms.
-- Install "HA5" High Density Mineral Bond advanced performance pavement preservation treatment.
-- No guarantee surface treatments will adhere to areas saturated with motor oil.
-- HA5 meets demands of APWA (American Public Works Association) specification 

 (Section 32 01 13.68 High Density Mineral Bond).

24,311 SqYard 1.47996 35,979.31

HA5 HIGH DENSITY MINERAL BOND: Centennial Subdivision
-- Clean & prepare surface using high pressure air & wire bristle brooms.
-- Install "HA5" High Density Mineral Bond advanced performance pavement preservation treatment.
-- No guarantee surface treatments will adhere to areas saturated with motor oil.
-- HA5 meets demands of APWA (American Public Works Association) specification 

 (Section 32 01 13.68 High Density Mineral Bond).

12,648 SqYard 1.47996 18,718.53

If necessary, a payment and/or performance bond cost will be adjusted to the total price of this proposal
at a rate of 1.2 percent.

1 1,348.27 1,348.27

Tax Rate 1 12,166.32 12,166.32
City Tax at 4.0%
State and County Tax at 6.7%
Combined tax Total Rate 10.7%

Total $125,870.27



PROPOSAL
Date

2/14/2017

Estimate

33889

Client
Florence City
PO Box 2670
425 E. Ruggles
Florence, AZ 85132

Project Location
CROSS STREETS:
Merrill Ranch Parkway
and Sun City Boulevard
(see maps)

P.O. Number Terms
Due upon completion

Advisor
Aaron

Project Description

2017-Anthem Units

State License #
AZ-ROC261715

Region
AZ, Southern

Print Name Date Holbrook Asphalt Co.

www.HolbrookAsphalt.com

Arizona Office
3806 S 16th Street
Phoenix, AZ 85040

P: 602.307.0425
F: 435.656.3943

Nevada Office
2900 Meade Ave, Ste 7
Las Vegas, NV 89118

P: 702.823.3902
F: 702.777.7575

Utah Office
3828 South 1700 East
St. George, UT 84790

P: 435.652.4427
F: 435.656.3943

_______________________ ___________________________________ ____________________

Description Quantity U/M Rate Total
HA5 HIGH DENSITY MINERAL BOND:  (37,974 SQ. YD.)
-- Clean & prepare surface using high pressure air & wire bristle brooms.
-- Install "HA5" High Density Mineral Bond advanced performance pavement preservation treatment.
-- No guarantee surface treatments will adhere to areas saturated with motor oil.
-- HA5 meets demands of APWA (American Public Works Association) specification 
-- Section 32 01 13.68 High Density Mineral Bond).
AREAS INCLUDE
*UNIT 11 (pink):  20,395 sq. yards
*UNIT 13 (light blue):  17,579 sq. yards

37,974 SqYard 1.47996 56,200.00

** BONDS:
-- Payment and/or performance bond cost will be adjusted to the total price of this proposal at a rate of
1.2 percent.

1 674.42 674.42

** PRIVILEGE TAXES:
City's Tax Rate: 4.00%
State and County Tax Rate: 6.7%
Combined Total Tax Rate: 10.7%

1 6,085.56 6,085.56

Signature

Total $62,959.98



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
8c. 

MEETING DATE:  February 21, 2017 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Public Works 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Christopher A. Salas, Public Works 
Director/Town Engineer 
 
SUBJECT:  Authorization to contract with Cactus Asphalt 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
Subject:  Cactus Contract Contract                                                                  Meeting Date:  February 21, 2017 
Page 1 of 2 

through a Pinal County Cooperative Contract to provide 
polymer modified asphalt paving.    

 Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Authorization to enter into a contract with Cactus Asphalt, through a Pinal County 
Cooperative Contract, to provide polymer modified asphalt paving, in an amount not to 
exceed $481,334.56.    
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Pinal County has an existing contract with Cactus Asphalt.  The Town of Florence has 
the opportunity to piggyback on Pinal County’s publicly bid contract with Cactus Asphalt 
and do work on some of our existing roads at a cost less than what would normally cost 
the Town to do the same work.  The cost savings is due to Pinal County’s existing 
contract.   
 
The work performed by Cactus Asphalt, if the Town Council approves this item, is to 
pre-sweep each street, apply polymer modified asphalt rubber binder at .63 gallons per 
square yard, apply pre-coated MAG high volume aggregate at 28 pounds per square 
yard, roll aggregate to imbed into PMAR binder, post sweep and apply fog seal SS1-h 
50/50 dilute at .12 gallons per square yard.   
 
The work also includes asphalt patchwork where the edges of certain roads that are in 
need of repair.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The cost to chip seal and fog seal the various roads is $437,576.87, plus a 10% 
contingency, for a total of $481,334.56.    
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
  
Staff recommends Town Council approval.   
 



Subject:  Cactus Contract Contract                                                                  Meeting Date:  February 21, 2017 
Page 2 of 2 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Cooperative Cover Contract  
Pinal County Contract 
Proposal 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 























































Failure to send invoice to above address will result in delay of payment.
Direct all payment questions to Accounts Payable at 520-866-6223.
Direct all other inquiries to the Buyer specified above.

By accepting this Purchase Order the supplier agrees to the terms and conditions contained
on the Purchasing website: 
http://pinalcountyaz.gov/Departments/Finance/Documents/Standard%20PO%20Terms.pdf

09/15/2016
DATE Buyer Signature

Purchase Order PO Number

235743
Pinal County Finance Department This number must appear on all 

documents pertaining to this order.Purchasing Division
P.O. Box 1348
Florence, AZ  85132

PO Date: 9/14/2016
Page: 1 of 1

Mail Invoice to: Ship to: Supplier:
Pinal County Finance Department PUBLIC WORKS CACTUS TRANSPORT INC
P.O. Box 1348 140 N. FLORENCE ST 8211 W SHERMAN ST
Florence, AZ  85132 BUILDING F TOLLESON AZ 85353
Phone:  520-866-6223 FLORENCE AZ 85132

Phone: 602 - 242-9983
Fax: 602 - 242-9984 (FAX)

Or email invoice to: Confirming to:
FinanceInvoices@pinalcountyaz.gov

Buyer: Gloria M. Bean Requested Delivery Date:  9/14/2016
Phone: 520 - 8666009 Fax: 520 - 8666899 Payment Terms:                  Net 30
Email: Gloria.Bean@pinalcountyaz.gov Shipping Terms:                 FOB Destination

Reference:

Line Quantity UOM Item Number Item Description Unit Cost Extended Cost
1.00 LS  Pvmnt Preservation/Repair Srv $0.00 $1,000,000.00

S.O.W.: Supply, deliver, apply, provide traffic control, stripe & broom as part of 
Pavement Preservation and Repair Services - FY16/17. 
**CONSIDER THIS YOUR OFFICIAL NOTICE TO PROCEED**

Department Contact: Joe Ramirez 520-866-6680.

Recommended Vendor: Cactus Transport, Inc. 
Contact: Jeff Abram, 623-907-2800 jabram@cactusaspahlt.com

Contract: EC15-008-1  BOS approved 7/6/16

Total Order: $1,000,000.00

Gloria M. 
Bean

Digitally signed by Gloria M. Bean 
DN: cn=Gloria M. Bean, o=Pinal 
County, ou=Pinal County 
Purchasing, 
email=gloria.bean@pinalcountyaz
.gov, c=US 
Date: 2016.09.15 12:20:00 -07'00'



TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA 
CONTRACT FOR COOPERATIVE USE OF PINAL COUNTY JOB ORDER 

CONTRACT WITH CACTUS ASPHALT, A DIVISION OF CACTUS TRANSPORT, INC. 
CONTRACT NO. EC15-008-1 FOR PAVEMENT PRESERVATION AND REPAIR 

SERVICES ON TOWN STREETS 
 
 

THIS CONTRACT (the “Contract”) is made and entered into effective as of the 21st day 
of February, 2017 (“Effective Date”), by and between the Town of Florence, Arizona (the 
“Town”), and Cactus Transport, Inc. (the “Contractor”) and together with the Contract 
Documents referred to and incorporated herein, is the “resultant contract” contemplated 
in the Pinal County solicitation Request for Statement of Qualifications 152119 and Job 
Order Contract with Cactus Asphalt, a division of Cactus Transport, Inc. for Pavement 
Preservation and Repairs services, Contract No. EC15-0008-1 dated July 6, 2016.   The 
Town and the Contractor are sometimes referred to in this Contract collectively as the 
“Parties” and each individually as a “Party”.  
 

1. SCOPE OF WORK: The Contractor shall provide the Town all necessary labor, 
material, transportation services and equipment to perform Pavement 
Preservation and Repairs on Town streets per contract specifications described 
in the attached scope of materials and services set forth in Exhibit “1” (the 
“Services”). The Contractor shall provide the Services in accordance with the 
schedule attached in Exhibit “1”, and the Contract Documents, including all 
exhibits to the Master Contract including but not limited to any Standard Terms 
and Conditions, Special Terms and Conditions, Specifications and Plans.  
Contractor agrees, at its own cost and expense, to do all of the work and furnish 
all of the equipment, personnel and materials necessary to provide in a good and 
substantial manner, and to the satisfaction of the Town, the Services. 

2. PRIORITY OF DOCUMENTS. It is further expressly agreed by and between the 
Parties that should there be any conflict between the terms of this Contract, the 
Master Contract, or the Contractor’s Proposal, then this Contract and the 
provisions of the Contract Documents shall control and nothing herein shall be 
considered as an acceptance of the terms of the said Proposal conflicting 
herewith or with the Master Contract, unless expressly stated herein. 

3. INCORPORATION: For and in consideration of this Contract and other good and 
valuable consideration, the Contractor agrees that the master cooperative 
solicitation/contract (the Pinal County Job Order Contract between Pinal County 
and Cactus Asphalt, a division of Cactus Transport, Inc. for Pavement 
Preservation and Repairs, Contract No. EC15-008-1 dated July 6, 2016) is in full 
force and effect, and all terms and conditions of the Master Contract are 
incorporated by reference into this Contract, creating an agreement identical in 
terms between the Town and Contractor.  In the Master Contract, the terms: 
“County”, “Pinal County”, “Pinal” shall be deemed to be and refer to the Town of 
Florence; the terms: “Pinal County Department of Public Works/Director”, 
“Agent”, “Project Manager”, “Transportation Director” shall be deemed to be and 
refer to the Florence Public Works Director, Town of Florence, 425 E. Ruggles 



Street, Florence, AZ 85132; and the terms: “Bidder”, “Contractor”, “JOC firm”, 
“JOC Contractor”, “firm” and “Offeror”, shall be deemed to be and refer to the 
Contractor under this Contract.  

4. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: This Contract consists of the following contract 
documents, which by reference are incorporated herein: 
A. This signed Contract. 
B. The solicitation documents, including Request for Statement of Qualifications 

152119 for the Pinal County Job Order Contract between Pinal County and 
Cactus Asphalt, a division of Cactus Transport, Inc. for Pavement 
Preservation and Repairs, Contract No. EC15-008-1 dated July 6, 2016, and 
including, but not limited to: Invitation for Bid, Instructions to Bidders, Fee 
Schedules; Notices; Checklists; Requirements for Proposers; Standard Terms 
and Conditions; Special Terms and Conditions; Scope of Work; Work 
Schedule; Certificates of Compliance; Plans, Specifications, Addenda, 
Warranties for Work; Work Forms; Attachments; Price Sheets; 
Questionnaires; Response Forms; Special Provisions and Specifications; 
Technical Provisions and Specifications; Schedules; Cooperative 
Authorizations; Exhibits, Material, Equipment, Services Pricing, Exhibit A 
General Scope of Work and its Special Provisions, Exhibit B Unit Price List 
(the “Contract Documents” or “Master Contract”). 

5. CONTRACT PRICING: Contract pricing shall be consistent with the Contract 
Documents and Contractor’s Proposal and is listed in Exhibit “1” (Price Sheet), 
and shall not exceed $481,334.56. 

6. TERM OF CONTRACT: The term of this Contract shall be from the Effective 
Date through satisfactory completion of the Services or delivery of Goods and 
acceptance of the Services and/or Goods by the Town. Time is of the essence to 
the terms of this Contract. 

7. COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL AND STATE LAWS. 
A. The Contractor understands and acknowledges the applicability to it of the 

American with Disabilities Act, the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 
1986 and the Drug Free Workplace Act of 1989.  

 
B. Under the provisions of A. R. S. § 41-4401, Contractor hereby warrants to the 

Town  that the Contractor and each of its subcontractors will comply with, and 
are contractually obligated to comply with, all Federal Immigration laws and 
regulations that relate to their employees and A. R. S. § 23-214 (A) 
(hereinafter “Contractor Immigration Warranty”). 

 
C. A breach of the Contractor Immigration Warranty shall constitute a material 

breach of this Contract and shall subject the Contractor to penalties up to and 
including termination of this Contract at the sole discretion of the Town. 

 
D. The Town retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any Contractor or 

Subcontractor’s employee who works on this Contract to ensure that the 
Contractor or Subcontractor is complying with the Contractor Immigration 



Warranty.  Contractor agrees to assist the Town in regard to any such 
inspections. 

 
E. The Town may, at is sole discretion, conduct random verification of the 

employment records of the Contractor and any subcontractors to ensure 
compliance with Contractor’s Immigration Warranty.  Contractor agrees to 
assist the Town in regard to any random verification performed. 

 
F. Neither the Contractor nor any subcontractor shall be deemed to have 

materially breached the Contractor Immigration Warranty if the Contractor or 
subcontractor establishes that it has complied with the employment 
verification provisions prescribed by section 274A and 274B of the Federal 
Immigration and Nationality Act and the E-Verify requirements prescribed by 
A. R. S. § 23-214, Subsection A. 

 
G. The provisions of this Section must be included in any contract the Contractor 

enters into with any and all of its subcontractors who provide Services under 
this Contract or any subcontract.  “Services” are defined as furnishing labor, 
time or effort in the State of Arizona by a contractor or subcontractor.  
Services include construction or maintenance of any structure, building or 
transportation facility or improvement to real property. 

 
H. The provisions of this Section must be included in any contract the Contractor 

enters into with any and all of its subcontractors who provide Services under 
this Contract or any subcontract.  

 
8. METHOD OF PAYMENT.  Method of payment shall be set forth in Exhibit “1”.  

If payment is to be made monthly, Contractor shall prepare monthly invoices and 
progress reports which clearly indicate the progress to date and the amount of 
compensation due by virtue of that progress.  All invoices shall be for Services 
completed or Goods accepted by the Town. 

9. TERMINATION.  Town, at any time and for any reason and without cause, may 
terminate, suspend or abandon any portion, or all, of this Contract at Town’s 
convenience without penalty or recourse.  Contractor shall receive payment for 
Services or Goods satisfactorily completed and accepted by Town, as 
determined by Town in its reasonable discretion, based on the Goods and/or 
Services requirements and schedule for payment. 

10. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.  It is understood that Contractor shall be an 
independent contractor with respect to Services and/or Goods provided under 
this Contract, and shall not be deemed to be a partner, employee, joint venture, 
agent, or to have any other legal relationship with Town. 

11. Notices.  Any notice to be given under this Contract shall be in writing, shall be 
deemed to have been given when personally served or when mailed by certified 
or registered mail, addressed as follows:  Town: Town of Florence, Town Clerk, 
775 N. Main Street, PO Box 2670, Florence, AZ 85132; and Contractor: Cactus 
Transport Inc. Attn: Bryan Glazer, 8211 W. Sherman St. Tolleson, AZ 85353. 



12.  INDEMNIFICATION.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor, its 
successors, assigns and guarantors, shall pay, defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless the Town of Florence, its Mayor and Council members, its agents, 
officers, officials, representatives and employees, from and against all demands, 
claims proceedings, suits, damages, losses and expenses (including but not 
limited to attorney’s fees, court costs, and the costs of appellate proceedings), 
and all claim adjustment and handling expenses, relating to, arising out of, or 
alleged to have resulted from the acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, Goods or 
Services of the Contractor, its agents, employees or any tier of Contractor’s 
subcontractors related to the Goods or Services in the performance of this 
Contract.  Contractor’s duty to defend, hold harmless and indemnify Town of 
Florence, its Mayor and  Council members, its agents, officers, officials, 
representatives and employees shall arise in connection with any claim, damage, 
loss or expense that is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, death, or 
injury to, impairment, or destruction of property including loss of use of resulting 
therefrom, caused by Contractor’s acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, Goods, 
Services in the performance of this Contract including any employee of the 
Contractor, any tier of Contractor’s subcontractors or any other person for whose 
acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, Goods, Services the Contractor may be legally 
liable. 

13. WARRANTY.  Contractor warrants that the Goods and Services will conform to 
the requirements of this Contract.  Additionally, Contractor warrants that all 
Services will be performed in a good, workman-like and professional manner.  
The Town’s acceptance of Goods or Services provided by Contractor shall not 
relieve Contractor from its obligations under this warranty.  If any Goods or 
Services are of a substandard or unsatisfactory manner as determined by the 
Town, Contractor, at no additional charge to the Town, will provide Goods or 
redo such Services until they are in accordance with this Contract and to the 
Town’s reasonable satisfaction.  Unless otherwise agreed, Contractor, warrants 
that Goods will be new, unused, of most current manufacture and not 
discontinued, will be free of defects in materials and workmanship, will be 
provided in accordance with manufacturer’s standard warranty for at least one (1) 
year, unless otherwise specified, and will perform in accordance with 
manufacturer’s published specifications. 

14. PURCHASING POLICY.  The Town of Florence Town Code and Purchasing 
Policy govern this procurement and are incorporated as part of this Contract by 
this reference.  

15. GOVERNING LAW.  This Contract shall be deemed to be made under, shall be 
construed in accordance with, and shall be governed by the laws of the State of 
Arizona, without reference to choice of law or conflicts of laws principles thereof. 
The exclusive forum selected for any proceeding or suit in law or equity arising 
from or incident to this Contract shall be Pinal County, Arizona. 

16. PROHIBITED BOYCOTT.  Pursuant to A.R.S. 35-393.01, the Contractor, by 
execution of this Contract, certifies that it is not currently engaged in, and agrees 
for the duration of this Contract to not engage in, a boycott of Israel. 

 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Contract effective as of the 
Effective Date set forth above. 
 
 
 
TOWN OF FLORENCE, A municipal corporation 
 
By: __________________________  Date:_________________________ 
       Tara Walter, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
______________________________ 
Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney 
 
 
CONTRACTOR 
 
By: ___________________________ 
 
Date:__________________________ 
 
Its: ___________________________  
         
 
           























Description

Allows towns to use the increased in property tax collection on a specific development to reimburse developers

for infrastructure and other improvements

Cox bill for streamlined process for cellular operators to install smallcell equipment in town ROWs.  Issues being

resolved through productive discussions.

Verizon bill for streamlined process for cellular operators to install smallcell equipment in town ROWs.  Major 

concerns exists, including flat $20 fee. 

Concealed Carry Weapons permit holders can carry guns in public faciities unless there are armed guards and 

metal detectors present at each entrance.

Allows county to put forth a ballot initiative that can remove sales tax collected over a certain purchase price 

amount (vehicles, etc.). Related to RTA.  

Towns must bid out maintenance and projects that exceed $25,000. 

Allows for the discharge of firearms that use a .22 caliber rat shot or snake shot ammunition within town 

boundaries.

If towns receive any funds from federal governemtn, they must generate a report showing how funds are being 

used and how towns would do without it. 

ents; require

IGAs must be renewed every 8 years.  There are ongoing dicussions to identify exceptions, including police and 

fire.  

Areas with 15,000+ population do not require permission from surrounding towns (6 miles) if area is bigger 

than the community protestiong the incorporation. 

Areas with 15,000+ population do not require permission from surrounding towns (6 miles) if area is bigger 

than the community protestiong the incorporation. 

Bills of Interest

Bill  Title

HB 2177 municipalities; development; reimbursement zones

SB 1214  local governments; smallcell equipment permitting

HB 2365 wireless facilities; collocation; rights of ways

SB 1243 misconduct involving weapons; public places

HB 2156 county transportation excise tax; rates

HB 2143 public contracts; procurement

HB 2022 unlawful discharge of firearms; exception

HB 2212 federal financial assistance; reports

HB 2179 municipalities; counties; intergovernmental agreem

SB 1125 incorporation; urbanized areas

HB 2088 incorporation; urbanized areas


	February 21, 2017 Agenda
	Page 2
	Page 3

	6. PRESENTATIONS
	6a. Home Tour Committee Recognition
	6b. San Tan Drama Recognition
	6c. Recognition of Pulte Homes as 150th Sponsor
	6d. ISO Rating Presentation
	6e. 2017 GPA Report and Application
	6f. 2016 Chamber of Commerce Annual Report

	7. CONSENT
	7a. Kokoepelli Extension of Premises App
	7b. Pinal Co Historical Society Sp Event Liq Lic App
	7c. January 3, 2017 Council Minutes
	7c. January 13, 2017 Council Minutes
	7c. January 17, 2017 Council Mnutes

	7d i. December 8, 2016 Arts and Culture Commission MInutes
	7d ii. October 26, 2016 HDAC Minutes
	7d iii. October 27, 2016 Parks and Recreation Minutes


	8. NEW BUSINESS
	8a. Artisan Acres Dev Agmt
	8b. Holbrook Contract
	8c. Cactus Asphalt Contract

	9. LEGISLATIVE UPDATE
	9. 2017 Bills




